No: CCSPL/DEB/20-21/06
Addressed to:

INFORMATION MEMORANDUM
CLIX CAPITAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
A company incorporated with limited liability under the Companies Act, 1956 and existing under the
Companies Act, 2013
Date of Incorporation: 11-02-1994
Registered Office: 4th floor, Kailash Building, Kasturba Gandhi Marg, Connaught Place New Delhi
North East Delhi- 110001 IN
Telephone No.: 0124 330 2000
Website: https://www.clix.capital/

Information Memorandum

August 31, 2020

Issue of 600 (Six Hundred) Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible, Rated, Listed, Taxable
Debentures of face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only) each, aggregating
up to Rs. 60,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Crores) (“Debentures”) on a private placement
basis (the “Issue”).

Background

This Information Memorandum is related to the Debentures (defined below) to be issued by Clix Capital
Services Private Limited (the “Issuer” or “Company”) on a private placement basis and contains
relevant information and disclosures required for the purpose of issuing of the Debentures. The issue of
the Debentures comprised in the Issue and described under this Information Memorandum has been
authorised by the Issuer through resolutions passed by the shareholders of the Issuer on December 26,
2019 and the Board of Directors of the Issuer on November 28, 2019 (provided in Annexure T)and the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company. Pursuant to the resolution passed by the
Company’s shareholders dated December 26, 2019 (provided in Annexure 1) in accordance with
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has been authorised to borrow, upon such terms
and conditions as the Board may think fit, for amounts up to Rs. 3000,00,00,000 (Indian Rupees Three
Thousand Crores. The present issue of NCDs in terms of this Information Memorandum is within the
overall powers of the Board as per the above shareholder resolution(s).

The Issue would be under the electronic book mechanism for issuance of debt securities on private
placement basis as per the SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/05 dated January 5, 2018 as
amended by way of the circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIR/P/2018/122 dated August 16, 2018 and any
amendments thereto (“SEBI EBP Circular”) read with the “Updated Operational Guidelines for
issuance of Securities on Private Placement basis through an Electronic Book Mechanism” issued by
NSE (“NSE EBP Guidelines”, together with the “SEBI EBP Circular” referred to as the “Operational
Guidelines™). The Issuer intends to use the NSE Bond - EBP Platform for inviting bids and making
disclosures required under Schedule 1 of the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations.

General Risks

Investment in debt and debt related securities involve a degree of risk and Investors should not invest
any funds in the debt instruments, unless they can afford to take the risks attached to such investments
and only after reading the information carefully. For taking an investment decision, the Investors must




rely on their own examination of the Company and the Issue including the risks involved. The
Debentures have not been recommended or approved by Securities and Exchange Board of India
(“SEBI”) nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of this document. Specific attention of
Investors is invited to the statement of Risk Factors at Section 3 of this memorandum of private
placement for issue of Debentures on a private placement basis (“Information Memorandum” or
“Disclosure Document”). This Information Memorandum has not been submitted, cleared or approved
by the SEBI.

Issuer’s Absolute Responsibility

The Issuer, having made all reasonable inquiries, confirms and represents that the information contained
in this Information Memorandum / Disclosure Document is true and correct in all material respects and
is not misleading in any material respect, that the opinions and intentions expressed herein are honestly
held and that there are no other facts, the omission of which makes this document as a whole or any of
such information or the expression of any such opinions or intentions misleading in any material respect.
The Issuer is solely responsible for the correctness, adequacy and disclosure of all relevant information
herein.

Credit Rating

The Debentures proposed to be issued by the Issuer have been rated by CARE Ratings, vide letter dated
12 August, 2020 assigned a rating of “A+” (pronounced as “ A Plus”) with “stable” outlook and by
Brickworks Ratings vide letter dated 26 August 2020 assigned a rating of AA-with “Negative” outlook
in respect of the Debentures. The above rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities
and Investors should make their own decision in this regard. The ratings may be subject to revision or
withdrawal at any time by the Credit Rating Agency and should be evaluated independently of any other
ratings. Please refer to Annexure I1I of this Information Memorandum for the letter dated 12 August,
2020 and 26 August, 2020 from the Credit Rating Agency assigning the credit rating abovementioned
and disclosing the rating rationale adopted for the aforesaid rating.

Issue Schedule

Issue Opens on: August 31, 2020
Issue Closing on: August 31, 2020
Deemed Date of Allotment: September 1, 2020

The Issuer reserves the right to change the Issue Schedule including the Deemed Date of Allotment at
its sole discretion, without giving any reasons or prior notice. The Issue shall be open for subscription
during the banking hours on each day during the period covered by the Issue Schedule.

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the wholesale debt market of the National Stock Exchange
(GGNSEJJ).

Registrar & Transfer Agent Debenture Trustee
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Surya Nagar, Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli West, 85, Bhusari Colony,
Mumbai, Maharashtra — 400083 Paud Road, Pune — 411038

Fax No.: 022 4918 6060

) o ) Email:umesh.salvi@ctltrustee.com
E-mail: mumbai@linkintime.co.in

Contact Person: Mr. Umesh Salvi




TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS 4
SECTION 2: NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS 7
SECTION 3: RISK FACTORS 10
SECTION 4: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 13
SECTION 5: REGULATORY DISCLOSURES 14
SECTION 6: DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULT 53
SECTION 7: TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS 54
SECTION 8: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATION PROCESS 55
SECTION 9: DECLARATION 65
ANNEXURE I: BOARD RESOLUTION 66
ANNEXURE II: SHAREHOLDER RESOLUTION 70
ANNEXURE IIT: RATING LETTER & RATING RATIONALE 71
ANNEXURE IV: CONSENT LETTER FROM THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE 90
ANNEXURE V: CONSENT LETTER TO THE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
AGENT 93
ANNEXURE VI: APPLICATION FORM 934
ANNEXURE VII: LAST THREE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 966~
ANNEXURE VIII: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 1082
ANNEXURE IX: ILLUSTRATION OF DEBENTURE CASH FLOWS 125

ANNEXURE X: IN-PRINCIPAL APPROVAL 12626




SECTION 1: DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates or requires, the following terms shall have the meanings given
below in this Information Memorandum. Capitalised terms used, but not defined in this Information
Memorandum shall have the meanings assigned to such terms under the Debenture Trust Deed.

Allot / Allotment / Allotted

Unless the context otherwise requires or implies, the allotment of
the Debentures pursuant to this Issue.

Application Form The form used by the recipient of this Disclosure Document and
/ or the Private Placement Offer Letter, to apply for subscription
to the Debentures, which is annexed to this Information
Memorandum and marked as Annexure VI.

AUM Assets under management

Board / Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of the Issuer.

Business Day

Any day of the week (excluding Sundays and any other day
which is a ‘public holiday’ for the purpose of Section 25 of the
Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881 (26 of 1881)) on which banks
are normally open for business in Mumbai and New Delhi and
“Business Days” shall be construed accordingly.

CAGR

Compound annual growth rate

CDSL

Central Depository Services (India) Limited.

Credit Rating Agency

Any domestic credit rating agency including CARE, CRISIL,
ICRA and India Ratings and international credit rating agencies
such as Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s and such other credit
rating agencies identified and / or recognized by RBI from time
to time.

Debentures / NCDs

600 (Six Hundred) Rated, Secured, Senior, Redeemable,
Taxable, Transferable, Listed, Non-convertible Debentures
bearing a face value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs only)
each, aggregating to Rs. 60,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Crores
only).

Debenture Holders /

Investors

The holders of the Debentures issued by the Issuer and shall
include the registered transferees of the Debentures from time to
time.

Deemed Date of Allotment

the date of receipt of subscription amounts for the Debentures i.e.
September 1,2020

Debenture Trustee

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited.

Debenture Trustee

Agreement

Agreement to be executed by and between the Debenture Trustee
and the Company for the purposes of appointment of the
Debenture Trustee to act as debenture trustee in connection with
the issuance of the Debentures.

Debenture Trust Deed

Shall mean the debenture trust deed executed / to be executed by
the Company which will set out the terms upon which the
Debentures are being issued and shall include the representations
and warranties and the covenants to be provided by the Company.

Deed of Hypothecation

The deed of hypothecation entered / to be executed by the Issuer,
pursuant to which hypothecation over Hypothecated Receivables
shall be created by the Issuer in favour of the Debenture Trustee
(acting for and on behalf of the Debenture Holders).




Demat

Refers to the dematerialisation of securities in electronic form,
with the entries noted by the Depository.

Depositories Act

The Depositories Act, 1996, as amended from time to time.

Depository

A depository registered with SEBI under the SEBI (Depositories
and Participant) Regulations, 1996, as amended from time to
time.

Depository Participant / DP

A depository participant as defined under the Depositories Act.

Director(s)

Director(s) on the Board of the Issuer.

Disclosure Document /
Information Memorandum

This document which sets out the information regarding the
Debentures being issued by the Issuer on a private placement
basis.

DP ID Depository Participant Identification Number.

Due Date Any date on which the holders of the Debentures are entitled to
any payments, whether as interest/ coupon or principal amounts,
whether on maturity or earlier, on exercise of an option to redeem
the Debentures prior to the scheduled Maturity Date or
acceleration.

EBP Electronic Book Provider

EFT Electronic Fund Transfer.

Financial Year / FY Twelve months period commencing from April 1 of a particular
year and ending on March 31 of the subsequent year.

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles prescribed by the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time and
consistently applied by the Issuer.

Gross Loan Portfolio

Shall mean and includes the outstanding principal amount of the
loans originated by the Borrower on its own books, securitized
portfolio.

G.S.T. Goods and Services Tax.
GE Money GE Money Financial Services Limited
Issue Private Placement of Debentures.

Issue Closing Date

August 31,2020

Issue Opening Date

August 31,2020

Issuer / Company

Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Key Management
Personnel

Shall have meaning as per the Companies Act 2013 and shall
include (i) chief executive officer or the managing director or
manager; (ii) the chief financial officer of the Company; (iii) the
company secretary of the Company; (iv) the whole-time director
of the Company; and (v) such other officer, not more than one
level below the directors who is in whole-time employment,
designated as key managerial personnel by the Board

Maturity Date

March 1, 2022, subject to a call Option or, such other date on
which the final payment of the principal of the Debentures
becomes due and payable as therein or herein provided, whether
at such stated maturity date, by declaration of acceleration, or
otherwise.

MSME

Micro, small and medium enterprises

N/A

Not Applicable.

NSDL

National Securities Depository Limited.

NSE Bond — EBP Platform

Electronic Book Provider Platform of NSE for issuance of debt
securities on private placement basis.

Permanent Account Number.




Payment Date

A date when any sum is due and payable under the Transaction
Documents, including but not limited to the Interest Payment
Date, Scheduled Redemption Date, Accelerated Redemption
Date, Put Option Exercise Date, Final Settlement Date.

Private Placement Offer

Letter

Shall mean the offer letter prepared in compliance with Section
42 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014.

Portfolio at Risk > 30 Days
or PAR 30

Shall mean in relation to the Company’s Gross Loan Portfolio
aggregate outstanding principal value of the relevant credit
facilities provided by the Company that have one or more
instalments of principal, or interest payments overdue for 90
(ninety) days or more and includes restructured loans but
excludes loans that have been written-off by the Company.

RBI Reserve Bank of India.

Redemption Date Any Scheduled Redemption Date, or any other date on which the
Debentures may be redeemed as under the Transaction
Documents.

Record Date The date which will be used for determining the Debenture
Holders who shall be entitled to receive the amounts due on any
Due Date, which shall be the date falling 15 (Fifteen) calendar
days prior to any Due Date.

R&T Agent Registrar and transfer agent to the Issue, in this case being Link
Intime India Private Limited

ROC Registrar of Companies.

Rs. /INR Indian Rupee.

RTGS Real Time Gross Settlement.

SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (as amended
from time to time).

SEBI Debt Listing | The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of

Regulations Debt Securities) Regulation, 2008 issued by SEBI, as amended
from time to time.

TDS Tax Deducted at Source.

The Companies Act / the
Act

The Companies Act, 2013 or where applicable, the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956, still in force.

Terms & Conditions

Shall mean the terms and conditions pertaining to the Issue as
outlined in the Transaction Documents.

Transaction Documents

Shall mean the documents executed or to be executed in relation
to the issuance of the Debentures as more particularly set out in
Section 8

WDM

Wholesale Debt Market.

Wilful Defaulter

Shall mean an Issuer who is categorized as a wilful defaulter by
any Bank or financial institution or consortium thereof, in
accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the
Reserve Bank of India and includes an issuer whose director or
promoter is categorized as such in accordance with Regulation
2(n) of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008.




SECTION 2: NOTICE TO INVESTORS AND DISCLAIMERS

2.1 ISSUER’S DISCLAIMER

This Information Memorandum is neither a prospectus nor a statement in lieu of a prospectus and should
not be construed to be a prospectus or a statement in lieu of a prospectus under the Companies Act,
2013. This Information Memorandum has been prepared in conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations and Companies Act to provide general information about the Issuer and the Debentures to
Eligible Investors and shall be uploaded on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform to facilitate invitation of bids.
The issue of the Debentures to be listed on the WDM segment of the NSE is being made strictly on a
private placement basis. Multiple copies hereof given to the same entity shall be deemed to be given to
the same person and shall be treated as such. This Information Memorandum does not constitute and
shall not be deemed to constitute an offer or invitation to subscribe to the Debentures to the public in
general.

This Information Memorandum is being uploaded on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform to comply with the
Operational Guidelines and an offer shall be made upon the issue of the offer document after completion
of the bidding process on Issue to successful bidders in accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, and rules issued thereunder.

As per the applicable provisions, it is not necessary for a copy of this Information Memorandum /
Disclosure Document to be filed or submitted to the SEBI for its review and / or approval. However,
pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 of the Act read with the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment
of Securities) Rules, 2014, the copy of this Information Memorandum and the Private Placement Offer
Letter shall be filed with the ROC and SEBI within the stipulated timelines under the Companies Act,
2013.

This Information Memorandum has been prepared in conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations
as amended from time to time and the applicable RBI Circulars governing private placements of
debentures by Non- Banking Financial Companies (“NBFC(s)”). This Information Memorandum has
been prepared solely to provide general information about the Issuer and shall be uploaded on the NSE
Bond-EBP Platform to facilitate invitation of bids. This Information Memorandum does not purport to
contain all the information that any eligible investor may require. Further, this Information
Memorandum has been prepared for informational purposes relating to this transaction only and upon
the express understanding that it will be used only for the purposes set forth herein.

Neither this Information Memorandum nor any other information supplied in connection with the
Debentures is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and any recipient of this
Information Memorandum should not consider such receipt as a recommendation to subscribe to any
Debentures. Each potential Investor contemplating subscription to any Debentures should make its own
independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer, and its own appraisal of
the creditworthiness of the Issuer. Potential Investors should consult their own financial, legal, tax and
other professional advisors as to the risks and investment considerations arising from an investment in
the Debentures and should possess the appropriate resources to analyse such investment and the
suitability of such investment to such potential Investor’s particular circumstances.

The Issuer confirms that, as of the date hereof, this Information Memorandum (including the documents
incorporated by reference herein, if any) contains all the information that is material in the context of
the Issue and regulatory requirements in relation to the Issue and is accurate in all such material respects.
No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained or
incorporated by reference in this Information Memorandum or in any material made available by the
Issuer to any potential Investor pursuant hereto and, if given or made, such information or representation
must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the Issuer. The Issuer certifies that the disclosures
made in this Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter are adequate and in
conformity with the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations. Further, the Issuer accepts no responsibility for
statements made otherwise than in the Information Memorandum or any other material issued by or at
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the instance of the Issuer and anyone placing reliance on any source of information other than this
Information Memorandum would be doing so at its own risk.

This Information Memorandum and the contents hereof are restricted for providing information
under SEBI Debt Listing Regulations for the purpose of inviting bids on the NSE BOND-EBP
Platform. An offer of private placement shall be made by the Issuer by way of issue of the offer
document to the identified investors who have been addressed through a communication by the
Issuer. All Eligible Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/ guidelines
applicable to them, including but not limited to the Operational Guidelines for investing in this
Issue. The contents of this Information Memorandum and any other information supplied in
connection with this Information Memorandum or the Debentures are intended to be used only
by those Eligible Investors to whom it is distributed. It is not intended for distribution to any other
person and should not be reproduced or disseminated by the recipient.

The Issue of the Debentures will be under the electronic book mechanism as required in terms of the
Operational Guidelines.

No offer of private placement is being made to any persons other than the successful bidders on the NSE
Bond-EBP Platform to whom the offer document will be separately sent by or on behalf of the Issuer.
Any application by any person who is not a successful bidder (as determined in accordance with the
Operational Guidelines) shall be rejected without assigning any reason.

The person who is in receipt of this Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer
Letter shall not reproduce or distribute in whole or part or make any announcement in public or to a third
party regarding the contents hereof without the consent of the Issuer. The recipient agrees to keep
confidential all information provided (or made available hereafter), including, without limitation, the
existence and terms of the Issue, any specific pricing information related to the Issue or the amount or
terms of any fees payable to us or other parties in connection with the Issue. This Information
Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter may not be photocopied, reproduced, or
distributed to others at any time without the prior written consent of the Issuer. Upon request, the
recipients will promptly return all material received from the Issuer (including this Information
Memorandum) without retaining any copies hereof. If any recipient of this Information Memorandum
and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter decides not to participate in the Issue, that recipient must
promptly return this Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter and all
reproductions whether in whole or in part and any other information statement, notice, opinion,
memorandum, expression or forecast made or supplied at any time in relation thereto or received in
connection with the Issue to the Issuer.

The Issuer does not undertake to update the Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement
Offer Letter to reflect subsequent events after the date of Information Memorandum and / or the Private
Placement Offer Letter and thus it should not be relied upon with respect to such subsequent events
without first confirming its accuracy with the Issuer.

Neither the delivery of this Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter nor
any sale of Debentures made hereafter shall, under any circumstances, constitute a representation or
create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Issuer since the date hereof.

This Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter does not constitute, nor may
it be used for or in connection with, an offer or solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such
offer or solicitation is not authorized or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such an offer or
solicitation. No action is being taken to permit an offering of the Debentures or the distribution of this
Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter in any jurisdiction where such
action is required. Persons into whose possession this Information Memorandum comes are required to
inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions. The Information Memorandum is made
available to potential Investors in the Issue on the strict understanding that it is confidential.

2.2 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF STOCK EXCHANGES




As required, a copy of this Information Memorandum has been filed with the NSE in terms of the SEBI
Debt Listing Regulations. It is to be distinctly understood that submission of this Information
Memorandum to the NSE should not in any way be deemed or construed to mean that this Information
Memorandum has been reviewed, cleared, or approved by the NSE; nor does the NSE in any manner
warrant, certify or endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this Information
Memorandum, nor does the NSE warrant that the Issuer’s Debentures will be listed or will continue to
be listed on the NSE; nor does the NSE take any responsibility for the soundness of the financial and
other conditions of the Issuer, its promoters, its management or any scheme or project of the Issuer.

2.3 DISCLAIMER CLAUSE OF SEBI

As per the provisions of the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations, it is not stipulated that a copy of this
Information Memorandum has to be filed with or submitted to the SEBI for its review / approval. It is
to be distinctly understood that this Information Memorandum should not in any way be deemed or
construed to have been approved or vetted by SEBI and that this Issue is not recommended or approved
by SEBI. SEBI does not take any responsibility either for the financial soundness of any proposal for
which the Debentures issued thereof is proposed to be made or for the correctness of the statements
made or opinions expressed in this Information Memorandum. However, the Company undertakes to
file this Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter with SEBI within 30 days
from the Deemed Date of Allotment as per the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder.

24 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF JURISDICTION

This Issue is made in India to Investors as specified under the clause titled “Eligible Investors” of this
Information Memorandum, who shall be / have been identified upfront by the Issuer. This Information
Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter does not constitute an offer to sell or an
invitation to subscribe to Debentures offered hereby to any person to whom it is not specifically
addressed. Any disputes arising out of this Issue will be subject to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts
and tribunals at Chennai. This Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter
does not constitute an offer to sell or an invitation to subscribe to the Debentures herein, in any other
jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make an offer or invitation in such jurisdiction.

2.5 DISCLAIMER IN RESPECT OF RATING AGENCIES

Ratings are opinions on credit quality and are not recommendations to sanction, renew, disburse or recall
the concerned bank facilities or to buy, sell or hold any security. The Credit Rating Agency has based
its ratings on information obtained from sources believed by it to be accurate and reliable. The Credit
Rating Agency does not, however, guarantee the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any information
and is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results obtained from the use of such
information. Most entities whose bank facilities / instruments are rated by the Credit Rating Agency
have paid a credit rating fee, based on the amount and type of bank facilities / instruments.

2.6 ISSUE OF DEBENTURES IN DEMATERIALISED FORM

The Debentures will be issued in dematerialised form. The Issuer has made arrangements with the
Depositories for the issue of the Debentures in dematerialised form. Investors will have to hold the
Debentures in dematerialised form as per the provisions of Depositories Act. The Issuer shall take
necessary steps to credit the Debentures allotted to the beneficiary account maintained by the Investor
with its depositary participant. The Issuer will make the Allotment to Investors on the Deemed Date of
Allotment after verification of the Application Form, the accompanying documents and on realisation
of the application money.




SECTION 3: RISK FACTORS

The following are the risks relating to the Company, the Debentures and the market in general envisaged
by the management of the Company. Potential Investors should carefully consider all the risk factors in
this Information Memorandum and / or the Private Placement Offer Letter for evaluating the Company
and its business and the Debentures before making any investment decision relating to the Debentures.
The Company believes that the factors described below represent the principal risks inherent in investing
in the Debentures, but does not represent that the statements below regarding risks of holding the
Debentures are exhaustive. The ordering of the risk factors is intended to facilitate ease of reading and
reference and does not in any manner indicate the importance of one risk factor over another. Investors
should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Information Memorandum and / or
the Private Placement Offer Letter and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

3.1 REPAYMENT IS SUBJECT TO THE CREDIT RISK OF THE ISSUER.

Potential Investors should be aware that receipt of the principal amount, (i.e. the Redemption Amount)
and any other amounts that may be due in respect of the Debentures is subject to the credit risk of the
Issuer. Potential Investors assume the risk that the Issuer will not be able to satisfy their obligations
under the Debentures. In the event that bankruptcy proceedings or composition, scheme of arrangement
or similar proceedings to avert bankruptcy are instituted by or against the Issuer, the payment of sums
due on the Debentures may not be made or may be substantially reduced or delayed.

3.2 THE SECONDARY MARKET FOR DEBENTURES MAY BE ILLIQUID.

The Debentures may be very illiquid and no secondary market may develop in respect thereof. Even if
there is a secondary market for the Debentures, it is not likely to provide significant liquidity. Potential
Investors may have to hold the Debentures until redemption to realize any value.

3.3 CREDIT RISK & RATING DOWNGRADE RISK

The Credit Rating Agency has assigned the credit ratings to the Debentures. In the event of deterioration
in the financial health of the Issuer, there is a possibility that the Credit Rating Agency may downgrade
the rating of the Debentures. In such cases, potential Investors may incur losses on revaluation of their
investment or make provisions towards sub-standard / non-performing investment as per their usual
norms.

3.4 CHANGES IN INTEREST RATES MAY AFFECT THE PRICE OF NCDs.

All securities where a fixed rate of interest is offered, such as this Issue, are subject to price risk. The
price of such securities will vary inversely with changes in prevailing interest rates, i.e. when interest
rates rise, prices of fixed income securities fall and when interest rates drop, the prices increase. The
extent of fall or rise in the prices is a function of the existing coupon, days to maturity and the increase
or decrease in the level of prevailing interest rates. Increased rates of interest, which frequently
accompany inflation and / or a growing economy, are likely to have a negative effect on the pricing of
the Debentures.

35 TAX CONSIDERATIONS AND LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS

Special tax considerations and legal considerations may apply to certain types of investors. Potential
Investors are urged to consult with their own financial, legal, tax and other advisors to determine any
financial, legal, tax and other implications of this investment.

3.6 ACCOUNTING CONSIDERATIONS

Special accounting considerations may apply to certain types of taxpayers. Potential Investors are urged
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to consult with their own accounting advisors to determine implications of this investment.

3.7 SECURITY MAYBE INSUFFICIENT TO REDEEM THE DEBENTURES

In the event that the Company is unable to meet its payment and other obligations towards Investors
under the terms of the Debentures, the Debenture Trustee may enforce the Security as per the terms of
security documents, and other related documents. The Investor’s recovery in relation to the Debentures
will be subject to (1) the market value of such secured property, (ii) finding willing buyers for the Security
at a price sufficient to repay the potential Investors amounts outstanding under the Debentures. The value
realised from the enforcement of the Security may be insufficient to redeem the Debentures.

3.8 MATERIAL CHANGES IN REGULATIONS TO WHICH THE ISSUER IS SUBJECT
COULD IMPAIR THE ISSUER’S ABILITY TO MEET PAYMENT OR OTHER
OBLIGATIONS.

The Issuer is subject generally to changes in Indian law, as well as to changes in government regulations
and policies and accounting principles. Any changes in the regulatory framework could adversely affect
the profitability of the Issuer or its future financial performance, by requiring a restructuring of its
activities, increasing costs or otherwise.

3.9 LEGALITY OF PURCHASE

Potential Investors of the Debentures will be responsible for the lawfulness of the acquisition of the
Debentures, whether under the laws of the jurisdiction of its incorporation or the jurisdiction in which it
operates or for compliance by that potential Investor with any law, regulation or regulatory policy
applicable to it.

3.10 POLITICAL AND ECONOMIC RISK IN INDIA

The Issuer operates only within India and, accordingly, all of its revenues are derived from the domestic
market. As a result, it is highly dependent on prevailing economic conditions in India and its results of
operations are significantly affected by factors influencing the Indian economy. An uncertain economic
situation, in India and globally, could result in a further slowdown in economic growth, investment and
consumption. A slowdown in the rate of growth in the Indian economy could result in lower demand for
credit and other financial products and services and higher defaults. Any slowdown in the growth or
negative growth of sectors where the Issuer has a relatively higher exposure could adversely impact its
performance. Any such slowdown could adversely affect its business, prospects, results of operations
and financial condition.

3.11 RISKS RELATED TO THE BUSINESS OF THE ISSUER
(a) Business Risk Profile

Prior to acquisition of the Company by the current shareholders in August 2016, growth in the lending
business remained subdued primarily owing to GE Money’s strategy to exit its lending business in
India. However, with the change in management, the AUM of the company has grown at a CAGR of
approximately 100% (one hundred per cent) over the last 3 (three) years. AUM grew by 44% (forty four
per cent) as on March 31, 2019, to Rs 29.47 billion from Rs 20.26 billion as on March 31, 2018.

In terms of portfolio mix, the proportion of retail loan book has increased to 65% as on Sep 30, 2019
from 45% as on March 31, 2019 and 25% on March 31 2018, driven by growth in new products in the
retail segment, particularly SME finance and consumer lending.

Over the past two years, the company has started disbursals in the new product categories such as
consumer finance, personal loans, business loans and loan against electronic payments in the SME
segment. It intends to have a more diversified portfolio in the medium term with majority of the portfolio
in consumer finance, SME finance healthcare finance and balance in corporate finance. Further, the
company intends to improve the granularity in the loan book and increase focus on lower ticket size
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loans (less than Rs 10 million), as of March 2019, 70% of the total retail portfolio (retail, SME Finance
and healthcare finance) consisted of ticket size less than Rs 10 million.

With limited presence in these segments, the company has, over the past few quarters, invested in
building up the requisite infrastructure such as branch network, sales force and branch staff,
technological solutions for effective customer targeting, and analytical frameworks.

Ability to execute growth plans in the consumer segment while maintaining healthy credit quality will
be a monitorable given the intense competition from banks and other NBFCs in this segment.

Further, the incremental disbursements in the corporate book has witnessed nil delinquency in fiscal
2019 and the retail book delinquency was negligible in fiscal 2019. The ability to grow in the newer
segments without impairing portfolio performance will be critical and remain monitorable in the medium
term.

Given the evolving situation for non-banking financial companies, as regards liquidity, since September
2018, asset quality in some of the business segments including micro, small, and medium enterprises
(MSME) segment, would be a key monitorable. This stems from sensitivity of borrowers to an
environment of prolonged liquidity tightness. Delinquencies in these loans are not high currently owing
to strong credit appraisal and risk-mitigating mechanisms.

Further, on liability, the Company constantly strives to broaden its investor profile and has increased its
lender base to 10 financial institutions in just 3 years of operations. Currently, the liability book is well
diversified across various instruments (loan, NCD) . The ability to further add investors and diversify
source of funding will be monitorable in the challenging market environments.

(b) Financial risk profile

e The Company is backed by AION Capital (a part of Apollo Global, one of the largest fund managers
with global AUM of more than USD 300 bn) which owns significant stake in the Company.

e Recently promoters including AION have committed fresh capital of Rs.250.0 crore for the
Company on September 30, 2019.

e Total Capital Adequacy of the company stood at 27.3% as on March 31, 2020 (Unaudited numbers).

e The Company’s capitalization is supported by its ability to raise additional capital, through either
existing sponsors or new investors as and when required.

(c) Conservative liquidity policy
The Company follows a conservative liquidity management policy with stringent stress testing
framework where it maintains adequate liquidity buffer in the form of cash, cash equivalents and
undrawn bank lines against total debt maturing in the next three months

Stress testing is done on weekly basis for Short & Moderate to Long term stress scenarios
e Short term - next 30 days of all debt repayments to be kept in the form of cash or cash equivalents
assuming no inflows from assets

Moderate term - next 75 days of all CP/NCD repayments and 20% of all bank loan repayments falling
due in next 365 days to be kept aside in Cash or cash equivalents
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SECTION 4: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The audited financial statements of the Issuer for the FY ended 31.03.2020, 31.03.2019 and 31.03.2018,
are set out in Annexure VII hereto
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SECTION 5: REGULATORY DISCLOSURES

The Information Memorandum is prepared in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Debt Listing
Regulations and in this section, the Issuer has set out the details required as per Schedule I of the SEBI
Debt Listing Regulations.

5.1

Documents Submitted to the Exchanges

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to the NSE:

A.

5.2

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and necessary resolution(s) for the
allotment of the Debentures;

Copy of last 3 ( Three) years audited annual reports of the Company;

Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and
agreements;

Copy of the resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General
Meeting held on December 28, 2019 authorizing the issue / offer of non-convertible debentures
by the Company;

Copy of the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors dated November 26, 2019 authorizing
the borrowing and list of authorized signatories;

Certified true copy of the resolution passed by the Company at the Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on December 26, 2019 authorising the Company to borrow, upon such terms as
the Board may think fit, up to an aggregate limit of INR 3,000,00,00,000/(Indian Rupees Three
Thousand Crores Only);

An undertaking from the Issuer stating that the necessary documents for the creation of the
charge, including the Debenture Trust Deed would be executed within the time frame prescribed
in the relevant regulations / acts / rules etc. and the same would be uploaded on the website of
the NSE, where the debt securities have been listed, within 5 (Five) working days of execution
of the same;

Where applicable, an undertaking that permission / consent from the prior creditor for the
proposed security being created, in favour of the trustees to the proposed issue has been
obtained; and

Any other particulars or documents that the recognized stock exchange may call for as it deems
fit.

Documents Submitted to Debenture Trustee

The following documents have been / shall be submitted to the Debenture Trustee in electronic form
(soft copy) on or before the allotment of the Debentures:

A.

B.
C.

Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer and necessary resolution(s) for the
allotment of the Debentures;

Copy of last 3 (Three) years audited annual reports of the Issuer;

Statement containing particulars of, dates of, and parties to all material contracts and
agreements;

Latest audited / limited review half yearly consolidated (wherever available) and standalone
financial information (profit & loss statement, balance sheet and cash flow statement) and
auditor qualifications, if any.

An undertaking to the effect that the Issuer would, until the redemption of the debt securities,
submit the details mentioned in point (D) above to the Debenture Trustee within the timelines
as mentioned in Simplified Listing Agreement issued by SEBI vide circular No.
SEBI/IMD/BOND/1/2009/11/05 dated May 11, 2009 as amended from time to time, for
furnishing / publishing its half yearly / annual result. Further, the Issuer shall within 180 (One
Hundred And Eighty) days from the end of the financial year, submit a copy of the latest annual
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53

report to the Debenture Trustee and the Debenture Trustee shall be obliged to share the details
submitted under this clause with all ‘Qualified Institutional Buyers’ and other existing
debenture-holders within 2 (Two) Business Days of their specific request.

Name, Address of Registered Office and Other Details of the Issuer

Name:

Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Registered Office of Issuer:

4™ floor, Kailash Building, Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
Connaught Place New Delhi North East Delhi 110001 IN

Corporate Office of Issuer:

801 B, 8™ Floor, Two Horizon Centre, DLF Phase-5,
Gurugram 122002 Haryana IN

Compliance  Officer  of | Mr. Ashhish Pandey
Issuer:
CFO of Issuer: Ms. Rashmi Mohanty

Registration Number:

116256

Corporate Identification
Number:

U65929DL1994PTC116256

Phone No.:

0124 330 2000

Fax No:

0124 428 2851

Contact Person:

Mr. Ashhish K Paanday

Email:

ashhish.paanday@clix.capital

Website of Issuer:

www.clix.capital

Auditors of the Issuer:

S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 101049W/E300004

Trustee to the Issue:

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited,
GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud
Road, Pune — 411 038

Registrar to the Issue:

Link Intime India Pvt Ltd

Address: 247, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Surya Nagar,
Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli West, Mumbai, Maharashtra —
400083

Phone No.:022 4918 6000

Fax No.: 022 4918 6060

E-mail: mumbai@linkintime.co.in

Credit Rating Agency
of the Issue:

CARE Ratings and Brickworks

Arrangers, if any, of the
instrument:

NA

A brief summary of business / activities of the Issuer and its line of business

Overview :
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The Company was incorporated as GE Money Financial Services Ltd in 1994, a fully
owned subsidiary of General Electric Capital Corporation (GE Capital), the financial
services arm of and wholly owned by, General Electric Company, USA. In August
2016, Mr Pramod Bhasin and Mr Anil Chawla along with AION Capital bought
100% stake in Clix Capital (previously known as GE Money Financial Services Pvt
Ltd) and Clix Finance (formerly known as GE Capital Services India). AION Capital
is the largest shareholder in the company. It provides, healthcare finance, leases
(including automobile lease), consumer financing (, two wheeler loans, and personal
loans) and SME financing (school financing, merchant cash advance, business loans,
and supply chain financing) and corporate loans. The company ventured into
housing finance through a wholly owned subsidiary, Clix Housing Finance, which
began operations in fiscal 2019. The company has set up the requisite infrastructure
such as branch network, sales force and branch staff, technological solutions for
effective customer targeting, credit decisions through scorecards, collections, and
analytic frameworks.

Corporate Structure / Organization Structure

GE Capital was rebranded as Clix post the management takeover and at present,
carries out the business through 3 entities (2 entities acquired from GE and a newly
set up Housing Finance entity)

Clix Capital (earlier GE Money) - focused on SME, Consumer Lending,
Corporate
Clix Finance (earlier GE Capital) — 100% subsidiary of Clix Capital - focused on
Healthcare and Equipment Finance, Digital Lending, Corporate
Clix Housing (new entity) — 100% subsidiary of Clix Capital - focused on
Housing/Mortgage finance products

PLUTUS
|

LOO%

CLYX

Capital
100%
100%
CL)X CL)X
Housing Finance

Vision and Mission:

16



The Company is focused on building a scalable, profitable, technology and analytics led NBFC
with a focus on catering to the underserved MSME Enterprises in India as well as the demands
of a consumption-driven economy

Brief Profile of the Board of Directors

Board of Directors

Name Designation Experience
Pramod Director Pramod’s career spans an entrepreneurial and
Bhasin professional career across the globe in the US, UK

and Asia. He has built global businesses in
Financial Services, Business process Management
and Skills Training. Pramod is the founder of
Genpact starting in 1997 and considered the
pioneer of the Business Process Management
industry in India today, which employs over a
million people in India. Under his leadership,
Genpact has also been the pioneer of this industry
in China, Eastern Europe and Latin America.
Genpact is acknowledged today as the leader in its
industry with over 65,000 employees across 17
countries and over $2b in revenues, and is a public
company listed on NYSE. Pramod built the
company from inception till 2011 when he stepped
down as CEO.

Prior to Genpact, Pramod’s career with GE spanned
25 years across Europe, US and Asia. He started
GE Capital’s initial operations in India as the CEO
in 1994 and was also the President of GE Capital
Asia from 1999. During this time, he was the
architect of GE Capital’s businesses in Commercial
and Consumer Finance and joint ventures with SBI
in credit cards and HDFC in Consumer Finance.
Prior to that he worked with GE Capital in
Corporate Finance in New York and Stanford, CT.,
as well as with GE in London and New York.

Anil Chawla | Director Started D. E. Shaw & Co's Indian operations with
their investing arm. Acknowledged as one of the
most successful investors in India while leading
D.E. Shaw & Co, with investments greater than US
$1.6 billion in a short span.

Inherited a small balance sheet, while at GE Capital
Services India, which consisted of short term
assets, which eventually grew up to, become one of
the best performing companies with a book size of
USS$1 billion during his tenure. Widely accredited
for propelling GE Capital Services India into the
league of large ticket lenders in India (US$3 billion
in assets in 3 years).
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Board of Directors

Name Designation Experience

Also, instrumental in arresting the delinquencies
with proactive follow-up mechanism and recover
monies from old delinquencies in workout
situations.

Voted as one of India's top 25 Hottest Young
Executives in 2002 by Business Today group.

Parth Director Mr. Parth Dasharath Gandhi has obtained his
Dasharath bachelor’s degree in engineering from Mumbai
Gandhi University and his MBA from Michigan State

University. He has 22 years’ experience in the
financial services sector as an Advisory Partner at
Navigator Capitol Advisors and at AION India
Investment Advisors Private Limited. Mr. Parth
Gandhi has also served on the boards of companies
such as Varun Beverages Ltd, AION Capital
Mauritius Limited, AION Capital Private Limited,
Geometric Limited, Mahindra Retail Private
Limited and RJ Corp Limited. Currently, he is
acting as Director of Clix Capital Services Private
Limited, Clix Finance India Private Limited and
Ryka Commercial Ventures Private Limited.

Shekhar Director Mr. Shekhar Daga has completed his bachelor’s in
Mohanlal commerce from Nagpur University and is a
Daga chartered accountant qualified with the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India. He has more than
18 years of experience of corporate banking,
stressed debt, project financing. Currently Mr.
Shekhar Daga is working with AION India
Investment Advisors Private Ltd involved in
sourcing and executing credit/ equity investment.
His experience spans across institutions such as
ICICI Bank and its UK arm where he worked across
businesses such as corporate banking, investment
banking, project finance M&A transactions and
stressed assets management. He was also part of
Unit Trust of India originating and appraising
various primary market debt deals for mutual funds.

Kalpesh Director Senior Partner of AION India Investment Advisors
Kikani Private Limited.

Senior management team of ICICI Bank where he
has led various businesses in the Bank including
commercial banking, corporate banking, project
finance, retail banking, financial institutions,
syndications, custodial services and & special asset
turnaround situations.

Established and headed the corporate and
investment banking business for ICICI Bank UK
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Board of Directors
Name Designation Experience
PLC focusing on leveraged and structured finance
transactions, both outbound and inbound for Indian
companies, with teams based in the United
Kingdom, Germany and Belgium.
Steve Director He is a senior partner and Head of Asia Pacific for
Martinez Apollo Management. He joined the Firm in 2000
and during his tenure has led investments in a
variety of sectors including shipping, leisure, media
and general Industrial. He is a member of Apollo’s
Senior Management Committee and serves as Head
of'the Hong Kong office. He Currently serves on the
Board of Directors of Ventia Services Group,
Norwegian Cruise Lines and Veritable Maritime.
He previously served as a Director of Nine
Entertainment ~ Corporation,  Allied  Waste,
Goodman Global, Hayes-Lemmerz International,
Hughus Telematics, Jacuzzi Brands, Prestige
Cruises and Rexnord Industries.

Prior to joining Apollo, he was a member of the
mergers and acquisitions department of Goldman
Sachs & Co. Before that he worked in Asia at Brain

& Company.
Rashmi Whole Time Rashmi joins us from Vedanta, where she held the
Mohanty Director position of

Group Head— Treasury and Investor Relations.
(DIN: Prior to her tenure at Vedanta, Rashmi also worked
07072541) with Duetsche Bank as Director—

Global Markets, at Religare as Director— Treasury

and with GE

Capital as Vice President & Head India— Treasury.
She brings deep and diverse exposure across
corporate finance, treasury, investor relations and
derivatives, and has over 24 years of experience in
financial markets. Her mix of experience in both
large MNCs and Indian companies gives her the
right skillset to help Clix achieve its ambition
especially as we scale our business

From her Post Graduation at IIM Bangalore, to her
most recent role at Vedanta, Rashmi has established
herself as an industry leader. She is also quite active
in the speaking at several industry forums and
faculty in management schools.

1. Brief Profile of the Senior Management

Name Designation Experience

Venkat CRO He is a Chartered Accountant and Commerce Graduate from

Raman Delhi University, Shriram College of Commerce. He is heading
Bharatwaj Company’s Risk functions. Prior to joining the Company he has
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worked with several top notch companies in India and carrying
experience of three decades

Rashmi
Mohanty

CFO

Rashmi joins us from Vedanta, where she held the position of
Group Head— Treasury and Investor Relations. Prior to her tenure
at Vedanta, Rashmi also worked with Duetsche Bank as Director—
Global Markets, at Religare as Director— Treasury and with GE
Capital as Vice President & Head India— Treasury. She brings
deep and diverse exposure across corporate finance, treasury,
investor relations and derivatives, and has over 24 years of
experience in financial markets. Her mix of experience in both
large MNCs and Indian companies gives her the right skillset to
help Clix achieve its ambition especially as we scale our business

From her Post Graduation at IIM Bangalore, to her most recent
role at Vedanta, Rashmi has established herself as an industry
leader. She is also quite active in the speaking at several industry
forums and faculty in management schools.

Aakash
Desai

Head,
Corporate
Lending

Aakash is part of the founding team and a core member of the
senior leadership at Clix Capital. With over 18 years of experience
in Wholesale & Institutional Financial services Aakash joined
Clix Capital as Head- Treasury and Capital Markets Financing
in June 2017.

Prior to Clix, Aakash was Managing Director at Standard
Chartered Bank where he spent 4 years driving the Corporate
Finance and Loan Syndication businesses for India and South
Asian. At ICICI Bank, Aakash spent 13 years setting up various
new businesses, products and revenue streams across India and
offshore markets. In his role as Head — Financial Institutions
Group, he was responsible for all domestic fund raising, debt
capital markets and managing senior banking and investor
relationships with all Indian financial institutions.

Navin
Saini

Business Head
: SME

Navin comes to CLIX with over 20 years of valuable experience
in SME Banking Space.

He started his Career with Small Industries Development Bank of
India and later he had considerable stints with ICICI Bank,
Barclays Bank, Standard Chartered Bank and lastly he was
heading the SME Business with Aditya Birla Finance Ltd. He has
been associated with various forums who work closely for the
development and finance of SMEs in India.

He is a Harvard Business School & ISB Alumnus and a Post
Graduate in MBA (Finance).

Ajay
Vikram
Singh

Business Head:
Consumer

Ajay has 16 years of consumer banking experience across cards,
personal loans and branch banking with Citi Bank.

In his last role with Citi, Ajay was the Head of Cards portfolio
lending. He managed and grew USD 800 Million balance sheet
for all lending products on the cards portfolio.

Prior to this role, Ajay worked in Malaysia as part of Citi's Asia
Pacific excel Leadership Development program and headed
Personal Loans for Citi in Malaysia
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C. Key Operational and Financial Parameters for the last 3 audited years on a consolidated
basis (wherever available) else on a standalone basis.

*Total debt includes debt securities

Rs Crores
Parameters( Rs. (Cr.)) FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020
Net Worth 1672 1681 1898
Total Debt 1483 2651 2530
Current 177 521 985
Comprising of -
S Non 741 1934|1537
Current

Short Term Borrowing 566 196 8
Net Fixed Assets 37 48 48
Non-Current Assets 2665 3239 3073
Cash and Cash Equivalents 54 324 126
Non-Current Investments 1079 1047 1138
Current Investments - - 74
Current Assets 568 1245 1437
Current Liabilities and Provisions 68 142 1059
Assets Under Management 1955 2958 3003

Off Balance Sheet Assets - - -
Interest Income 90 315 447
Interest Expense 40 206 278
Provisioning & Write-offs 47 28 30
PAT 12 7 21
Gross NPA (%) 5.81% 4.22% 1.15%
Net NPA (%) 0.00% 0.11% 0.54%
Tier I Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 32.69% 20.55% | 25.94%
Tier II Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 0.42% 0.64% 1.32%

D. Gross Debt: Equity Ratio of the Company:
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Before the issue of debt securities (as on
March 31,2020)

1.80

After the issue of debt securities (as on
March 31,2020)

1.84

Calculations

Before the issue, debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as follows: -

Debt — INR crore 2530
Equity — INR crore 1407.58
Debt / Equity 1.80

Subsequent to the issue, debt-to-equity ratio shall be calculated as follows: -

Debt — INR crore 2580

Equity — INR crore 1407.58

Debt / Equity 1.84

E. Project cost and means of financing, in case of funding new projects: N.A.

5.5 A Brief history of Issuer since its incorporation giving details of its following activities:

Details of Share Capital as on last quarter end i.e. June 30, 2020

Share Capital Amounts
Authorised 21600000000
TOTAL 21600000000

Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-

14,075,844,520

up
Preference Shares Nil
TOTAL 14,075,844,520

A. Capital Structure of the Company:
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Particulars Autl.lorized Issued Capital Sub.scribed pai(.i up
Capital capital capital

Number of 2,160,000,000 | 14,075,844,520 | 14,075,844,520 | 140,7584,4520

Equity Shares

Nominal amount

per equity 10 10 10 10

share(Rs.)

Total amount of

equity shares 2,160 1,407 1,407 1,407

(Rs. Crores)

Number of

preference N/A N/A N/A N/A

shares

Nominal value

per preference N/A N/A N/A N/A

share

Total amount of N/A N/A N/A N/A

preference share

Size of the present offer N/A

Paid up capital after the offer N/A
or after conversion of
convertible instruments

Securities Premium Account Before the Offer: N/A
(before and after the offer) After the Offer: N/A
B. The details of the existing share capital of the issuer Company as on last quarter end i.e.

June 30, 2020, for the last five years, in a tabular form:
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SI. | Date of No of Shares Face Price / Cumulative Form | Remark
N | Allotme Allotted Value | Considera of s
(1) nt/Buy | (Equity)/ Bought of tion No.of | Eq | Eq | Consi
Back back Each (Total equity | uit | uity | derati
Share | Amount) | share | y | Sha on
s Sh | re
ar | Pre
e | miu
Ca| m
pit | (in
al | Rs)
R
s)
i August | 61,56,03,425 INR 10 | INR 22.29 | #615603425 Cash
31,2016 | shares were per fully Share Capital: &
transferred to paid equity | Rs. 615,60,34,250 | Cash
Plutus Financials share Share  Premium: | Equiv
Pvt Ltd. (For 2 Rs. 756,85,60,739 | alents
shares Plutus (Via
Capital Pvt Ltd Bank
was acting as Transf
nominee er)
shareholder)
Novemb | 80,02,84,452 INR 10 | INR 10 #800884452 Cash
er 04, bonus equity Share Capital: Rs. | &

iif 2016 shares allotted to 800,28,44,520 Cash
Plutus Financials Equiv
Pvt Ltd alents

(Via

Bank

Transf

er)
Novemb | buy-back of | INR 10 | INR 12.7 | #118803425 Cash
er 21, 118,803,425 from per fully Share Capital: Rs. | &

i} 2016 Plutus Financials paid equity | 1188034250 Cash
Pvt Ltd share Premium: Equiv

320769247.5 alents
(Via
Bank
Transf
er)
March For 2  shares | INR 10 | INR 12.7 #2 Cash
28,2017 | nominee rights of per fully Share Capital: | &

iv. Plutus Capital Pvt paid equity | Rs.20 Cash
Ltd were revoked share Share  Premium: | Equiv
by Plutus Rs.5.4 alents
Financials Pvt Ltd (Via
pursuant to Bank
transfer of Transf
beneficial er)

ownership.




Septemb | Issue of | INR 10 | INR 17.55 | #11050000 Cash
er 30, 11,050,000 per fully Share Capital: Rs. | &
v| 2019 allotted to Plutus paid up 11,05,00,000 Cash
Financials Private equity Share  Premium: | Equiv
Limited Shares Rs. 8,34,27,500 alents
(Via
Bank
Transf
er)
C. Changes in its capital structure as on last quarter end i.e. June 30,2020, for the last five
years: NOT Applicable
Date of Change .
(AGM / EGM) INR Particulars
Na Na na
D. Equity Share Capital History of the Company as on last quarter end, for the last five years:
Please refer table C above
E. Details of any acquisition or amalgamation in the last one year: N/A
F. Details of any reorganisation or reconstruction in the last one year: N/A
5.6 Details of the shareholding of the Company as on June 30, 2020:
S. | Name of the Equity Shareholders No. of Equity %age of Nature of
No. & Country thereof Shares held shareholding Ownership
- - — 5 -
1 Plutus Financials Pvt Ltd (Mauritius) 1407584450 99.99% Ultimate
Owner
2 Plutus Capital Pvt Ltd (Mauritius) ) 0.01% Ultimate
Owner
Total 14,07,584,452 100.00%

No shares have been pledged / encumbered by the promoters of the Company.
Shareholding pattern of the Company as on last quarter end i.e. June 30, 2020:
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S. Particulars Total Number of shares | Total
N Number of held in Shareholding as
0. Equity Dematerialised a % of total no.
Shares Form of equity shares.
1. | Plutus Financials Pvt Ltd 1407584450 1407584450 99.99%
(Mauritius)
2. | Plutus Capital Pvt Ltd 2 2 0.01%
(Mauritius)
Total 14,07,584, 14,07,584,452 100.00%
452
A. List of top 10 holders of equity shares of the Company as on last quarter end i.e. June 30,
2020:
S. Name of the Shareholders Total Number of | Number of shares Total
No. Equity shares held in Shareholding
dematerialised as a % of
Form total no. of
equity shares.
1. | Plutus Financials Pvt Ltd 1407584450 1407584450 99.99%
(Mauritius)
2. Plutus Capital Pvt Ltd 2 2 0.01%
(Mauritius)
Total 14,07,584,452 14,07,584,452 | 100.00%
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5.7

A.

Following details regarding the directors of the Company:

Details of current directors of the Company:

This table sets out the details regarding the Company’s Board of Directors as on June 30, 2020:

Sr.

Name

Designatio
n

Address

Age

(years)

DIN

Director
of the
Company
since

Details of
other
directorships

Pramod
Bhasin

Director

F-35
Radhey
Mohan
Drive,
Gadaipur,
Mehrauli,
New Delhi
- 110030

67

0119700
9

31-Aug-
16

—_—

. Vishwas

Vision  for
health
welfare and
Special
needs

. International

Foundation
for Research
and
Education.
Clix Finance
India Private
Limited
Vandana
Foundation
Skills
Academy
Private
Limited

. Inception

Advisory
Private
Limited

. DLF

Limited.
Asha Impact
Advisory
Services
Private
Limited

Anil
Chawla

Director

8 Club
Marg DLF
Phase 1,
Gurgaon
122002
Haryana

55

0001655
5

31-Aug-
16

—_—

. Clix Finance

India Private
Limited
Avant India
Advisory
Services
Private
Limited.
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A and M

Publications
Private
Limited

Parth
Dasharat
h Gandhi

Director

Flat No.79,
G Wing,
Gujarthi
Society,
Nehru
Road, Near
Jaal Hotel,
Vile Parle,
Mumbai
400 057

48

0165825
3

31-Aug-
16

—

. 1GT

Solutions
Private
Limited.

Clix Finance
India Private
Limited.

. Future

Generali
India
Insurance
Company
Limited.

LM Media
Services
Private
Limited

Shekhar
Mohanla
1 Daga

Director

B401,
Patliputra
Soceity,
Four
Bunglows
Square,
Andheri
West,
Mumbai -
400053

43

0747187
1

31-Aug-
16

1. Clix Finance

India Private
Limited

. IGT

Solutions
Private
Limited

. Bluerock

eServices
Private
Limited

. Arcion

Revitalizatio
n Private
Limited

. Clix

Housing
Finance
Private

Limited

. Ritvika

Trading
Private
Limited

. Clix Loans

Private
Limited
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Kalpesh | Director B 502, 5th | 47 0353477 | 31-Aug- 1. Clix Finance
Kikani Floor, 2 16 India Private
Gulmohar Limited
Apartment 2. Planetcast
s, Ceaser Media
Road, Services
Amboli, Limited
Andheri 3. Planetcast
(West), Technologie
Mumbai — s Limited
400058 4. Monnet
Ispat  And
Energy
Limited
5.AION India
Investment
Advisors
Private
Limited
6. Cloudcast
Digital
Limited
7. Planetcast
Broadcastin
g Services
Limited
8. Arcion
Revitalizatio
n Limited
9.JTPM Atsali
Limited
10. Creixent
Special
Steels
Limited
Steve Director 29 Horizon | 50 0676549 | 17-Jan-17 |1. Clix Finance
Martinez Drive, 9 India Private
House D, Limited.
Chung 2. AION India
Hom Kok,
Hong Invgstment
Kong Advisors
Private
Limited
Rashmi Whole 1611A, 47 0707254 | 28- 1. Clix Capital
Mohanty | Time Mangolia, 1 November | Services
Director DLF Golf - Private
Links, 19 Limited
Phase V, 2. Hemera
Gurugram Resources
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-122002

Private
Limited

3. Hemera
India Private
Limited

4. Hemera
Global
Trade
Private
Limited

5. Hemetron
Industries
Private Limited

B. Details of change in directors since last three years:
Name Designation DIN Date of Director of the | Remark
Appointment | Company since | s
/ Resignation | (in case of
resignation)
Rashmi Whole Time 07072541 28-11-2019 NA NA
Mohanty Director
Venkat Whole Time | 02965798 23-09-2019 NA NA
Raman Director
Bharatwaj
Vikas Whole Time | 7685833 23-09-2019 24-05-2017 NA
Aggarwal Director
Suruchi Women Director 07901622 18-02-2019 23-09-2019 NA
Nangia
Pramod Director 01197009 31-08-2016 NA NA
Bhasin
Anil Director 00016555 31-08-2016 NA NA
Chawla
Parth Director 01658253 31-08-2016 NA NA
Gandhi
Shekhar Director 07471871 31-08-2016 NA NA
Daga
Kalpesh Director 03534772 31-08-2016 NA NA
Klkani
Steve Director 06765499 17-01-2017 NA NA
Martinez
Manoj Director 00128620 29-09-2015 31-08-2016 NA
Sagun Naik
Rupak Saha | Director 00056511 02-08-2011 31-08-2016 NA
Satyanaray | Whole Time | 05108831 17-02-2014 May 19, 2017 NA
na Eluri Director

*Company to disclose name of the current directors who are appearing in the RBI defaulter list and /
or ECGC default list, if any: None

5.8 Following details regarding the auditors of the Company:

A. Details of the auditor of the Company:
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Name Address

Auditor since

S.R. Batliboi &
Associates LLP

Golf View Corporate
Tower-B, Sector Road,
Gurgaon Sector 42,
Gurgaon - 122002,

September 30, 2017

B. Details of change in auditors since last three years:
Name Address Date of Auditor of Remarks
Appointment/ the Company
Resignation since (in case
of
resignation)
B.S.R. & Building No. 10, | September 30, NA NA
Associates LLP 8th Floor, 2017 — Date of
Tower-B, DLF Resignation
Cyber City,
Phase - 11
Gurugram -
122002, India
SR Batliboi & 2™ & 3 Floor, September 30, NA NA
Associates LLP Golf View 2017, Date of
Corporate Tower | Appointment
B, Sector 42,
Gurugram 122
002
5.9 Details of borrowings of the Company, as on latest quarter end i.e. June 30, 2020:
A. Details of Secured Loan Facilities as on June 30, 2020
Principal
Lender’s Type of Amqunt Amount Repayment .
o Sanctioned . Date / Security
Name Facility Outstanding(Rs.
(Rs. Crores) Schedule
Crores)
Indusind Bank | Rupee Term 200 7273 Quarterly Book Debts and
Limited Loan ’ Receivables
Rupee Term
HDFC Bank | Loan  and | 235 65.55 pook Debrs and
Over Draft Quarterly M
Bank of Baroda | Rupee Term Book Debts and
(TL 1) Loan 100 66.67 Quarterly Receivables
Bank of Baroda | Rupee Term Book Debts and
(TL 2) Loan 100 80 Quarterly Receivables
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Rupee Term
ICICI Bank Loan and | 100 78.75 Quarterly (TL) BOOk. Debts and
Receivables
Over Draft
Rupee Term Book Debts and
Federal Bank Loan 100 75 Receivables
Quarterly
Half Yearly
Yes Bank Jupee Tem | 4gs 159.79 Half Yearly | pook Debts and
- Rupee Term Book Debts and
Bajaj Finserv Loan 50 16.67 Quarterly Receivables
Rupee Term Book Debts and
IDFC Bank Ltd Loan 150 120 Quarterly Receivables
. Rupee Term Book Debts and
Bank of India Loan 75 75 Quarterly Receivables
Rupee Term Book Debts and
Karnataka Loan 20 20 Half Yearly Receivables
Rupee Term Quarter] Book Debts and
SBI Loan 100 100 Y Receivables
Rupee Term Book Debts and
SIDBI Loan 74 74 Monthly Receivables
B. Details of Unsecured Loan Facilities as on June 30, 2020 The Company has not availed any
unsecured loan facilities.
C. Details of Non-Convertible Debentures as on June 30, 2020:
Coup
Tenor on
Debent (Rate Date of R.edempt - Secured
ure of Amount allotme | 10mOR Credit / Securit
Series (in Intere (Rs.) nt Date / Rating | Unsecur y
Months | st per Schedule ed
) annu
m)
Book
fer‘es (‘;‘} 60 10.75 | 2,000,000, | 25- | 25-May- | CARE | Unsecur zle;ts
o - -
2018 % 000 May-18 | 23 AA ed Receivab
les
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Book
Series B 1075 | 3,000,000, | 27-Jun- CARE | Unsecur | D€PtS
2 of | 60 v 000 18 27-Jun-23 AA- ed and
2018 0 Receivab
les
Book
ier‘es (‘;‘} % 1150 | 1,000,000, | 06- 06-May- | CARE | Unsecur zle;ts
0 - -
5018 % 000 Nov-18 | 21 AA ed Roceivab
les
Book
Series B 1150 | 1,000,000, | 06- CARE | Unsecur | D0
5 of|32 o 000 Now1g | 06-Jul21 | o and
2018 0 v Receivab
les
Book
Eenesff 2 11.50 | 1,000,000, | 06- 06-Sep- | CARE | Unsecur zle;ts
0 - -
2018 % 000 Nov-18 | 21 AA ed Receivab
les
Book
3“‘“& y 1150 | 1,000,000, | 12- 12-Nov- | CARE | Unsecur zle(ll’ts
(V) - -
5018 % 000 Nov-18 | 21 AA ed Roceivah
les
Book
. Debts
Series 8 37 11.25 1,000,000, | 17- 17-Dec- CARE S d d
of 2018 % 000 Dec-18 |21 AA- eeure@ ) ane
Receivab
les
Book
Series C 1,000,000, CARE | zle;ts
LR 10,00 | 900 13- | 20-Nov- | AA Receivab
32.5 % Mar-20 22 les
Book
Series 1 250,000,00 Brickwo [ ¢ Zle(liots
0f 2020 1080 | © 30-Jun- tks AA- Receivab
36 % 20 | 26-jun-23 les
D. List of Top 10 Debenture Holders (as on June 30, 2020)
S.N Name of Debenture | Amount
« N0 Holders (Rs. Cr)
Franklin Templeton
1. ME 900
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2. Reliance MF 100
Sachin Bansal 100
Indian Bank 25

Note: Top 10 holders’ (in value terms, on cumulative basis for all outstanding debentures issues)
details should be provided

E.

5.10

The amount of corporate guarantee issued by the Issuer along with name of the
counterparty (like name of the subsidiary, JV entity, group-company, etc.) on behalf of
whom it has been issued. (if any):

S.No | Particulars Amount (As on September
30, 2019)

1. The Company has provided a corporate guarantee to | Rs. 10,00,00,000

Federal Bank Limited for a term loan amounting to
Rs.8,00,00,000 and over draft facility amounting to
Rs.2,00,00,000 availed by Clix Housing Finance
Private Limited.

2. The Company has provided a corporate guarantee to | Rs.25,00,00,000
Indusind Bank Limited for a term loan amounting to
Rs.20,00,00,000 and over draft facility amounting to
Rs.5,00,00,000 availed by Clix Housing Finance
Private Limited.

Details of Commercial Paper: The total Face Value of Commercial Papers Outstanding as
on the latest quarter end i.e. June 30, 2020 to be provided and its breakup in following
table:

Maturity Date Amount Outstanding

nil Nil

Details of rest of the borrowing (if any including hybrid debt like FCCB, Optionally
Convertible Debentures / Preference Shares) as on March 31, 2020: No preference shares,
hybrid debt or optionally convertible debentures have been issued by the Company.

Details of all default(s) and / or delay in payments of interest and principal of any kind of

term loans, debt securities and other financial indebtedness including corporate guarantee
issued by the Company, in the past 5 years: None

Details of any outstanding borrowings taken / debt securities issued where taken / issued
(i) for consideration other than cash, whether in whole or part, (ii) at a premium or
discount, or (iii) in pursuance of an option: None

Details of Promoters of the Company:
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A.

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

Details of Promoter Holding in Company as on March 31, 2020:

S. Name of Total No | No. of Total No of % of
No the of Equity | shares | sharehold | share shares
shareholde shares in ing as % s pledged
rs Demat | of total no | Pledg with
form of equity ed respect to
shares shares
owned
1.| Plutus 14075844 | 140758 | 99.99% 0 N/A
Financials | 50 4450
Pvt  Ltd
(Mauritius
)
2. | Plutus 2 2 0.01% 0 N/A
Capital Pvt
Ltd
(Mauritius)
Total 14,07,584, | 14,07,5 | 100% 0 N/A
452 84,452

Abridged version of the Audited Consolidated and Standalone Financial Information (like
Profit and Loss statement, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow statement) for at least last three
years and auditor qualifications, if any.

The relevant information is furnished in Annexure VII of the Information Memorandum.

Abridged version of Latest Audited / Limited Review Half Yearly Consolidated and
Standalone Financial Information and auditors’ qualifications, if any:

The relevant information is furnished in Annexure VII of the Information Memorandum.

Any material event / development or change having implications on the financials / credit
quality (e.g. any material regulatory proceedings against the Issuer / promoters, tax
litigations resulting in material liabilities, corporate restructuring event etc.) at the time
of Issue which may affect the Issue or the Investor’s decision to invest / continue to invest
in the debt securities.

There are no material proceedings against Issuer after March 2020 other than mentioned in
financials of March 2020, if any.

Names of the Debentures Trustees and Consents thereof

The Debenture Trustee of the proposed Issue is has provided written consent for appointment
as debenture trustee to the Issue and the inclusion of the name of the entity in the form and
context in which the name appears in this Information Memorandum and in all the subsequent
periodical communication to be sent to the Debenture Holders. The consent letter from
Debenture Trustee is provided in Annexure IV of this Information Memorandum.

Rating Rationale(s) adopted (not older than one year on the date of opening of the Issue) /
credit rating letter issued (not older than one month on the date of opening of the Issue).
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5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

The Credit Rating Agencies have assigned rating of A+ and AA- to the Debentures. Instruments
with this rating are considered as having an adequate degree of safety regarding timely servicing
of financial obligations. Such instruments carry low credit risk.

If the security is backed by a guarantee or letter of comfort or any other document / letter
with similar intent, a copy of the same shall be disclosed. In case such document does not
contain detailed payment structure (procedure of invocation of guarantee and receipt of
payment by the investor along with timelines), the same shall be disclosed in the offer
document.

None

Names of all the recognized stock exchanges where the debt securities are proposed to be
listed:

The Debentures are proposed to be listed on the WDM segment of the NSE. The Issuer shall
comply with the requirements of the listing agreement for debt securities to the extent applicable
to the Issuer on a continuous basis. The in-principle approval of the NSE is set out in Annexure
X.

Other details:
Debenture Redemption Reserve Creation:

As per Section 71 of the Act, any company that intends to issue debentures must create a
debenture redemption reserve to which adequate amounts shall be credited out of the profits of
the company until the redemption of the debentures. However, at present under the Companies
(Issuance of Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, NBFCs are exempt from this
requirement in respect of privately placed debentures. Pursuant to this exemption, the Company
does not presently intend to create any reserve funds for the redemption of the Debentures.

Issue / instrument specific regulations:

The Issue of Debentures shall be in conformity with the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 including the notified rules thereunder, the SEBI Debt Listing Regulations, the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™)
and the applicable RBI guidelines.

Application process:

The application process for the Issue is as provided in SECTION 8: of this Information
Memorandum.

A statement containing particulars of the dates of, and parties to all material contracts,
agreements:

The contracts and documents referred to hereunder are material to the Issue, may be inspected at the
Registered Office of the Company between 10.00 am to 4.00 pm on working days.

Sr. No. Nature of Contract

Certified true copy of the Memorandum & Articles of Association of the Issuer.

Board Resolutions dated read with the resolution passed by Management Committee of the
Board of Directors dated authorizing Issue.
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Shareholder Resolution dated authorizing the issue of non-convertible debentures by the

3 Company.
4 Shareholder Resolution dated authorizing the borrowing by the Company and Shareholder
' Resolution dated authorizing the creation of security.

5. Copies of Annual Reports of the Company for the last three financial years.

6. Credit rating letter from the Credit Rating Agency.

7. Letter from Catalyst Trusteeship Limited giving its consent to act as Debenture Trustee.

8. Letter for R&T Agent.

9. Certified true copy of the certificate of incorporation of the Company.

10 Certified true copy of the tripartite agreement between the Company, the Registrar &
) Transfer Agent and NSDL.

1 Copy of application made to NSE for grant of in-principle approval for listing of
" | Debentures.

5.20 Remuneration of Directors (during the current and last three financial years):
Ms.Rashmi Mohanty & Mr.Venkat Raman Bharatwaj (resigned) are employees of Issuer and
draw regular salary and compensation. There are no separate director fees payable

5.21 Details of default, if any, including therein the amount involved, duration of default and
present status, in repayment of —

i. Statutory Dues
ii. Debentures and Interest thereon
iii. Deposits and Interest thereon
iv. Loans from any Bank or Financial institution and any interest thereon
S. No. | Details of default Duration Amount Present Status
Involved (in of Repayment
Rs.)
A. Statutory Dues
1. None |IN/A IN/A IN/A
B. Debentures and Interest thereon:
1. None IN/A IN/A IN/A
C. Deposits and Interest thereon:
1. None IN/A IN/A [NA
D. Loan from any bank or financial institution and interest thereon:
1. None IN/A IN/A IN/A

5.22  Any default in annual filing of the Company under the Companies Act, 2013 or the rules
made thereunder. None

5.23  Price at which the security is being offered including the premium, if any, along with
justification of the price Not Applicable

5.24 Name and address of the valuer who performed valuation of the security offered, and basis
on which the price has been arrived. Not Applicable. Receivables to be certified by the
chartered accountant.

5.25 Relevant date with reference to which the price has been arrived at Relevant Date means

a date at least thirty days prior to the date on which the general meeting of the company
is scheduled to be held. Not applicable
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5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29

5.30

5.31

5.32

5.33

5.34

5.35

5.36

5.37

The proposed time within which the allotment shall be completed 2 days from Pay In Date

The change in control, if any, in the company that would occur consequent to the private
placement. None

Contribution being made by the promoters or directors either as part of the offer or
separately in furtherance of such objects. None

The number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis/private placement/ rights
issue has already been made during the year, in terms of number of securities as well as
price. 11,05,00,000 shares against an amount of INR 19,39,275,000 were allotted on September
30, 2019 to Plutus Financials Private Limited on right basis at INR 17.55 per share.

The details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulators, Courts and
Tribunals impacting the going concern status of the Company and its future operations.
None

Any financial or other material interest of the directors, promoters or key managerial
personnel in the offer and the effect of such interest in so far as it is different from the
interests of other persons. None

The justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash
together with valuation report of the registered valuer. Not applicable

Details of any litigation or legal action pending or taken by any Ministry or Department
of the Government or a statutory authority against any promoter of the offeree Company
during the last three years immediately preceding the year of the circulation of the Offer
Document and any direction issued by such Ministry or Department or statutory authority
upon conclusion of such litigation or legal action shall be disclosed. None

Related party transactions entered during the last three financial years immediately
preceding the year of circulation of Offer Document including with regard to loans made
or guarantees given or securities provided.

The relevant information is furnished in Annexure VIII of the Information Memorandum

Summary of reservations or qualifications or adverse remarks of auditors in the last five
financial years immediately preceding the year of circulation of Offer Document and of
their impact on the financial statements and financial position of the Company and the
corrective steps taken and proposed to be taken by the Company for each of the said
reservations or qualifications or adverse remark.

There are no adverse remarks from the auditors of the Company in the last five financial years.

Details of any inquiry, inspections or investigations initiated or conducted under the
Companies Act or any previous Company law in the last three years immediately
preceding the year of circulation of Offer Document in the case of Company and all of its
subsidiaries. Also, if there were any prosecutions filed (whether pending or not), fines
imposed, compounding of offences in the last three years immediately preceding the year
of the Offer Document and if so, section-wise details thereof for the Company. None

Details of acts of material frauds committed against the Company in the last three years,
if any, and if so, the action taken by the Company. None
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5.38

Profits of the Company before and after making provisions for tax, for the three financial
years immediately preceding the date of circulation of Information Memorandum:

Financial Year

Profits before making provision

for tax (In Rs Cr)

Profits after making
provision for tax (In Rs Cr)

2019-20 58 20.75
2018-19 10 7
*2017-18 -26 12

*2017 P&L numbers are in IGAAP

Dividends declared by the Company in respect of the said three financial years; interest

coverage ratio for last three years (Cash profit after tax plus interest paid/interest paid) Nil*
Interest Coverage Ratio for last three years is as below:

*(Profits before tax+ Depreciation and Amortization + Provision- Tax+ Finance cost)/Finance

5.39
31% March 2020 -1.25
31 March 2019 — 1.22
31% March 2018 — 2.56
31 March 2017 — 21.59
cost
5.40

A summary of the financial position of the Company as in the three audited balance sheets
immediately preceding the date of circulation of Offer Document:

Financial Parameters

As on 31st March 2020

(in Rs. Crores)

As on 31st March
2019

(in Rs. Crores)

As on 31st March,

2018
(in Rs. Crores)

Share Capital 1407.58 1297 1297
Reserves and Surplus 490.16 384 375
Borrowings 2529.92 2651 1483
Investments 1212.6 1047 1079
Rgvlfe“rifi(f;"sm 480.70 343 93
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 58.22 10 -26
Profit after Tax 20.75 7 12
Earnings Per Share(INR)
0.15 0.00057 0.00089
0.15 0.00056 0.00088

39




5.41  Any change in accounting policies during the last three years and their effect on the profits
and the reserves of the Company. In 2019, the Company has started following the Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) and is no longer adhering to the Indian GAAP.

5.42  Details of Debt Securities Sought to be Issued

None

5.43  Issue Size

The aggregate issue size for the Debentures is up to Rs. 60,00,00,000 /- (Rupees Sixty Crores only).
5.44  Utilization of the Issue Proceeds

The Issuer undertakes that the proceeds of this Issue shall be used for general corporate purposes and
refinancing existing debt of the company and shall be utilised for the deployment of funds on the
Company’s balance sheet and not to facilitate resource requests of group entities / parent company /
associates of the Company.

The Issue shall not be utilised towards acquisition financing: i.e. buyback of shares / securities, purchase
of shares of other companies, promoter contribution towards the equity capital of a company, and / or as
a bridge loan

The Company undertakes that proceeds of this Issue shall not be utilized for the following purposes as
specified in the RBI Master Circular No. DBOD.BP.BC.No0.5/21.04.172/2015-16 dated July 1, 2015
including inter alia:

1) Bills discounted / rediscounted by NBFCs, except for rediscounting of bills discounted by NBFCs
arising out of: commercial vehicles (including light commercial vehicles) and two wheeler and three
wheeler vehicles, subject to the following conditions: The bills should have been drawn by the
manufacturer on dealers only; The bills should represent genuine sale transactions as may be
ascertained from the chassis / engine number and,; Before rediscounting the bills, the bona fides and
track record of NBFCs which have discounted the bills would be verified.

2) Investments of NBFCs both of current and long-term nature, in any company / entity by way of
shares, debentures, etc. However, Stock Broking Companies may be provided need-based credit
against shares and debentures held by them as stock-in-trade.

3) Unsecured loans / inter-corporate deposits by NBFCs to / in any company.

4) All types of loans and advances by NBFCs to their subsidiaries, group companies / entities.

5) Finance to NBFCs for further lending to individuals for subscribing to Initial Public Offerings (IPO)
and for purchase of shares from secondary market.”

5.45 Issue Details

Issuer Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Base Issue Size Rs 60 Crore (Rupees Sixty Crores Only)

Option to retain

. NIL
oversubscription

Senior, Secured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible, Rated, Listed,

Type of Instrument Taxable Debentures

Type of Issue Private Placement

Nature of Instrument Secured
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Issuance Mode

In Demat mode only

Trading Mode

In Demat mode only

Objects of the Issue

The proceeds of the Debentures shall be utilised by the
Company for the purpose of onward lending, working capital
purposes and activities eligible for Bank finance as per RBI.

Issue proceeds will not be used for acquisition of land or for
investing in Capital Markets or for the following purposes which
are not eligible for bank finance:

1.Bills discounted / rediscounted by the Issuer - except for

rediscounting of bills discounted by NBFCs arising from sale of -
(a) commercial vehicles (including light commercial vehicles),
and
(b)two wheeler and three wheeler vehicles, subject to the
following conditions :
¢ the bills should have been drawn by the manufacturer on
dealers only;

ethe bills should represent genuine sale transactions as may
be ascertained from the chassis / engine number; and

e before rediscounting the bills, banks should satisfy
themselves about the bona fides and track record of NBFCs
which have discounted the bills.

2. Investments of the Issuer both of current and long-term
nature, in any company / entity by way of shares,
debentures.

3. Unsecured loans / inter-corporate deposits by the Issuer to /
in any company.

4. All types of loans and advances by the Issuer to their
subsidiaries, group companies / entities.

5. Further lending to individuals for subscribing to Initial Public
Offerings (IPOs) and for purchase of shares from secondary
market.

The proceeds of this Issue shall not be used for any purpose,
which may be in contravention of the
government/RBI/SEBI/other regulatory guidelines

Utilization of Issue Proceeds

The proceeds of the Debentures shall be utilised by the
Company for the purpose of onward lending, working capital
purposes and activities eligible for Bank finance as per RBI.

Issue proceeds will not be used for acquisition of Land or for
investing in Capital Markets and for purposes not eligible for
Bank Finance:
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1.Bills discounted / rediscounted by the Issuer - except for
rediscounting of bills discounted by NBFCs arising from sale
of -
(a) commercial vehicles (including light commercial vehicles),
and
(b)two wheeler and three wheeler vehicles, subject to the
following conditions :
¢ the bills should have been drawn by the manufacturer on
dealers only;

ethe bills should represent genuine sale transactions as may
be ascertained from the chassis / engine number; and

e before rediscounting the bills, banks should satisfy
themselves about the bona fides and track record of NBFCs
which have discounted the bills.

2. Investments of the Issuer both of current and long-term
nature, in any company / entity by way of shares,
debentures.

3. Unsecured loans / inter-corporate deposits by the Issuer to /
in any company.

4. All types of loans and advances by the Issuer to their
subsidiaries, group companies / entities.

5. Further lending to individuals for subscribing to Initial Public

Offerings (IPOs) and for purchase of shares from secondary

market.

The proceeds of this Issue shall not be used for any purpose,
which may be in contravention of the
government/RBI/SEBI/other regulatory guidelines

Security

Extension of first pari-passu charge on all present and future eligible
book debts valued at 110% of principal amount of Debentures
outstanding and interest.

The Issuer undertakes:

1. Company’s Receivables shall be standard.

2. Company’s Receivables shall be existing at the time of
selection and have not been terminated or prepaid.

3. Company’s Receivables should not have been
restructured or rescheduled unless done as per the
instructions/guidance of RBI from time to time.

4. All loans hypothecated under the deed of
hypothecation should comply with norms and
guidelines issued by RBI

5. The Company’s Receivables being charged must
comply with all extant ‘know your customer’ norms
specified by RBI.
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6. The Company’s Receivables generated from lending
to Issuer’s associate/s & subsidiary/s and/or related
party shall not be provided as security for the
Debentures and consequently, shall not be
considered for asset cover calculation for this
issuance.

If the Security Cover falls below 1.10 time on any account,
including upon enforcement of the Hypothecated Assets to
meet shortfall in payment of the coupon on the Debentures, the
Company shall within 30 (thirty ) Business Days of such
occurrence, hypothecate further assets or such additional
security as may be acceptable to the Debenture Trustee to
maintain the Asset Cover.

Non-Maintenance of minimum-security cover as mentioned
above will attract 2% p.a. penalty over and above the coupon
rate as specified in the term sheet, for the period of non-
maintenance of cover.

The Issuer shall execute Debenture Trust Deed and Deed of
Hypothecation and perfect the charge created by the
Debenture Trust Deed and Deed of Hypothecation by filing
requisite forms with the Registrar of Companies (“ROC”) within
90 days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. The Company
shall, within 90 days from the Deemed Date of Allotment,
obtain NOCs and/or letters ceding pari passu charge to the
Debenture Trustee, from the Existing Lenders.

Seniority

Senior

Early Redemption to Issuer

Issuer shall have Early Redemption Option any time within 60 days to
the Final Maturity (i.e. any time within T-60 days; there T is the Final
Maturity Date) with a notice of 7 days to Early Redeem the NCDs.
Debenture Holder will have no option to reject such request from
Issuer.

Upon Early Redemption, Issuer will pay the entire Principal along with
applicable Coupon.

Contribution being made by
the promoters or directors
either as part of the offer or
separately in furtherance of
such objects

Nil

Listing

Proposed to be listed on the Wholesale Debt Market Segment
(WDM) of BSE and/ or NSE

Trustees

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
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Credit Rating

A+ by CARE/AA- by Brickworks

Credit Enhancement Nil

Face Value Rs. 10 Lakhs per debenture
Premium on issue Nil

Discount on issue Nil

Issue Price At par, Rs. 10 Lakhs per Debenture
Premium on redemption Nil

Discount on redemption Nil

Minimum Application

10 Debenture and in multiples of 1 Debenture thereafter

Tenor

18 Months from the deemed date of allotment

Put Option

None

Put Option Price

Not Applicable

Put Option Date

Not Applicable

Put Notification Time

Not Applicable

Call Option

None

Call Option Price

Not Applicable

Call Option Date

Not Applicable

Call Notification Time

Not Applicable

Coupon Rate

9.25 % p.a payable quarterly

Redemption/ Maturity
Amount

At Par

Redemption Date

01-Mar-2022

Redemption Schedule

Exposure is repayable in -4- equal quarterly installments
starting from end of 9 months from the date of investment.

The illustrative cashflows are mentioned as per Annexure.

Step Up Coupon Rate

In case of downgrade by one notch in the rating of the
Debentures, coupon will be stepped up by 0.25% for each such
downgrade, over and above the prevailing coupon rate
immediately prior to such rating downgrade. Such enhanced
coupon rate shall be applicable from the date of issue of the
rating downgrade, by any rating agency, to the residual maturity
of bonds. In the rating is restored to earlier rating level, the
pricing will be reduced by 0.25% for every notch upgrade. It is
further clarified, at any time the Coupon will not be less than
the Coupon at the time of Date of Allotment.

In case of 2 rating agencies, lowest of the two shall be
considered.

Step Down Coupon Rate

None

Coupon Payment Frequency

Quarterly

Coupon Payment Dates

As per cashflows
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Coupon Type

Fixed

Coupon Reset

None

Day Count Basis

Actual/Actual

Issue Timing

1. Issue Opening Date

31 Aug, 2020

2. Issue Closing Date

31 Aug, 2020

3. Pay-in Date 01 Sept, 2020
4. Deemed Date of 01 Sept, 2020
Allotment

Default Interest Rate

2% (Two percent) over and above the Coupon Rate per annum,
for the defaulting period, in the event the Issuer fails to make
any payments of Interest and/or principal redemption to the
Debenture Holders on their respective due dates.

Settlement Mode

Payment of interest and repayment of principal shall be made
by way of cheque(s)/ credit through RTGS/ Electronic Fund
Transfer or any other electronic mode offered by the Banks

Settlement Cycle for EBP

[T+1]

Depositories

NSDL / CDSL

Registrar

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

Valuer

Not Applicable

Business Day Convention

‘Business Day’ shall be a day on which commercial banks are
open for business in the city of Mumbai, Maharashtra and when
the money market is functioning in Mumbai. If the date of
payment of interest/redemption of principal does not fall on a
Business Day, the payment of interest/principal shall be made
in accordance with SEBI Circular CIR/IMD/DF-1/122/2016 dated
November 11, 2016.

If any of the Coupon Payment Date(s), other than the ones
falling on the redemption date, falls on a day that is not a
Business Day, the payment shall be made by the Issuer on the
immediately succeeding Business Day, which becomes the
coupon payment date for that coupon. However, the future
coupon payment date(s) would be as per the schedule originally
stipulated at the time of issuing the debentures. In other words,
the subsequent coupon payment date(s) would not be changed
merely because the payment date in respect of one particular
coupon payment has been postponed earlier because of it
having fallen on a non-Business Day.

If the redemption date of the Debentures falls on a day that is not a
Business Day, the redemption amount shall be paid by the Issuer on
the immediately preceding Business Day which becomes the new
redemption date, along with interest accrued on the debentures until
but excluding the date of such payment.

Record Date

The Record Date shall be 15 Calendar days prior to each coupon
payment date / redemption date.
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Investors who are eligible to
apply

a) Banks and Financial Institutions

b) FlIs

¢) Mutual Funds

d) Insurance Companies

e) Provident and Pension and Gratuity Funds

f) Companies and Bodies Corporate including Public Sector
Undertakings

g) Individuals and Hindu Undivided Families

h) Partnership Firms

1) Any other investor authorized to invest in these debentures

Applications can only be made by the applicants / Institutions to

whom this offer is addressed.

Transaction Documents

The Issuer has executed/ shall execute the documents including

but not limited to the following in connection with the Issue:

1. Consent Letter from Catalyst Trusteeship Limited to act as

Trustee to the Debenture holders; Debenture Trusteeship

Agreement;

Debenture Trust Deed;

Rating Letter from CARE Limited/BRICKWORKS

In principle approval letter from BSE and/ or NSE Limited;

Private Placement Memorandum

Detailed Term Sheet

Deed of Hypothecation

Board Resolutions

Undertaking certifying that the total issuance covered

under PCGS by CLIX Capital Services Pvt Ltd (CCSPL) to all

PSBs shall be capped at 1.25 times of CCSPL's total maturing

liabilities over a period of six months from the date of issue

of NCDs/ CPs. A copy of the same to be submitted to

Debenture Trustee and the branch each.

10. Undertaking certifying that the Company will rework the
Asset Liability structure within three months to have
positive ALM in each bucket for the first three months and
on cumulative basis for the remaining period. A copy of the
same to be submitted to Debenture Trustee and the branch
each.

LNk WN

Issuer’s Undertaking

The Issuer undertakes that it has executed/ shall execute the

documents including but not limited to the following in

connection with the Issue:

1. Tripartite Agreement between the Issuer; Registrar and
NSDL for issue of Debentures in dematerialized form;

2. Tripartite Agreement between the Issuer, Registrar and
CDSL for issue of Debentures in dematerialized form;

3. Letter appointing Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. as Registrar;

Condition Precedent

The Issuer shall, prior to the Deemed Date of Allotment, fulfil
the following conditions precedent, each in a form and manner
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satisfactory and acceptable to the Debenture Trustee/the
Applicants:

(a)

(b)

()

a copy of the Issuer's Constitutional Documents certified as
correct, complete and in full force and effect by the
appropriate officer;

copies of the authorisations and licenses received by the
Issuer from the RBI;

a copy of resolution of the debenture allotment committee of
the Issuer's board of directors or any committee hereof,
together with a copy of resolution of the Issuer's board of
directors authorising the execution, delivery and
performance of the Transaction Documents certified as
correct, complete and in full force and effect by an
appropriate officer of the Issuer;

copies of the resolution of the shareholders of the Issuer
under Section 42 of the 2013 Act, certified as correct,
complete and in full force and effect by an appropriate officer
of the Issuer;

a copy of the resolution of the shareholders of the Issuer in
accordance with Section 180(1)(c) of the 2013 Act approving
the borrowing contemplated under the Transaction
Documents OR a certificate of an authorised person of the
Issuer confirming the non-applicability of Section 180(1)(c) of
the 2013 Act;

a copy of the resolution of the shareholders of the Issuer in
accordance with Section 180(1)(a) of the 2013 Act approving
the creation of Security over the Hypothecated Assets OR a
certificate of an authorised person of the Issuer confirming
the non-applicability of Section 180(1)(a) of the 2013 Act;

a copy of the rating letter and the rating rationale issued by
the Rating Agency in relation to the Debentures;

a copy of the consent from the Debenture Trustee to act as
the debenture trustee for the issue of Debentures;

a copy of the consent from the Registrar to act as the registrar
and transfer agent for the issue of Debentures;

execution, delivery and stamping of the Debenture Trustee
Agreement by the Issuer in a form and manner satisfactory to
the Debenture Trustee and the Applicants;
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(k) evidence that the fees, costs and expenses then due from the
Issuer pursuant to the DTD (including the fee of the legal
counsel)) has been or will be paid; and

NSE In-principle Approval for Listing

Conditions subsequent to
subscription of Debentures

The Issuer shall ensure that the following documents are
executed/ activities are completed as per time frame
mentioned elsewhere in this Private Placement Offer Letter:

1. Ensuring that the payment made for subscription to the
Debentures is received from the bank account of the
person/ entity subscribing to the Debentures and keep
record of the bank accounts from where payments for
subscriptions have been received. In case of subscription
to the Debentures to be held by joint holders, application
monies is received from the bank account of the person
whose name appears first in the Application Form;

2. Maintaining a complete record of private placement offers
in Form PAS-5;

3. Filing a return of allotment of Debentures with complete
list of all Debenture holders in Form PAS-3 under section
42 of the Companies Act, 2013, with the Registrar of
Companies, Chennai on the Deemed Date of Allotment
along with fee as provided in the Companies (Registration
Offices and Fees) Rules, 2014;

4. Credit of demat account(s) of the allottee(s) by number of
Debentures allotted within two working days from the
Deemed Date of Allotment;

5. Making listing application to BSE and/ or NSE within 15
business days from the Deemed Date of Allotment of
Debentures and obtain listing permission within 20
calendar days from the Deemed Date of Allotment of
Debentures;

6. Thelssuer shall execute Debenture Trust Deed and Deed of
Hypothecation and perfect the charge created by the
Debenture Trust Deed and Deed of Hypothecation by filing
requisite forms with the Registrar of Companies (“ROC”)
within 90 days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. The
Company shall, within 90 days from the Deemed Date of
Allotment, obtain NOCs and/or letters ceding pari passu
charge to the Debenture Trustee, from the Existing
Lenders.

Besides, the Issuer shall perform all activities, whether

mandatory or otherwise, as mentioned elsewhere in the Private

Placement Offer Letter.

Financial Covenants

e The capital adequacy ratio shall be atleast 15% or above
at all points in time.
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e Total Debt / Adjusted Tangible Networth shall not
exceed 7.0x
e Net NPA shall not exceed 3.00% throughout the tenure
of the NCD
L]
Adjusted Tangible Networth means Tangible Networth less
Investments in subsidiaries / associates / group company and
funds invested outside business.

All covenants would be tested on half yearly basis based on
Management Certificate and on yearly based on Audited Financials
basis.

The covenants shall be certified by the Company within 90
calendar days from the end of half yearly and annual testing
period

Covenants

Credit Rating Covenants:

1. If the long-term credit rating of the Debentures is
downgraded to below “BBB-" by CARE Limited and/or any other
outstanding rating of the issuer, post the issuance of
debentures and at any point of time during the currency of the
NCDs, the Debenture holders would reserve the right to recall
the outstanding principal amount on the NCDs (i.e redemption
at par) along with other monies/accrued interest due in respect
thereof. Such outstanding amount will be payable within a
period of 30 days from the date of such notice of exercise of the
right by the Debenture holders.

Additional Covenants:

1. Security Creation: If the Company fails to execute the trust
deed within three months of the closure of the issue, the
Company shall also pay interest of 2% p.a. to the debenture
holder, over and above the agreed coupon rate, till the
execution of the trust deed or refund the subscription (ie.
redemption at par) along with other monies/accrued
interest due in respect thereof, at the option of the
Debenture holders;

2. Default in Payment: In case of default in payment of
interest and/ or principal redemption on the due dates, the
Company shall pay additional interest at the rate of 2.00%
p.a. over the Coupon Rate for the defaulting period i.e. the
period commencing from and including the date on which
such amount becomes due and upto but excluding the date
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on which such amount is actually paid.

Delay in Listing: The Company shall make listing application
to BSE and/ or NSE within 15 days from the Deemed Date
of Allotment of the Debentures and seek listing permission
within 20 days from the Deemed Date of Allotment of
Debentures. In case of delay in listing of the Debentures
beyond 20 days from the Deemed Date of Allotment, the
Company shall pay penal interest at the rate of 1.00% p.a.
over the Coupon Rate from the expiry of 30 days from the
Deemed Date of Allotment till the listing of Debentures to
the Debenture holder(s).

The interest rates mentioned in above covenants shall be
independent of each other.

In case any of the “Covenants” is breached and continues
breached for a period of 30 days from such breach coming to
notice, the Primary Debenture holder would reserve the right to
recall the outstanding principal amount on the NCDs (ie.
redemption at par) along with other monies/accrued interest
due in respect thereof.

Event of Defaults

Occurrence of any of the following events constitutes an event
of default with respect to the Issuer:

The Issuer shall fail to promptly pay any amount now
or hereafter owing to the Investors as and when the
same shall become due and payable; or

If the Issuer fail to duly observe or perform any
obligation under this agreement or under any
agreement entered into by it in connection with any
loans or other borrowings (including any kind of hybrid
borrowing like FCCB, optionally convertible preference
shares or Debentures) availed of by the Issuer and the
lender or investor concerned; or

Breach of any of the key covenants, as specified above,
which are not remedied within such period of time, if
any, as the Debenture Trustee (acting on the
instructions of the Majority Debenture Holders) may
allow.

Breach of any of the covenants (other than those
mentioned in the trust deed, representations and
warranties (including any representation or warranty is
held to be untrue, incomplete, incorrect or misleading
in  material (“material adverse changes”)form
contained in the Transaction Documents which are not
remedied within 15 days from the date of such breach.
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the Issuer entering into any material arrangement or
composition with his/her/its/their creditors or
committing any act of insolvency, or any act the
consequence of which may lead to the insolvency or
winding up of the Issuer;
execution or distress or other process being enforced
or levied upon or against the whole or any part of the
Issuer’s property whether secured to the Investor or
not;
any order being made or a Resolution being passed for
the winding up of the Issuer (except for the purpose of
amalgamation or reconstruction with the prior
approval of the Investor);
a Receiver being appointed in respect of the whole or
any part of the property of the Issuer;
the Issuer being adjudicated insolvent or taking
advantage of any law for the relief of insolvent debtors;
the Issuer ceasing or threatening to cease to carry on
business or giving or threatening to give notice of
intention to do so;
Inability to pay debts, proceedings of winding up, or the
Issuer’s being declared or considered to be a sick
company, or a relief undertaking or a protected
company or a sick industrial company or a protected
industrial company or otherwise, under any law,
statute, rule, ordinance etc. which would have the
effect of suspending or waiving all or any right against
the Issuer or in respect of any contract or agreement
concerning the Issuer,
The passing of any order of a court ordering, restraining
or otherwise preventing the Issuer from conducting all
or any material part of its business; or
The cessation of business by or the dissolution,
winding-up, insolvency or liquidation of the Issuer.
If the Issuer fails to maintain the amount in DRR/DSRA
on specified dates as mentioned under DRR/DSRA
clause in this term sheet. Events of default considered
appropriate for the transaction of this nature including:
1. Breach of any of the covenants, representations and
warranties. Cure period for (a) any breach of key
covenants to be given at the sole discretion of the
Investor, and (b) breach of any other covenants,
representation and warranties to be cured within 30 days.
2. Failure to file a Form CHG 9 with the Registrar of
Companies in form and substance required to perfect the
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Security within 30 days from the Date of Disbursement (or
creation of security if creation is to happen later)

3. Security provided being invalid security or loss of lien on
collateral

4. Unlawfulness or unenforceability of finance or security

5. Repudiation of any Transaction Document

6. lllegality for the Issuer to perform any of its obligations
under the Transaction Document

7. The withdrawal, failure of renewal, or failure to obtain any
statutory or regulatory approval in any relevant
jurisdiction for the Debentures or any Security.

8. Representations or Warranties are found to be untrue or
misleading when made or deemed to be made.

9. Cross default/ default with any other financial
indebtedness of the Issuer as per clause mentioned
herein.

10. The security cover falls below 1.10 times of the
Outstanding principal Amount and interest thereon at any
time during the currency of the Debentures and if the
Issuer fails to reinstate to 1.10 times within 30 working
days.

In the event of occurrence of any of the Events of Default as
mentioned above, the entire outstanding principal amount on
the NCDs (ie. redemption at par) along with other
monies/accrued interest due in respect thereof shall become
due for payment immediately and appropriated against
DSRA/DRR wherever created/available.

Role and Responsibilities of
Trustees

The Trustees shall perform its duties and obligations and exercise
its rights and discretions, in keeping with the trust reposed in the
Trustees by the holder(s) of the Debentures and shall further conduct
itself, and comply with the provisions of all applicable laws. The
Trustees shall carry out its duties and perform its functions as
required to discharge its obligations under the terms of SEBI Debt
Regulations, the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Debenture Trustees) Regulations, 1993, the Debenture Trusteeship
Agreement, Disclosure Document and all other related transaction
documents, with due care, diligence and loyalty.

Type of Bidding

Closed bidding

Manner of Allotment

Uniform —yield

Approvals

The Issuer agrees to comply with all applicable rules and regulations
in respect of the transaction. The Issuer will be responsible for taking
all necessary authorization and / or approvals internal, external
regulatory, statutory or otherwise

Governing Law and
Jurisdiction

The Debentures are governed by and shall be construed in
accordance with the existing laws of India. Any dispute arising thereof
shall be subject to the jurisdiction of district courts of Mumbai,
Maharashtra
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The Issuer shall bear all transaction related costs incurred by the Debenture
Holder with respect to legal counsel, valuers and auditors/ consultants. Such
costs include:

e Trustee fees

e Rating fees

e  Stamping and registration costs in relation to all Transaction Documents
Any other reasonable transaction related expense incurred by the Debenture
Holders

Transaction Costs

Note:

1. Capitalised terms used but not defined in the ‘Issue Details’ in 5.45 above shall have the meanings
ascribed to the terms in the Debenture Trust Deed

2. The list of documents which have been executed or will be executed in connection with the issue
and subscription of debt securities shall be annexed.

3. The default interest rates mentioned above as payable by the Issuer are independent of each other.

4. If the Company fails to execute the Debenture Trust Deed within 3 months from the Issue Closing
Date, the Company will refund the subscription with agreed rate of interest or will pay penal interest
of atleast 2% p.a. over the Coupon Rate till these conditions are complied with at the option of the
investor.

5. Default in Payment: In case of default in payment of Interest and/or principal redemption on the due
dates, additional interest of at least @2% p.a. over the Coupon Rate will be payable by the Company
for the defaulting period.

6. Delay in Listing: In case of delay in listing of the debt securities beyond 20 days from the deemed
date of allotment, the Company will pay penal interest of at least 1% p.a. over the Coupon Rate from
the expiry of 30 days from the deemed date of allotment till the listing of such debt securities to the

investor.

7. 1In the event of conflict between the Debenture Trust Deed and this document, the terms of the
Debenture Trust Deed shall prevail.

SECTION 6: DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO WILFUL DEFAULT

In case of listing of debt securities made on private placement, the following disclosures are required to
be made vide SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016 w.e.f. 25-05-
16:

A. Name of the Bank declaring the entity as a Wilful Defaulter: NA

B. The year in which the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: NA

C. Outstanding amount when the entity is declared as a Wilful Defaulter: NA

D. Name of the entity declared as a Wilful Defaulter: NA
53




E. Steps taken, if any, for the removal from the list of wilful defaulters : NA

F. Other disclosures, as deemed fit by the Issuer in order to enable investors to take informed
decisions: NA

G. Any other disclosure as specified by the Board: NA

SECTION 7: TRANSACTION DOCUMENTS
The following documents shall be executed in relation to the Issue (“Transaction Documents”):

A. Debenture Trustee Agreement, which will confirm the appointment of as the Debenture Trustee
(“Debenture Trustee Agreement”);

B. Debenture Trust Deed, which will set out the terms upon which the Debentures are being issued
and shall include the representations and warranties and the covenants to be provided by the
Issuer (“Debenture Trust Deed”);

C. Deed of Hypothecation whereby the Issuer will create an exclusive charge by way of
hypothecation over the Hypothecated Receivables in favour of the Debenture Trustee to secure
its obligations in respect of the Debentures (“Deed of Hypothecation”);

D. Undertaking certifying that the total issuance covered under PCGS by CLIX Capital Services
Pvt Ltd (CCSPL) to all PSBs shall be capped at 1.25 times of CCSPL's total maturing liabilities
over a period of six months from the date of issue of NCDs/ CPs. A copy of the same to be
submitted to Debenture Trustee

E. Undertaking certifying that the Company will rework the Asset Liability structure within three
months to have positive ALM in each bucket for the first three months and on cumulative basis
for the remaining period. A copy of the same to be submitted to Debenture Trustee and the
branch each.

F. Such other documents as agreed between the Issuer and the Debenture Trustee.
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SECTION 8: OTHER INFORMATION AND APPLICATION PROCESS

The Debentures being offered as part of the Issue are subject to the provisions of the Act, the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Issuer, the terms of this Information Memorandum,
Application Form and other terms and conditions as may be incorporated in the Transaction Documents.

8.1

8.2

8.3

Mode of Transfer / Transmission of Debentures

The Debentures shall be transferable freely; however, it is clarified that no Investor shall be
entitled to transfer the Debentures to a person who is not entitled to subscribe to the Debentures.
The Debenture(s) shall be transferred and / or transmitted in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the Act and other applicable laws. The Debentures held in dematerialised form
shall be transferred subject to and in accordance with the rules / procedures as prescribed by
NSDL / CDSL and the relevant DPs of the transferor or transferee and any other applicable laws
and rules notified in respect thereof. The transferee(s) should ensure that the transfer formalities
are completed prior to the Record Date. In the absence of the same, amounts due will be paid /
redemption will be made to the person, whose name appears in the register of debenture holders
maintained by the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, under all circumstances. In cases where
the transfer formalities have not been completed by the transferor, claims, if any, by the
transferees would need to be settled with the transferor(s) and not with the Issuer. The normal
procedure followed for transfer of securities held in dematerialised form shall be followed for
transfer of these Debentures held in dematerialised form. The seller should give delivery
instructions containing details of the buyer’s DP account to his DP.

Debentures held in Dematerialised Form

The Debentures shall be held in dematerialised form and no action is required on the part of the
Debenture Holder(s) for redemption purposes and the redemption proceeds will be paid by
cheque / fund transfer / RTGS to those Debenture Holder(s) whose names appear on the list of
beneficiaries maintained by the R&T Agent. The names would be as per the R&T Agent’s
records on the Record Date fixed for the purpose of redemption. All such Debentures will be
simultaneously redeemed through appropriate corporate action.

The list of beneficiaries as of the Record Date setting out the relevant beneficiaries’ name and
account number, address, bank details and DP’s identification number will be given by the R&T
Agent to the Issuer. If permitted, the Issuer may transfer payments required to be made in any
relation by EFT / RTGS to the bank account of the Debenture Holder(s) for redemption
payments.

Trustee for the Debenture Holder(s)

The Issuer has appointed Catalyst Trusteeship Limited to act as trustee for the Debenture
Holder(s). The Issuer and the Debenture Trustee intends to enter into the Debenture Trustee
Agreement and the Debenture Trust Deed inter alia, specifying the powers, authorities and
obligations of the Debenture Trustee and the Issuer. The Debenture Holder(s) shall, without
further act or deed, be deemed to have irrevocably given their consent to the Debenture Trustee
or any of its agents or authorized officials to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things in respect
of or relating to the Debentures as the Debenture Trustee may in its absolute discretion deem
necessary or require to be done in the interest of the Debenture Holder(s). Any payment made
by the Issuer to the Debenture Trustee on behalf of the Debenture Holder(s) shall discharge the
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8.4

85

8.6

8.7

8.8

Issuer pro tanto to the Debenture Holder(s). The Debenture Trustee will protect the interest of
the Debenture Holder(s) in regard to the repayment of principal and coupon thereon and they
will take necessary action, subject to and in accordance with the Debenture Trustee Agreement
and the Debenture Trust Deed, at the cost of the Issuer. No Debenture Holder shall be entitled
to proceed directly against the Issuer unless the Debenture Trustee, having become so bound to
proceed, fails to do so. The Debenture Trustee Agreement and the Debenture Trust Deed shall
more specifically set out the rights and remedies of the Debenture Holder(s) and the manner of
enforcement thereof.

Sharing of Information

The Issuer may, at its option, but subject to applicable laws, use on its own, as well as exchange,
share or part with any financial or other information about the Debenture Holder(s) available
with the Issuer, with its subsidiaries and affiliates and other banks, financial institutions, credit
bureaus, agencies, statutory bodies, as may be required and neither the Issuer nor its subsidiaries
and affiliates nor their agents shall be liable for use of the aforesaid information.

Debenture Holder not a Shareholder

The Debenture Holder(s) shall not be entitled to any right and privileges of shareholders other
than those available to them under the Act. The Debentures shall not confer upon the Debenture
Holders the right to receive notice(s) or to attend and to vote at any general meeting(s) of the
shareholders of the Issuer.

Modification of Debentures

The Debenture Trustee and the Issuer will agree to make any modifications in the Information
Memorandum which in the opinion of the Debenture Trustee is of a formal, minor or technical
nature or is to correct a manifest error.

Any other change or modification to the terms of the Debentures shall require approval by the
Debenture Holders in the manner as provided for in the Debenture Trust Deed.

Right to accept or reject Applications

The Issuer reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any application for
bid, in part or in full, without assigning any reason thereof in accordance with the Operational
Guidelines.

Notices

Any notice may be served by the Issuer / Debenture Trustee upon the Debenture Holders through
registered post, recognized overnight courier service, hand delivery or by facsimile transmission
addressed to such Debenture Holder at its / his registered address, e-mail or facsimile number.

All notice(s) to be given by the Debenture Holder(s) to the Issuer / Debenture Trustee shall be
sent by registered post, recognized overnight courier service, hand delivery, email or by
facsimile transmission to the Issuer or to such persons at such address / facsimile number as may
be notified by the Issuer from time to time through suitable communication. All correspondence
regarding the Debentures should be marked “Private Placement of Debentures”.

Notice(s) shall be deemed to be effective (a) in the case of registered mail; 2 (Two) Business
Days after posting via certified or registered mail, return receipt requested; (b) 1 (One) Business
Day after delivery by recognized overnight courier service, if sent for next Business day
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8.9
a)

b)

d)

delivery; (c) in the case of facsimile at the time when dispatched with a report confirming proper
transmission; (d) in the case of personal delivery, at the time of delivery; or (e) or in case of e-
mail at the time of the sending thereof (provided no delivery failure notification is received by
the sender within 24 hours of sending such email).

Issue Procedure
‘Who can bid?

Only Eligible Investors as given hereunder and identified upfront by the Issuer are eligible to
bid for this Issue.

All Eligible Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations/ guidelines applicable
to them for investing in this Issue in accordance with the norms approved by the Government of
India, RBI or any other statutory body from time to time, including but not limited to the
Operational Guidelines for investing in this Issue.

Right to Accept or Reject Bids

The Issuer reserves its full, unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any application for
bid, in part or in full, without assigning any reason thereof in accordance with the Operational
Guidelines.

How to bid?

Only Eligible Investors can register themselves as a one-time exercise (if not already registered)
under the NSE Bond — EBP Platform offered by NSE for participating in the electronic book
mechanism. Eligible Investors will also have to complete the mandatory KYC verification
process. Eligible Investors should refer to the Operational Guidelines. The details of the Issue
shall be entered on the NSE Bond — EBP Platform by the Issuer at least 2 (two) working days
prior to the Issue Opening Date, in accordance with the Operational Guidelines. The Issue will
be open for bidding for the duration of the bidding window that would be communicated through
the Issuer’s bidding announcement on the NSE Bond — EBP Platform, at least 1 (one) working
day before the start of the Issue Opening Date. Some of the key guidelines in terms of the current
Operational Guidelines on issuance of securities on private placement basis through an
electronic book mechanism, are as follows:

Some of the key guidelines in terms of the current Operational Guidelines on issuance of
securities on private placement basis through an electronic book mechanism, are as follows:

Modification of Bid:

Eligible Investors may note that modification of bid is allowed during the bidding period /
window. However, in the last 10 minutes of the bidding period / window, revision of bid is only
allowed for upward revision of the bid amount placed by the Eligible Investor.

Cancellation of Bid:

Eligible Investors may note that cancellation of bid is allowed during the bidding period /
window. However, in the last 10 minutes of the bidding period / window, no cancellation of bids

is permitted.

Multiple Bids:
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h)

»

k)

)

Eligible Investors are permitted to place multiple bids on the NSE Bond - EBP platform in line
with SEBI EBP Circular.

Manner of Bidding:

The details of the manner of the bidding shall be in accordance with the Operational Guidelines
and mentioned in the Information Memorandum and/ or as specified at the time of entering
details particular to the Issue on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform.

Manner of Allotment:

The allotment will be done in line with the Operational Guidelines and as mentioned in the
Information Memorandum and/ or as specified at the time of entering details particular to the
Issue on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform.

Manner of Settlement:

The settlement shall be in accordance with provisions of the Operational Guidelines and as
mentioned in the Information Memorandum and/ or as specified at the time of entering details
particular to the Issue on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform.

Settlement Cycle:

The process of pay-in of funds by investors and pay-out to Issuer will be done as per the
Operational Guidelines and as mentioned in the Information Memorandum and/ or as specified
at the time of entering details particular to the Issue on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform.

Withdrawal of Issue:

The Issuer may, at its discretion, withdraw the issue process on the conditions set out under the
Operational Guidelines. Provided that the Issuer shall accept or withdraw the Issue on the NSE
Bond — EBP Platform within 1 (one) hour of the closing of the bidding window, and not later
than 6 pm on the Issue Closing Date.

However, Eligible Investors should refer to the Operational Guidelines as prevailing on the date
of the bid.

The disclosure of estimated cut off yield (as defined in the Operational Guidelines) by NSE
Bond - EBP Platform to the Eligible Investors, pursuant to closure of the Issue, shall be at the
discretion of the Issuer. If the Issuer has withdrawn the Issue, the NSE Bond - EBP Platform
shall mandatorily disclose the estimated cut off yield to the Eligible Investors. Estimated cut off
yield should be disclosed on NSE Bond - EBP Platform at least one hour prior to the bid start
time. An Issuer may choose to disclose the estimated cut-off yield to all the Eligible Investors
before the bidding.

Application Size:

Applications for the Debentures are required to be for a minimum of 10 (ten) Debenture and
multiples of 1 (one) Debenture thereafter.

All Eligible Investors under the Operational Guidelines and subsequent Debenture Holders (who
shall purchase the Debentures in the secondary market) are required to consult their own
advisors in investing in the Debentures and comply with the relevant rules, regulations,
guidelines or notifications applicable to them for investing in the Debentures.
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a)

b)

©)

d)

e)

Offer or Issue of executed offer document to Successful Bidders

The offer document along with the Application Form will be issued to the successful bidders.
Successful bidders will be required to complete and submit the Application Form to the Issuer
in order to accept the offer of Debentures. No person other than the successful bidders to whom
the offer document has been issued by Issuer may apply for the Issue through the Application
Form received from a person other than those specifically addressed will be invalid.

Allocation and basis of Allotment
Provisional or Final Allocation

Allocation shall be made as per the Information Memorandum. Post completion of bidding
process, the Issuer will upload the provisional allocation on the NSE Bond - EBP Platform. Post
receipt of details of the successful bidders, the Issuer will upload the final allocation file on the
NSE Bond - EBP Platform.

Payment Instructions

The Application Form should be submitted directly. The entire amount of Rs. 10,00,000/-
(Rupees Ten Lakhs only) per Debenture is payable along with the making of an application.
Applicants can remit the application amount through RTGS on Pay-in Date. The RTGS details
of the Issuer are as under:

Beneficiary Name: Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Bank Account No. 57500000195104

IFSC CODE: HDFC0000572

Bank Name HDFC Bank

Branch Address: HDFC Bank Ltd, Vatika Atrium, "A" Block, Golf Course
Road, Sector - 53, Gurgaon - 122002 (Haryana)

Date of Subscription

The date of subscription shall be the date of realisation of proceeds of subscription money in the
designated account.

Settlement Process

Upon final allocation by the Issuer, the Issuer shall instruct the depositories on the Pay In Date,
and the Depositories shall accordingly credit the allocated Debentures to the demat account of
the successful bidder.

The Company shall give the instruction to the registrar for crediting the Debentures as per the
Operational Guidelines.

Post-Allocation Disclosures by the EBP

Upon final allocation by the Issuer, the Issuer shall disclose the Issue size, coupon rate, ISIN,
number of successful bidders, category of the successful bidder(s), etc., in accordance with the
Operational Guidelines. The EBP shall upload such data, as provided by the Issuer, on its
website to make it available to the public.

Eligible Investors
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The following categories of Investors, who have been specifically approached and have been
identified upfront, are eligible to apply for this private placement of Debentures subject to
fulfilling their respective investment norms / rules and compliance with laws applicable to them
by submitting all the relevant documents along with the Application Form:

a) Scheduled commercial banks in India;

b) NBFCs and RNBCs registered with RBI;

¢) Indian companies and Individuals;

d) Mutual Funds;

e) Rural regional banks in India;

f) Insurance companies registered with IRDA;

g) Financial institutions, including All India Financial Institutions;

h) Housing finance companies registered with the National Housing Board; and
Other eligible investors as per the concerned guidelines and regulations.

All potential Investors are required to comply with the relevant regulations / guidelines
applicable to them for investing in this issue of Debentures.

Note: Participation by potential Investors in the Issue may be subject to statutory and / or
regulatory requirements applicable to them in connection with subscription to Indian securities
by such categories of persons or entities. Applicants are advised to ensure that they comply with
all regulatory requirements applicable to them, including exchange controls and other
requirements. Applicants ought to seek independent legal and regulatory advice in relation to
the laws applicable to them.

Procedure for Applying for Dematerialised Facility

A.

The applicant must have at least one beneficiary account with any of the DPs of NSDL /
CDSL prior to making the application.

The applicant must necessarily fill in the details (including the beneficiary account
number and DP - ID) appearing in the Application Form under the heading “Details for
Issue of Debentures in Electronic / Dematerialised Form”.

Debentures allotted to an applicant will be credited to the applicant’s respective
beneficiary account(s) with the DP.

For subscribing to the Debentures, names in the Application Form should be identical to
those appearing in the details in the Depository. In case of joint holders, the names should
necessarily be in the same sequence as they appear in the account details maintained with
the DP.

Non-transferable allotment advice / refund orders will be directly sent to the applicant by
the R&T Agent to the Issue.

If incomplete / incorrect details are given under the heading “Details for Issue of
Debentures in Electronic / Dematerialised Form” in the Application Form, it will be
deemed to be an incomplete application and the same may be held liable for rejection at
the sole discretion of the Issuer.

For allotment of Debentures, the address, nomination details and other details of the
applicant as registered with his / her DP shall be used for all correspondence with the
applicant. The applicant is therefore responsible for the correctness of his / her
demographic details given in the Application Form vis-a-vis those with his / her DP. In
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case the information is incorrect or insufficient, the Issuer would not be liable for the
losses, if any.

H.  The Redemption Amount or other benefits would be paid to those Debenture Holders

whose names appear on the list of beneficial owners maintained by the R&T Agent as on
the Record Date. In case of those Debentures for which the beneficial owner is not
identified in the records of the R&T Agent as on the Record Date, the Issuer would keep
in abeyance the payment of the Redemption Amount or other benefits, until such time that
the beneficial owner is identified by the R&T Agent and conveyed to the Issuer,
whereupon the Redemption Amount and benefits will be paid to the beneficiaries, as
identified.

Depository Arrangements

The Issuer shall make necessary arrangement with NSDL for issue and holding of Debenture in
dematerialised form.

List of Beneficiaries

The Issuer shall request the R&T Agent to provide a list of beneficiaries as at the end of each
Record Date. This shall be the list, which will be used for payment or repayment of redemption
monies.

Application under Power of Attorney

A certified true copy of the power of attorney or the relevant authority as the case may be along
with the names and specimen signature(s) of all the authorized signatories of the Investor and
the tax exemption certificate / document of the Investor, if any, must be lodged along with the
submission of the completed Application Form. Further modifications / additions in the power
of attorney or authority should be notified to the Issuer or to its agents or to such other person(s)
at such other address(es) as may be specified by the Issuer from time to time through a suitable
communication.

In case of an application made by companies under a power of attorney or resolution or
authority, a certified true copy thereof along with memorandum and articles of association and
/ or bye-laws along with other constitutional documents must be attached to the Application
Form at the time of making the application, failing which, the Issuer reserves the full,
unqualified and absolute right to accept or reject any application in whole or in part and in either
case without assigning any reason thereto. Names and specimen signatures of all the authorized
signatories must also be lodged along with the submission of the completed Application Form.

Procedure for application by Mutual Funds and Multiple Applications

In case of applications by mutual funds and venture capital funds, a separate application must
be made in respect of each scheme of an Indian mutual fund / venture capital fund registered
with the SEBI and such applications will not be treated as multiple application, provided that
the application made by the asset management company / trustee / custodian clearly indicated
their intention as to the scheme for which the application has been made.

The application forms duly filled shall clearly indicate the name of the concerned scheme for
which application is being made and must be accompanied by certified true copies of

A.  SEBI registration certificate

B.  Resolution authorizing investment and containing operating instructions

C.  Specimen signature of authorized signatories
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8.19

8.20

8.21
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Documents to be provided by Investors

Investors need to submit the following documents, as applicable

Memorandum and Articles of Association or other constitutional documents
Resolution authorising investment

Power of Attorney to custodian

Specimen signatures of the authorised signatories

SEBI registration certificate (for Mutual Funds)

Copy of PAN card

Application Form (including EFT / RTGS details)

OMmOUN® >

Applications to be accompanied with Bank Account Details

Every application shall be required to be accompanied by the bank account details of the
applicant and the magnetic ink character reader code of the bank for the purpose of availing
direct credit of the Redemption Amount and all other amounts payable to the Debenture
Holder(s) through EFT / RTGS.

Succession

In the event of winding-up of the holder of the Debenture(s), the Issuer will recognize the
liquidator or such other legal representative of the Debenture Holder(s) as having title to the
Debenture(s).

The Issuer may, in its absolute discretion, where it thinks fit, dispense with production of such
other legal representation, in order to recognize such holder as being entitled to the Debenture(s)
standing in the name of the concerned Debenture Holder on production of sufficient
documentary proof and / or an indemnity.

Mode of Payment
All payments must be made through EFT / RTGS as set out in the Application Form.
Effect of Holidays

In case any Interest Payment Date falls on a day which is not a Business Day the payment to be
made on such Interest Payment Date shall be made on the immediately succeeding Business
Day. When the Redemption Date falls on a day which is not a Business Day, all payments to be
made on the Redemption Date (including accrued Coupon), shall be made on the immediately
preceding Business Day.

Tax Deduction at Source

Tax as applicable under the Income Tax Act, 1961, or any other statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof will be deducted at source. For seeking TDS exemption / lower rate of TDS,
relevant certificate / document must be lodged by the Debenture Holder(s) at the office of the
R&T Agents of the Issuer at least 15 (Fifteen) days before the relevant payment becoming due.
Tax exemption certificate / declaration of non-deduction of tax at source on interest on
application money, should be submitted along with the Application Form.

If any payments under this issuance is subject to any tax deduction other than such amounts as
are required as per current regulations existing as on the date of the Debenture Trust Deed,
including if the Company shall be required legally to make any payment for tax from the interest
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8.24

8.25

8.26

8.27
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/ coupon payable under the Issue, (“Tax Deduction”), the Company shall make such Tax
Deduction, and shall simultaneously pay to the Debenture Holders such additional amounts as
may be necessary in order that the net amounts received by the Debenture Holders after the Tax
Deduction shall equal the respective amounts which would have been receivable by the
Debenture Holders in the absence of such Tax Deduction.

Provided however, if such rate of Tax Deduction reverts to the increased rate existing prior to
June 1, 2013, the Company shall not be required to gross up, i.e., pay additional monies on
account of any Tax Deduction for any interest / coupon payments to the Debenture Holders, so
long as the holder of the Debentures is a FPI/ QFI / FIL It is clarified that any increase in the
Tax Deduction on interest/coupon payments exceeding the rate existing prior to June 1, 2013
will be grossed up only to the extent of the differential rate arising from such increase in Tax
Deduction and the rate existing prior to June 1, 2013.

Letters of Allotment

The letter of allotment, indicating allotment of the Debentures, will be credited in dematerialised
form within 2 (Two) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment. The aforesaid letter
of allotment shall be replaced with the actual credit of Debentures, in dematerialised form,
within 7 (Seven) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment or within such timelines
as permissible under applicable law.

Deemed Date of Allotment

All the benefits under the Debentures will accrue to the Investor from the specified Deemed
Date of Allotment.

Record Date
The Record Date will be 15 (Fifteen) days prior to any Payment Date.
Refunds

For applicants whose applications have been rejected or allotted in part, refund orders will be
dispatched within seven days from the Deemed Date of Allotment of the Debentures.

In case the Issuer has received money from applicants for Debentures in excess of the aggregate
of the application money relating to the Debentures in respect of which allotments have been
made, the R&T Agent shall upon receiving instructions in relation to the same from the Issuer
repay the moneys to the extent of such excess, if any.

Interest on Application Money

Interest shall be payable on all application monies received at the Interstate of 12.45% (Twelve
Decimal Point Four Five per cent) per annum from the date of realization of the application
monies by the Issuer until the Deemed Date of Allotment and the same shall be paid to the
relevant Investors within 15 (Fifteen) Business Days from the Deemed Date of Allotment.
PAN Number

Every applicant should mention its Permanent Account Number (“PAN”) allotted under Income

Tax Act, 1961, on the Application Form and attach a self-attested copy as evidence. Application
forms without PAN will be considered incomplete and are liable to be rejected.
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Payment on Redemption

Payment on redemption will be made by way of cheque(s) / redemption warrant(s) / demand
draft(s) / credit through RTGS system / funds transfer in the name of the Debenture Holder(s)
whose names appear on the list of beneficial owners given by the Depository to the Issuer as on
the Record Date.

The Debentures shall be taken as discharged on payment of the Redemption Amount by the
Issuer on maturity to the registered Debenture Holder(s) whose name appears in the Register of
Debenture Holder(s) on the Record Date. On such payment being made, the Issuer will inform
NSDL / CDSL and accordingly the account of the Debenture Holder(s) with NSDL / CDSL will
be adjusted.

On the Issuer dispatching the amount as specified above in respect of the Debentures, the
liability of the Issuer shall stand extinguished.

Disclaimer: The list of documents provided above is only indicative, and an investor is
required to provide all those documents/ authorizations/ information, which are likely to
be required by the Issuer. Investment by investors falling in the categories mentioned
above are merely indicative and the Issuer does not warrant that they are permitted to
invest as per extant laws, regulations, etc. Each of the above categories of investors is
required to check and comply with extant rules / regulations / guidelines, etc. governing or
regulating their investments as applicable to them and the Issuer is not, in any way,
directly or indirectly, responsible for any statutory or regulatory breaches by any investor,
neither is the Issuer required to check or confirm the same.
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SECTION 9: DECLARATION

The Issuer declares that all the relevant provisions in the regulations / guideline issued by SEBI and
other applicable laws have been complied with and no statement made in this Information Memorandum
is contrary to the provisions of the regulations / guidelines issued by SEBI and other applicable laws, as
the case may be. The information contained in this Information Memorandum is as applicable to
privately placed debt securities and subject to information available with the Issuer. The extent of
disclosures made in the Information Memorandum is consistent with disclosures permitted by regulatory
authorities to the issue of securities made by the companies in the past.

(a) the Company has complied with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
there under;

(b) the compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder does not imply that
payment of dividend or interest or repayment of debentures, if applicable, is guaranteed by the Central
Government; and

(©) the monies received under the offer shall be used only for the purposes and objects indicated in
this Information memorandum

I am authorized by the board of directors of the Company, vide board resolution dated November 28,
2019, to sign this form and declare that all the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder in respect of the subject matter of this form and matters incidental thereto have been complied
with. Whatever is stated in this form and in the attachments thereto is true, correct and complete and no
information material to the subject matter of this form has been suppressed or concealed and is as per
the original records maintained by the promoters subscribing to the Memorandum of Association and
Articles of Association.

It is further declared and verified that all the required attachments have been completely, correctly and
legibly attached to this form.

For Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Authorised Signatory
Name: Rashmi Mohanty
Title: Director

Date: August 31, 2020
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ol the chaegen, 1elem al wilcement, alfet |eter, o second of prvale placemenl ofers, Wl ihe Aeginrar of
Comparees and with respact (o any merigage o and, i regaier & with the relavant Sub Regaiar, and f2
LisA any ailnmal coneulimnt apprayed by tha Asisansad Officers | for ihe sama

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT fh Autharian Ofcars I ba and ars namby saveraly auharksd, & s ma
MG with BSEN HGE o complianes with o listing raquiremards #nd 1o do ol aifer things falatad
therete, 1o file of execibe wilh ary aulherty, ncluding the BSE, e NSE, ihe National Secunty Deposltony

ﬂrc;:rlllurulmmm Limited e s Capial
gE’.!i.mMFum mm’n %: :‘r:: rm“:::?:i“ﬂim“m daibs il ms m}'ﬁ?ﬂu#
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Lomiied [WNEOLT], hé Central Dapoaliony Sardedn (inia) Limibed (*COBL", and! or sy athar snily, & or
any sueh documents as may be reguined (o cempleds e prooess of msunnes, and! ar liling ef ihe NODa In
damatenalzed farn, io satie and maka paymants under the NCDe, tn pay any stamp duly relaied io te
MCDS, 1 BKE NESERRSry SRS (NoUMing, due HHpEncE of Sppocmtans foe eubeibieg e NCDS.
setilement, paymand and axecuhon al &l ather decumanss], papens), and appication|s] as may be
reequirad, and o ¢io all acts, dasds and Mings & may ba necessaEny ar ncidanial o ihe forgong

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT mir Aumorised Offcas 1| be and aoe Ty sevaially aullonsed, & oo ab
otha g ralated Aling o Awsculion wilh ny auharty, including thie BSE, e NSE, the Nalional Security
Ceaoiliony Linied ("HS0OLT, the Cantal Dapouiory Servced (India) Limited "COSL") and! @i mny cihe
enlify, ail or any auch decumants as may be requred to complala e process of allckment (Ingluding e.
BECATHY) af e ML N oesnaierialized fom,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Aushorised Officers | ba and are hereby authorised io, to the midant that
the limds prescrbed for the tssusnce of WCDe pursusnt b this resclufion of the Bosm hews nol bean
i, mwndicale o g of appiuaval of Um Dol o aucds farllio paiid o el a8 iay b i,
Irsctuadirgg ho this purpcded of complante wilh ipolcokie iy @' of regulatans of i RO

RESQOLVED FURTHER THAT officars as manfoned in Autherization Tabla 1, acting any tea jainty, am
authaeised 1o madily i Bst af pereon(s) in Aulhorzatian Table 3, rom lims o ime:

RESOLYED FURTHER THAT any one of the Directors o fhe Company Secelary be and i harsby
severally authorised b0 insus nalice o oonvane an s codnary ganeral mesling ol the sharshciders Gl the
Gwmﬂ: spprove by wit of 8 soecal fesciuiion en esuence of e NGO & requined, in accordance wilh
appilcatilo

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT mny ana af tha Oirectors o the Company Secretary bo and s haraby
gvarally miltorssd fo make steluloy and’ of reguialory Bings for ihe lssuance of fhe NCDs s
eontamalaled hergin

RESOLVED FLURTHER THAT any ane of e Dirscior, dhe Cheel Financial officer andd of the Company
Emmﬂ of the Company e and are heraby savermdy authonssd @ certify & copy of ihe faregaing
reschilions s irus

Clix Sarvices Privabe Limited
BOIN, U Mair, Two Horome Center, DLF Paaen W, . 122003, b
Ll '!J-I-luullglr‘i'rlrull III-I-“-"FT: u; (LT ll--: ||'l|!|r |erm:u Y Mlml CU NI S .,E’ﬂw
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ANNEXURE II: SHAREHOLDER RESOLUTION

LK

e — e
CERTFIED TR GOPT OF THE REBCLUTION FASSTD I THE EXTRA ORDMKARY GENRRAL MEETING OF THE
SHARZHOLDERE {"EGWT) OF CLIX GAPITAL BERVICES PRIVATE LAWNTED {*THE COMPAKY"} HELD ON
THUREDAY, DECEMOER 24, 218 FROM 4104 .M. TO &13 PRL AT BOARD RODNM, BN 0, BTH FLOGR, THO
HORIZON GENTAE, DLF FHASE-V, GURUGRAM 123002

PRESOUVED THAT subiect b the prerisloss of Section 42, &2 of the Cospasies ACt 2013 ard otherapploale pendslon,
iF g, of the Companans fet, B013 aad the rules thereonder, the cormsant of the shanehoiders be s i3 besaky aceandied
v thar oand of Directors of the Company or a committes appointad by the board of Direston of any persanlz)
authoraed by e Baard of Tireciars, to raise fonds o reit e Tupding requirements for the Insiness activitis of the
Company ty wy of esancy, on 3 private placament basis, of rated) unresed, sted J nlisted, seouredfunsecured,
redemmably won-conversbie debentures (Debentunes”], In one or mon: Srandhes iswances on wach terms and
condikions i mery be debermined by the Board of Direciors of the Compesy &f @ commithes appointed by the Board of
tievctors, provided thatthe sggregabe smounm raised throuph the Issuanss of such Dabestures pursuant 1o the authority
wathes this resoution shall net essesd R, 3000 Crones /- [Rupees Thees Theward Cromes onlyl and wech isssance shall be
i accordanee wih o appkeasdn liw ard nogulations, the Memorardim and Articies of Assocation of the Campany; ind
Wi Fsting apreement with tha cedeviat stock axchanges, iFany,

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Reard of Direchors of the Company o & committee appeinted by the Board of Directors
or oy parseniy) st hetizad by the Boand of Dinectons ke sed i herety authortsed b finil e tha terms and canditons to
|5z The Evebeniu s and do any and 2l suck s, deads sed things a5 may be nicisary to gie etiect to this resabibion,
inciusding bry Szhigating the authonty confamed by this resolutlon.

UESLNYED FURTHER THAT any of the dinecter of the Company Secretery of the Comeany & herely ot hostrad 1o lbue a
e liledd true copy of these réaokgiens.

ALZISE

[ooh

Clix Cogital Sarvizes Frioto Limtad eyt | g (L]

Fi, Canbor, L] v i LR, B helaScks canitel
ﬁ'ﬂ..“‘;’,‘.?...“.l.'.’.'.“ ﬁﬂ‘uu.uﬁ.»ﬂ?ﬁ‘ﬂﬂ:—%amq:m— 1 by 807 134 TS0
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ANNEXURE III: RATING LETTER & RATING RATIONALE
" Brickwork Ratings India Pvt. Ltd.

ks
) . L * Ground floor, Building No - 5 14, 5olitaire
| ' I'ICkwark Corporate Park, Guru Hargovind]i Marg,
# = Chakala, Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093
Tppn® P +9122 2831 1426/39 | F +91 22 2838 9144

BWR/NCD//CRC/VYD/0248/2020-21
20 August zoz0
Mr. Naveen Khurana
Treasary Head,
Clix Capital Services Pvt Lid
Bo1B, Bth Floor,
Two Horizon Centre,
DLF Phase-5, Gurgaon, Harvana

Diear Sir,

Sub: Validation of Rating — NCD agzregating to Rs. 150 Crs of Clix Capital Services Pvt Ltd rated by Brickwork
Ratings.

Ref: Your Email dated 19 Angust 2020

We hereby confirm the validity of the ratings and a list of outstanding ratings of various debt instruments rated by

Brickwork Ratings along with their respective validity dates are as per the table below:
Amount Amonnt Last Rating/
Instoruments Rated Omstanding Tenure |Review date| Ratngs [Validity Date
(Rsin Crs)| (Rsin Crs)
NCD 150 25 Long Term |17 June 2020 EWE AA- 16 June 2021
Negative
Total 150 25 INR One Hundred and Fifty Crores Only

Instruments with this rating are considered te have High degree of safety regarding timely servicing of financial
obligations. Such instruments carry very low credit risk.

Please note that all the terms and conditions of our earlier letter BWER/NCD/CRC/VYD/o127/2020-21 dated 17 June
2020 remains unchanged.,

On completion of borrowing, please furnish details of security creation and other aspects related to the borrowing.

Best Regards,

2
o = £
\_{{ﬁ A
Y
Vydianathan Ramaswamy

Director and Head-Financial Sector Ratings

Note: Hating Hationale of all nccepted Rotings nre published on Brickwork Batings wehsite. All non-accepted ratings are also published on Bridkwark
Ratings web-site . Interested persons are well mivised o refer tno oor website www. briclworkratings. com. If they are unable to view the raticnmale,
they nre requested to inform us on brickwarkhelp brickworkratings. com.

Disclnimer: Brickwork Ratings (EWR) has assigned the mting bazed an the informaticm obtained from she issoer and other relabie spames, which are deemed tmbe
accarate. BWR has taken considersble steps to owoid any datn distortion; boewever, it does oot examine the poedsion or completeness of the information ohtained.
And henee, the informatinn in this repart is presented “se is” withoat any express or impled warmnty of amy kind. BWE does not make any repiresentation in respect
tm the truth or accuracy of any such information, The mting assgned by BWR shoald be troated o5 an opinion rather than a recommendation to by, sell or hold the
rated instrument and BWR shall not be Tiable for any nsses incurred by users from amy use of this repart or its contents. EWE has the right to change, suspend o
withdraw the ratings at asy time for any Teasoms.

atings.com | CIN: Ue7 190K PTCO43591




£

» L .
l - % * k—ﬂ'
|}rickwor

® L=

¥ Py 1“‘

Fanng Eazionals
Cliz Czpical Services PraLid
17 Jume 2020

Brickwark Eadng: aztign: BWE AA-Negative rating ro the proposed NCD izzue of Clix Capital
Services Pt Lied

Particulars:
Amount rated
NCD 150 Long Term BWE AA- Negative
Torsl 150 INE One Huadred snd Fifry Crore Only

"Please il o BWE weleic s fead eorbog i oy i delmmilnm f tie rilings
Rafings: Assignment
BATING ACTION OUTLO:OE

Brickwezk Fatingn (BWE] asdgn: the rating of EWR AA-Negative omtleck for the propessd
MNem-Comventible Debsnmre (NCD) inwmes of Clix Caprnal Senacss P Led

RationaleDescription of Key Fating DriversFafing senstivities:

For amrivizg at it rading, BWER has cemsclidated the busingss and Emancial risk profiles of Clix Capital
Services Pyt Lad (Chix Capital or the cozmpany), i sebsidianes Clix Fimance Indis Pt Led {Clix Finance)
and Clix Housizg Finance Pvt Lid (Clix Houdng). The consclidated approach is because Clix Finance
and Clix Housing 2 100% subsidiaries of Clix Capital and bapefitn fom 2 commmon management
oversight and a soong operational and financial megration.

BWE ha: principally mebied on amdited fimancals upro FY19, uneadited fimamcials of FY20, publichy
wwatlable informaation and infomeation/'clarifcaticns provided by the company.

*FY'70 mumber: are unandited 1
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Tha rating imiur alia factors in Clix Capital’s strong sponses profile and experienced managomans, hoalthy
capitaliration, diversifisd mescorce profils and satisfactory assst gualify. The ratings ere howeves,
comstrained by the meoderate scels of operations, risk smanating from exposere to melxtvely rskior
wusacarad 3ME and consamer loans segment fondisg.

The Mogative caetflook 15 on accomnt of an axpectad mpact of collectines end recovery from lean azsets of
Clix Capital comsolidated, des to the COVID-1% impact, mamby on the SME and consumsr Snzncs
product segmants, which 2z an mdusery wide srue, and the reszltant impect on the overall credst profils of
Chx Capital over tha near term.

Descriprion of Ksy Raring Drivers

Credit Strensths:

Strong sponsor profile snd experiesced management: Clix CTapitel is becked by AIDN Capital
Pastmers Limised (AJOE Capital), baving a majonity sharsbolding im the compazy. AIDN Capital
is a smategic parmership botwoess Apolle Global Manzgemant LLC azd ICICT Venmre Funds
Management Company. Clix cepital and ifs sebsidiaries 2me expecied to benafit from the backing
of & strong spossor, Righ levol of mvolvensext of iy prmcipal promotars and their expartiss m the
financial sarvices space. Tho board and top mapapumant of Clix Capital amd its subsidieras
firance, with sigeificent and relsvant expariencs. The prossoters, Mr. Pramod Ehasiz end Mr.
And Chawla, has axsssive sxparisnce o budding and runsing similer bosinesses 2od has bess
essociabed with Gezaral Elsctzic (GE) WEFCs 2=d Gempact for several yeass in te past.

Healthy capitslizsation: Chx Capifal azd itz subsidsarnos caputz] position 2 hoalthy 2x reflectod m.
requirement  ig. Chx Capitel kad a Capetal io Bisk Weightsd Assets Raso (CRAR) of ~273%,
Clix Fipance kad a CRAR of ~44.3% azd Clix Housing had & CRAR of ~41_ 5%, as of 31 Marck
203, Chx Capitel bad a consolidated net worth of Bs 17835 Cr as of 31 March 2015 which was
farther augmented by equity mising of Bz 194 Or in the fnencial year 2020 Cnerall gearmg oz e
ponsolidated lewvel is expected o be bow at < 2 Fx 25 om 31 March 2020, 25 agzinss 2 3x 25 an 31
Mar 2015 EWE belisves Clix Capdinl’s capitelisation profile & comfostable to cover for any
zssat risks and fo pursos portfolio growth over the medinm term.

Well diversified resonrce profile: Az of sed of Mearch 3020, Clx Capitel comsolidated
bocrowing wes approx. Bs 3400 Croms otk ~53%4 of berowings from banksWBFCs and ~47%
of bomrowimgs via Capital market mstuments. Chix Capite] bas demvonstrabed geod dabi raising
copability over the pericd at competitive rates, with the repaymsnt tenor being keog-tarm im
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» Comfortsble ssset quality: The asmet guality of Clix Capite] consolidated is comforizbla, as

refiscted i the gross noo-parforming assass (WPAL) improvizg to ~14% as per 31 Bar 2020,

from 2.5% as om 31 March 201%. MPA was contribaied prmsly from a single Eigh-Scked

sxposurs loam, where the legel procesdings are m progress. On 2 standabone basis, Clix Capital

has 2 low gross WPA of ~]1 1%, Clix Fimence ks 2 modammte gross MPA of ~2.2% aed Clix

Housing has mil gross NPA as per 31 March 2020, Addisonally, the trazsition of Clix Cagprital

conselidated portfalio from a 100% corporais lending book as of FY17 fo 2 ~73% reixil linding

portfolio 23 of 31 March 3020, has reduced the portfolio risk emezating dus to Eigh ccker

exposames. Clix Capital™s shility to memege amsst guelity 2z § scales bosmacs acooss prodoct
sagnssais will be a key ratmg conitarabla.

Credis Risks:

s Rtk emamatimg dwe o erpooore to SAE asd consmmer loams: Coropavirns dissase
[COVID-18), declarsd a pandemic by the World Hoslth Crganization (WHO). has becoms 2
Fall-blown crisis globally, incleding = Indsa. COVID-19 has impacted the demestic economy of
India, as the mation kad goes e Jockdewn from 24 Masch 2020 cowerds (later cooverted to
partial lockdown in verions wztes). Dos o the sconomic slowdown, Tetwil low-moome bomowsr
mgments, mif-employed professomals and EME businesses, ansong others are sapecisd to b
impaciad.

Clix Capital cossolidwied had approximasiely 26% oxposors om SME md 24% oxposums o=
consemer frasce businessms 2s of 31 Marck 2020, With moratonnm extension, the SME and
conszmer boazs cogmants may wimsss potansial siress oo collsctons izt naar term. Howover,
the overall impect cx the portfolic pesformance of Chx Capital and its subsidianes is expected to
b limited dus to SOVID-19 crisis, and the s will reosaim 2 key rating mozitorabis.

s Moderate scale of operations: Clix Capital consalideted hes Assets Under Mazagameat (AT

of ~Bx $500 Croms, with operations spread acress 13 states as of 31 March 2020, The company &
in & growth phass, and is sxpending its portfolio oo retail landing, wiils redocing its exponmes oo
corparzts lozns, The viztege of Clix Capital consolidated o= tho retzil kading portfolio & lomised,
2nd the perforeasce of the s2me will remoein & key ratizg moasiorzhle. The company”s abdify 1o
budld ity retzil loan portfolio inchiding that i Clix Housing Finance will be 2 key monitorabls.

Amnalyricsl Appreach

For amiving at itc ratings, EWE has comshinad the businoss azd financial misk prefilos of Clix Capital

Sarvices Pt Lad, its subsidiarios Clix Financs Indés Pvt Ltd and Clix Housing Financo Pt Lad, and hag

ipplied ifs rabmg mathodology 25 detailed im the Ratmg Crituria balow (kyvperlinks provided 22 the and of

this rationals).

*F¥20 smnbers are ansndited 3
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comprnng AION Caprtal Partners {part ef Apolle Glebal Maregement], 2long with br. Pamod Bhaum
(founder and ex-CEQ of Geopect, ex-CED of GE Capiml) and Mr. Axil Chewla (ex-CEO of GE
Commarcial Finanra) scopumired the fimncial bwingss of GF GF Capital and GF Money were rebramded
2s Cix Fmnance and Clizx Capimal, whils mfaming the wemior managemont roles o ensare wmooth
taxition. Chix Heoating was 2 new antity sdded to focas on merngage’ bonsing fnance prodncts. Clix

Frnancs and Clix Housing are 100% subsidiaries of Chix Capital

Clix Capatal ceasolidaded has a wali-diversified portfolio witk a comsolidated AUM of approx. Fs #5600 Cr
as of 31 March 2020, The amsat class mix includes Corpomte Leoding (27% of comobdated portfoko).
SME (26% of comsolsdated portfelio), Commmer Loans (24% of consolidared portfolic) Haealthcars
Fumpmcing {10% of coasolidsted portfolico), Axto Leate and Two-wheelar (7% of consclidated portfolin)
and Honsing (7%« of comsobidated pardfolio).

Clix Capital Service: Private Limited is 2 Syaemically Important MNon-Bazking Fmance Company
{MBFC-ND-5T), with an ATUM of ~ Ei 3130 Cm, and operations spread acress 14 sixrtes, 16 branches with
over B7k live accounts as of 31 March 2020, Products offured includs Corpemaie Landizg, SME Lending
— (Busimest Leant, Loan mgainet Flectronic payments, School Finance), Retxil Landing — (Parsomal
Leams, Two-whesier Loans).

Cx Finencs Indis Prvats Limdited is a NEFC, with an AUM of ~ s 1423 Cn. 2nd with operatons
wpread across 15 states, 17 branches, with over 85k live accounts as of 31 MAarch 2000, Products offarsd
include Haalthcars Fquipeant financing Digital Fetedl Landing (Personal Loams, Auto Loaze).

Clix Housing has a portfolic of ~ B 226 Cm, spread across § states and B branches: as of 31 March 2020
Prodacts offured mchude Home loams {(~74% of the portfolic)l, Loan Against Property (LAF) &
Commerrial LAP.

Clix Capital Fimancial Performance

As por FT'2 mandised zmmbers, Total incoms from operaticons: i at~ Bs 463 Crin FY 210 {ac s 353 Cr
in FY1¥) Earning mdicators are moderate, bat oo 2o mmproving tejectory with the ROA at ~ 1.3% as of
FY210 {at ROA of 0.3% m FY1%). The NIM ks improved to approximstaly 7.1% m FY2 from 5.5% =
FY1%, dus to 2= increase m yisld by approx 2.7% derng the percod.

n

*FY 2 pumbers: are nnamdited
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FY17 FY1S FYI9
Particulsrs Unitz k E
Andieed | | Audited (indas)
aCaap | Aedited (ndts)
[ep— 3. Croms 16687 16712 16813
s %, Cromes 4163 7 32
opeatioms
PAT % Cromes 357 106 74
AT % Cromes s ¥at 058
CRAR % 8O 381 319
@PA % 195 5§ 41
Fev Fizancisl Figares (Chiz Capital -Consolidated)
FYI18 FVI9
Particelsrs Tty
Awtited Andted
[r— B, Croms 1667 76 17955
T Fi. Croma 29881 67378
opeTations
PAT Fi. Cromes 83 L0625
Eves Fis. Croves 3994 1085
50 % 3% 1%

*FY'20 sumbers are unandied
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Fadng History for the Eacr three vears:

Amount
Trpe (Bs Fatimg | 201% | 2018 | 2007
Creres)
L BWERE A4-
1 NeD =g 190 | Megative - x 2
. 5
Toeal 13 Eupee: Oze Hundred and Fifiy Crore

Hyperlink Feference to applicable Criteria

s General Criteria

*FY 2 sumbsers are unandied T
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For print and digjral media The Fating Fatiomle iu sem to you for the sole porpess of @usmination through yeur
peint, digital ar electronic media. Whils it mry b med by you acknoadedgng coedit to BWE., pleass do mot chonps:
bmmﬂnmbmmrdmmlmﬁ&nmﬂmwhmlmim
B the sole nght of shamng (hoth direct and imdirect) i rationalas for- or cthermise deongh oy pom
or alpcomic or digital media

Abowt Brickwork Eating: Brickarork Racing: (BWE), a SZBI mgmoamed Crod: Raring Agency. accrdined by REI
and smpansied by WAIC, offem Bank Lean NCD, Commercial Fapar, MSME mtngs and grading semvicas.
HABARD b sepamoled Brickwork for BT and NG gnding. BWE. &s acoredited by IREDA & the Ministry of
Now and Faagrorable Enargy (MNEE), Goverzeeer of India. Bockoork Ravtings has Canara Bazk, 2 leading prblic
wector hank. as i promoter and wraegic partaer. BWE b its corporate office in Bangalurs and a comiry-wids
presemce Witk it offbces in Abmedabad, Clandorh Chormai, Hydenbad, Koliate, Merbad and New Diallo aleng
mihmmwm!‘ﬂ*km:

Iepzar and cther rlable soeroes, which ane deamned b he accomia. mhsﬂumﬂuﬁhmmnﬂdm
datz disiortion; bowsver, it doss ot wmmine the precision or commpletenes: of the information obdained. Axd hancs,
e fnmeartion in this repost 1 presemted “a 7 withowt ey wrpress of mphied warmanty of amy kind. SRR, does
zot malos any TepTAniaton in reepect to the outh o accracy of any much informefion. The rating avdazned by
BWE. shoeld bo tuated as mn opinion rather them 3 mcommandation to by, sl or hold the red imstrumant and
BWE. shall not be liabis for amy bosses incurred by nsn Som amy use of fis epost or 1 conan. BHE has d
night to change, suspend or withdroar the ratings at amy tinsa for oy reasons.

*FY'2 sumber: are unandiied 8

78



@3{1@' Ratings

rafrmam pl Bk Ciiphr

CARE/DROJRL/ 2020-21/ 1883

FIr. Naveen Khurana

Treasury Lesder

Clix Capital Services Pwt Lhd.

S048, 5 Foar, Two Horizon Centre,
DLF Fiase W, Gurgeon — 112000

August 12, 2020
Lonfigentisl
D Sir,
Credit rating for Mon-Convertible Debenture and Market Link=d
Debenture issue

Plezse refer to your reguest for rating of proposed long term nor-oconvertible deberture {NCD)

issue and market inked debenture issue szprepsting to R 300 crore of your company.

The folbowing ratings hawe been assigned by our Rating Committee:

Instrument Amount Rating’ Rating Action
|R=. crore)
Frooossd Hon-Comeeriibls 200 CARE &4 Stabis .!.sni.E;r'.eu
Debenture iszue [Rupess Twao [Sirgle A Faus; Outhock:
Hundred Crone anky] Stabie]
Frooose=d Market Linked 100 CARE PP-MLD A4 Siabie :JF:EI"-EU
Debenture issue [Rupee One [Principal
Hundred Crone only] | Frotected Mariet Linked
Diebernture Single A
Plus: Dutiook: Stabke]

‘Compietn dafinthions of the notings rmigaed o ovolokio of WY COTGNORNgS cOMm o 0 Obhar CARE

puhkentions.
CARE Fatme=s Lid

CORPORATE OFFICE: 2* Floor, Godrg) Colivenm, 13th Floar, E-1 Elock, Videoonn Tower

Sommaryy Bospital Foad, 0F Festen Frgpress Highean: Faandeuabm Fxiemaon, Mew Dl - 110

Sion (), Do - 400 022, a5

Tal: +51-22- 6734 3456 ». Foor: +90-22- (22 679 3457 Tk +51-11-4733 3200 » Fax +91-114733

Exmil: comuiicaromims com. » S0 CEDRIRETES. CoE 3138
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3. Please arrange to pet the rating revafidated, in case the proposed issue & ot made

within & period of six months from the date of our initial communication of rating to you
{that is August 12, 2020).
4. in caze there iz any change in the size or terms of the proposed izsue, please zet the

rating resadidated.

5. Please inform us the below-mentioned detedls of issue immediately, but not iater than 7

days from the date of placing the instrument:

Instrsment | ISIN | Iszue | Coupon | Coupon Termzof | Rederaphon | Name and Desbedls
typ= Soe | Rste | Payment | Redemption date contact of top 10
(Rs Dates. deteils of | imesions

o} Dehenture:

Trustee

6. Eindly arrange to submit to u= & copy of esch of the documents permining to the KCD

issue, induding the offer document and the trust deed.

7.  The rationale for the rating will be communicated to you separately. A write-up {press
release} on the abowve rating is proposed to be issued o the press shortly, a draft of
which is enclosed for your perusal as Annesure. We reguest you to peruse the annexed
document and offer your commenis if any. We are doing this a5 a matter of courtesy to
our dlients and with & view to ensure that no factusd inacoursoies have inadvertently
crept in. Kindly revert as early as possible In any case,  we do not hear from you by

Hspe=z 12, 2020, we will proceed on the basis that you have no zny comments to offer

8. CARE reserses the right to undertake 2 sureeillznoefreview of the mting from time to
time, based on circumstsnoes warranting such reviews, subject to at least one sudh

reviewy surveiflance every year.

5. CARE reserves the right to revise/reaffirm/fwithdraw the rating assigned as also reviss the

gutlook, as a result of periodic review/surveillance, baszed on any event or information

CARE Rating: Ltd

13th Floor, E-1 Block, Tideccos Tower, Thandawalan Fxereacs, Mew Dalbi - TLO0FS
Tal: +00-11-4333 3200 » Faox +91-10-4333 3238
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which in the opinion of CARE warrants such an action. In the event of failure on the part
of the entity to fumish such information, materal or clarifications as may be reguired by
CARE zo as to enable it to casmmy out continuous monitonng of the. mting of the debt
instrument, CARE shall carry out the review on the basis of best awvailable information
throughout the life time of such instrument. In such cases the oedit rating symibod shall
b= accompanied by "ISSUER NOT OOOPERATING™. CARE shall o be entitled to
publicize/tisserminate all the afore-mentioned rating ations in any manner consdered

appropariate by it, without reference to you.

10, Our ratings do not factor in sy ratng related trigper classes as per the terms of the
facilityfinstrument. which may irvohve accelerateon of payments in case of rating
downgrades. However, if any such dauses are introduced and if triggered, the ratings
may ses wolstility and sharp downgrades

11. Users of this rating may kindly refer our website www.careratings.com for latest update

on the outstanding rating.
12. CARE ratings sre not recommendations to buy, sell or hold any seourties.
If you need any clarfiztion, you are weicome to spproach us in this regerd. We are indeed,
grateful to you for entrusting this assignment to CARE.
Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

A .-}-.'.l

A

[hyoti Rautela] [Fhubha Bhanu]

Deputy Manager Senior Manager
jyotirautelaiflcareratings.com shubhsz.bhanu reratings.com

CARE Fatmes Ltd

13th Floar, -1 Block, Videccon Towear, Thandewalan Pxtancion, New Dalhi - T10 055
Tel: 70E-11-4533 3200 » Fax +91-11-2533 3138
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ANNEXURE IV: CONSENT LETTER FROM THE DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

CATALYST @]1

Balteve in yoursel., Trust usl

HTEACLAUM20-2 FIERS 199

Tuly 14, 2020

To,

Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Company)

4th floor, Kailash Building, Kasturba Gandhi Marg,
Connaught Place, New Delhi -110001

Dear Sir,

Consent to act as Debenture Trustee for Rated, Secured, Redeemable, Listed, Non-
convertible Debentures aggregating upto Rs, 60 Crores to be issucd by the Company

This is with reference o the discussions in respect of appointment of Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
{CTL) to act as Debenture Trustee for the Rated, Secured, Redeemable, Listed, Non-convertible
Debeniures apprepating upto Rs, 60 Crores (o be issued by the Company. In this conneclion, we
are apreeable 1o act as Trustee on the following trusteeship remuneration:

Acceptance fees R=. 125,000/ plus applicable taxes (One Time Non-Refundable payvable
an apEHntment as trustes).

All out of pocket expenses incurred towards legal Tees, travelling, mspection charpes, ete shail be
levied and re-imbursad on actusl hasis.

We accepl the above terms.

Authoriced Signatory

NOTE: As per GST goidelines, CTL would be required to pay the applicable GST on the
amounts { charges payahle fo s as indicated above. Please note that the Company
would be liable to pay all soch charges cven in the event of cancellation of the
aforesaid transaction. Therefore, no refund of any statutory dues already paid wouold

e madde,

A TS0 Cadvguiny

CATALYET TRUSTEESHIP LIMITEL Fiictieis c6 8usiigh e i
AL il Off e Wintice, 8 Flocr, Offcs Mo 806, 5T, Road, Kaling San b [Exst] Mured 500 090 Tal «01 [DZZ] 4022 U553 Fan 131 002) 4522 0505 E
Rugel. Office GOA HMouse, Plot Mo 85, R Colory Right L Paud fead, Pune 411 058 Tel +31 10700 352000871 Fax <07 20} 25280275 =
Dk O#fice Cffics No. 110, B2k Foar, Kallash Buliding, 7, Kasturba Gandhl Marg, Mo Doflé - 110000 Tal 11 £30 2900103, ﬁ
CIN Ho. LY CI0EEZ Frmadl o waarw ca talysttruston com

o
Puss | Mumbai | Bengslura | Delhi | Chaneal
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CATALYST @l

Believe in pourselfl.. Trust us!

TR LA UM20-2 VIERA199
July 14, 2020

To,

Clix Capital Serviees Private Limited (Company)
41h floor, Kailash Building, Kastorba Gandhi Marg,
Connaught Place New Delhi - 110001

[ear Sir,

Consent to act as Debenture Trustee Tor Raied, Secored, Redeemalle, Listed, Non-
convertible Debentures aggregating upte Rs, 60 Crores to be issued by the Company

This is with reference to the discussions in respect of appaintment of Catalyst Trusteeship Limited
to act as Debenture Trustee for the Rated, Secured, Redeemable, Listed, Mon-convertible
Debentures agpregating upto Rs, 60 Crores to be issved by the Company. In this connection, we
are agreeable o act as Trustee on the erms and conditions as mutually agreed between the Trustee

and the Company.

The Company and the Trustee shall enter into relevant trustee agreements and other necessary
documents for the aforesaid issue of NCDs and also agrees & wndertakes to comply with the
provisions of the SEBI (Debenture Trustees) Repulations, 1993, SERI (1ssue and Listing of Delbt
Securities) Regulations, 2008, 5EBI (Listing Obligations and Discloswre  Requirements}
Regulations, 2005, as may be amended lrom time o time, SEBI Circular Mo,
CICFYOCMDG2015 dated October 13, 2015 and the Listing Agreement pursuant thereio to be
executed with Bombay Stock Exchange(BSEW Mational Steck Exchange{MNSE), the RBI Circular
Mo, REI2012-153/560 dated June 27, 20013, the Companies Act, 2003 and any other applicable
statutes, regulations and provisions as amended from time o time,

The Company shall enter inlo Agreement with Trustee as required by Regulation |3 of SEBI
{Debenture Trustee) Regulations, 1993 thereby agresing 1o create the security within three months
from the date of elosure of issue or in accordance with the Companies Act, 2003 or as per the
provisions as prescribed by any regulatory authority as applicable and comply with the provisions
of applicable laws.

We are also agreeable for inclusion of our name as wustees in the Company's offer
document/disclosere document’ listing application/any other document to be filed with the Stock

BATALYST TRUSTEESHIP LIMITED rotunny cou toarmnnss ssrrm fon ISCERON Comanry
Mumbai Ofice Windsor, & Floor, S0ce Ho. 505, C8.T. Reod. Holima, Sertecna (East] Murnbe 500 030 Tel«0 (23] 4807 0555 Fax @) HE] 4R 0505 m
Ragd, O#fice GOA House, Fiot Mo. 85, Bhusar] Colang (Rigktl Paod Rose, Pune £17 008 Tel <87 ME00 2EXE0081 Fax 50 (1200 25200275

Dafhl Cffice  OMoe Ko, ST, Bk Fleor, Kailash Bulilieg, 28, Kasturhe Cancdsi Marg, Bew Dalhi - 110001 Ted 11 430 2010102

CIN Mo, UT4SSs@ IR0 TRLCoDe: Emall dt
Pang | Memnbel | Bengeleed | Oels | Channed

oo
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ANNEXURE V: CONSENT LETTER TO THE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT

| . Link Intime India Pvt. Lid
[ 1 t l r T‘] CIN : UBT1 BIMHAB30FTE 113308
; €- 101, 247 Fark, LBS. Marg,
vi
']

khrol (Weart), Mumbal - 400 083
LB PR LR ]
Fo ;491 22 4918 €063
E-mall : miumba inkintiee oln
Wikl e 1w blrmome ool

24 Aug 2020

To

Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Kailash Building,Unit A & B,4th Floor, 26,
Kasturba Gandhi Marg,

Barakhamba Road,

New Delhi-110001

Dear 5ir/Madam,

Sub.: Consent to act as Registrar to the Proposed issue of "Secured Rated Redeemable Listed Non-
Convertible Debenturss OF Face Value Of Rs. 10 Lakh Each For Cash At Par upto To Rs. 60
Crores to be issued on private placement basis

We refer to the subject issue and hereby accept our appointment as ‘Registrar’ for
Electronic Connectivity Provider to issue of "Secured Rated Redeemable Listed Mon-Convertble
Debentures” Of Face Value Of Rs. 10 Lakh Each For Cash At Par upto To Rs. 60 Crores and
give our consent to incorporate our name as "Registrar to the Issue”™ in the offer
documents.

Our Permanent SEBI Registration No.: INROO0DD4058,
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ANNEXURE VI: APPLICATION FORM

CLIX CAPITAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED
A company incorporated with limited liability under the Companies Act, 1956 Date of Incorporation:
11 February 1994
Registered Office: 4th floor, Kailash Building, Kasturba Gandhi Marg,Connaught Place New Delhi
North East DL 110001 INTelephone No.: 0124 330 2000

Website: www.clix.capital

| DEBENTURE SERIES APPLICATION FORM SERIALNO. [1] | [ | [ | [ | |

(][]
DEBENTURE SERIES APPLIED FOR:

Number of Debentures  In words

Amount Rs. /- in words Rupees Crores Only

DETAILS OF PAYMENT:
RTGS
No. Drawn on

Funds transferred to Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Dated

Total Amount Enclosed
(In Figures) (In words)

APPLICANT’S NAME IN FULL (CAPITALS) SPECIMEN SIGNATURE

APPLICANT’S ADDRESS
ADDRESS
STREET
CITY
PIN PHONE FAX

APPLICANT’S PAN/GIR NO. AAICM0721B IT CIRCLE/WARD/DISTRICT
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WE ARE () COMPANY ( ) OTHERS ( ) SPECIFY

We have read and understood the Terms and Conditions of the issue of Debentures including the Risk
Factors described in the Memorandum and have considered these in making our decision to apply. We
bind ourselves to these Terms and Conditions and wish to apply for allotment of these Debentures. We
request you to please place our name(s) on the Register of Holders.

Name of the Authorised Designation Signature
Signatory(ies)

Applicant’s
Signature

We the undersigned, are agreeable to holding the Debentures of the Company in dematerialised form.
Details of my / our Beneficial Owner Account are given below:

DEPOSITORY NSDL () CDSL ()
DEPOSITORY PARTICIPANT NAME
DP-ID

BENEFICIARY ACCOUNT NUMBER
NAME OF THE APPLICANT(S)

Applicant Bank Account:

(Settlement by way of Cheque / Demand Draft
/ Pay Order / Direct Credit / ECS / NEFT /
RTGS / other permitted mechanisms)

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)

We understand and confirm that the information provided in the Information Memorandum is provided
by the Issuer and the same has not been verified by any legal advisors to the Issuer, and other
intermediaries and their agents and advisors associated with this Issue.

We understand that: 1) in case of allotment of Debentures to us, our Beneficiary Account as mentioned
above would get credited to the extent of allotted Debentures, ii) the Applicant must ensure that the
sequence of names as mentioned in the Application Form matches the sequence of name held with our
Depository Participant, iii) if the names of the Applicant in this application are not identical and also not
in the same order as the Beneficiary Account details with the above mentioned Depository Participant
or if the Debentures cannot be credited to our Beneficiary Account for any reason whatsoever, the
Company shall be entitled at its sole discretion to reject the application or issue the Debentures in
physical form.
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Applicant’s
Signature

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
DATE OF RECEIPT DATE OF CLEARANCE

(Note: Cheque and Drafts are subject to realisation)

(TEAR HERE)
- ACKNOWLEDGMENT SLIP -

| (To be filled in by Applicant)SERIAL NO. [1 ] | ] ] |

Received from

Address

Cheque / Draft / UTR # Drawn on

Rs. on account of application of Debenture

for
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ANNEXURE VII: LAST THREE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2017-18 CONSOLIDATED

Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Consolidated Balunce Sheet as at 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Indian Rupees in Lekhs, unless otherwise stated)

= As at Asat
SRUTRY AprLAHEITES et 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Shareholders® funds
Share capital 3 129,708 129,708
Reserves and surplus 4 18,933 37373
168,661 167,081
Non-current liabilities
Long-term berrowings & 121,882 24,125
Other long tarm liabilities [ 1,563 183
Long-term provisions 7 13,732 4.268
137,177 18,576
Current linbilities
Trade payahles
- Total outstanding duas of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
- Total outstanding dues of ¢reditors other than micro enterprises and g
small entemrises 7,242 3,501
. g
Short-term borrowings 74,322
Other current liabilities 10 51,244 16,326
Shart-term provisions 11 1,355 6,255
135,153 26,142
Tetal 441,001 121,799
A3JSETS
MNon-gurrent pssets
Fixed assels
Tangibla assets 12 6672 22,354
Intungible assets B2 36,773
Capital work-in-progress Ea] 57
Tntangible tssers under development 1,051 129
MNom current invesnmonts 13 7861 7,509
Defierred tax gssets (net) 33 3477 G, (e
Long-tenm loans and advances 14 243 130 57,581
Other non-current assers 15 19,045 15.850
Add, TR 146,619
Current assets
Current inveshinents it ] 14,437
Tmide recaivables 17 1173 294
Cash ond bank balances 14 12,120 3,745
Short-term loans and adviices 1] 8,554 54,572
(hher cument assets 0 4,068 2,132
96,217 75, 1K0
Total 441,001 211,799
Swmnmary of significant aceounting policies and notes 10 the financial 2
stmlements
The accampanying notes form integral parn of these financials statements
A5 per our report of even date attached
Y. Bailibod & Assocines LLP For and on behulf of the Board of Directors of
ol dccooianis Clig Capital Services Privase Limited

{n Begistration MNe.: [01049W/ E300004

Mil“Chaw‘ll I

erly known ns GE Money Financial Sevvices Private Limited

Direcior Diredtor \
Membership Mo.: DIN,; 00016555 DIN.: 07685833 A
094533 2 -
BASS ™
O, oA M M
e ) ot N\~ Moy’
a Somesh Komar Bl esh Cupta lardeep Singh
ﬁﬂ'l Comypany Secretary Chief Executive offficer Chief Financial Officer

Membership No,; AJ1IE8
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Consolidated Profit & loss account for the year ended 31 March 2018
(All amounts in Indian Rupees m Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year For the year
Revenue Note ended ended
31 March 2008 31 March 2017

Revenue from operations 21 20,512 13,119
Other income 22 5.064 T.341
Total revenue 34.576 20,460
Expenses
Finance costs 23 7,703 3,130
Employes benefiis expense 24 7.207 1.663
Onther expenses 25 6,665 4687
Depreciation and amortisation expense 12 1570 3,581
Provision made (net off reverse) for bad and doubtful debts 26 B, 160 6.178
Total expenses 37,305 19.239
{Loss)/Profit before tax (2,729) 1,221
Tax expense:
- Current tax - [.654
- Current tax for earlier years {1,899) 4
= Deeferrad tax 33 (2410} {1,288)
{4.309) 370

Profit for the ycar 1,580 451

Earnings per equity share [nominal value of Rs. 10 per share{ 31 March 2017; Rs.

10|

Basic 37 012 no7

Diluted 37 W ) 0n.o7

Summary of significant accounting policics and notes to the financial statements 2

The accompanying notes form integral part of these financials siaements

As per our report of even date attached

For S.R. Baulibol & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Clartered Accountanis Clix Capital Services Private Limited

ICAI Fign Registration No.: 101040W/E300004 (Formerly known os GE Money, Financial

Services Private Limited) h

(A2 o ﬁpﬂ*ﬂ/

Amit Kabra T Anil Chawla kas Aggarwal
Partner Director Direcior
Membership No.: 0943533 DIM.: 0016555 \\ DIN.: 0T6R3R33
“'\‘U \ » il ®
(B = \\i = }1;_5&""‘{'/
Somesh Kumar Bhavesh Gupta “Hardeep Singh
Company Secretary Chief Execuiive officer Chief Financial
Membership No.: A31188 Officer

Place: Gurgaon Place: Gurgaon
Drate: 27 June 2018 Date: 27 June 2018
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited { Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limlted)
Consolidated Cash Flow Siatement for the year eoded 31 March 2018
{All emiounts in Indian Bupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise daied)

Particulars “';:::.i“r For the year ended
31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017
Cush flow from operafing activities
Prafit before tax 2.2 1221
Adjusted for;
Lizhbiliticst prowvisians no Jotger required written back {3,005} (322)
[nvestment written off . 8
[nterest on income-tax refund [B52) (432)
Diiscount oo commerzisi paper 085 £
Processing fees (amortised during the vear) {9293 1,492
Depreciation and amoeisas 1,570 1.5%1
Amgrization of borrowing cost 135 1,042
Loan seguisition cost (mnortised during the year) 319 106
Gain on sale of current investments (et (689) (3,563)
Unrealised (gain}’ loss on foreign exchange 3 (200
Non performing assets written off 3,086 &l
Unreafised gain on matual funds - (132)
Amoriisation of premium paid on debentures - 4
Provision for bad and doubiful assets 3154 5683
Galr on wle of assets (net) {432) (73}
Rates and tanes . 30
Contingent provisions agains standard assets 1,234 (&F]]
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange (ret) - ]
Operating profit before working capital changes B, 744 ST
Addferted for med eha nges I wovking capital
{ln i tradle rece EEL) 4iE
Increase in oller cavent and noo curment asaets 15,585) (1411
Ingrease in lnens and odvances and other azsens (2140193 (9A78)
Degreass in liobilitics and provisiosy ELO99 11866
Income tomes reflmd (et of o paid) 2,750 G5
Net casie figsad ta) geacrated flonm opdroting setivifios [T 11,520
Cash fows fenm imvesting activitie
Purebage: glmeud) Sands (4,086,491} (1.96, 250}
Sa%e sf'muiual fimds 421617 150897
Purehase of mon cument invesEneng {36
Fined depasits with origisal mawry of more thes 3 months crestsdSaring the year z 1
Reclepl o pre scgquisition Enenest on det . e
Purchase of fixed assels (incheding copisal work-in-propress and axsets undir P ¥ . (15426 {10231}
Purehase of debenbures {7508}
Acigaismian of subsidiary - {95, 1T}
Froceeds from sale of ftxed msieis SA30 hawe
M wash g frned iy e aviivitles |||'Js &1 ATT,
Cash Mews From finaecing scivities
Barrowings inhendsivance of share capital
Frocesds from term lozn. | A9, 30% 37,000
Commercisl paper 102,800 -
Bank overdmil LI =
Bascpawings repaid! share buyvback
Tim Loan from bank (HRAS0] (41, B4l)
Repayment of commmercial papem E5M0
Buyback of Equity Shares {15,08H)
Buy back tax paid (#0571
Net camh used in fimancing sctivite P 20,538
Met decrense in cosh and cash eguivalents BITS (TLE=L)
Cazh nnd eash eqgulvolents st the Beghnnlng of the yesr 3,745 9,065
Addithen through sogubaition of subsidisey 15461
Cash snd eash equivalesis a1 ihe cod of the vear Iﬁ 3_?&
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II STANDALONE

Clix Capltal Services Private Limited {Fermerly known a3 GE Maoncy Flnaneial Services Private Lindted)

Balance Sheet ns at 31 March 2008

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Sharcholders' fumids
Share capital
Reserves and surplus

Nom-current liabilites
Long-term bormowings

Dther lomg term [abidlies

Long-term provisions

Current liabéllties
Sharttem bofrewicgs
Trade payahles

+ Tolal outsianding dues of mice enlerprises and small enterprises

(Al arsounts in Indien Rupees in Lakhs, usloss stherwise stated)

Mates

- Todal eutstanding duss of oredibors odher than micra enterprises i small

elerprises
Cuber cuirrent Habilithes
Short-erm provisions

Total

ASSETS

Nom-gurrent assels i
Propesty Plaat and Equipien

- Tangible assets

- Intangible assets

- Capital work-in-progress

= intanyible sssel wnder development
Mon-currend investimzits

Defermed tax assets (nef)

Long-erm logins and advances
Other pon-current nesets

Carrent assels

Current investsents

Cash and bank balnces
Shart-term loans ard advarces
Other current asssis

Total

Summary of sigaificant scooantings policies and antas to the finansial staiement

The sccompanying mabes firm indegral pant of these Anancials ststerments

A per our repert of even date sitached

For 8 R. Batlibel & Associntes LLP

i}
11

1+
13
15
16
L7

(4]

Fer and om behalf of the Beard of Dirgerors of

Asal Asal
31 Mareh 2018 31 Mareh 2007
129,708 129,708
s
167,044 166870
74,162 4042
58 ]
—  m _
56,7948 7183
56,504 -
3mr LIE0
21,004 8323
LIl9 4,108
82,744 15612
336,506 189,665
......
1044 ]
1,507 5
3 357
1,051 [rit)
107,870 107,678
3ATT 6,060
144,546 35821
11471 T.2H
276,039 157,350
= 2,203
5352 1,344
50,986 1,570
4,209 1,158
60,547 32,275
XS 7

Hardeep Singh
Chief Financial Gficer

Chartered Aceoumrants Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Farmerly known a3 GE Meney Finanelal Services Private
HCaA Riren registration No,: 101 049W/EID0004 Limlted)
Aurif Knbea Anll Chawla Agparwal
Fartner Diregtor Dirseior
Mlembership Me.: 394533 DIN.: 00016555 DIN.: O76R5833
Reumaed \\
Somesh Kumar Bhavesh Gupta
Compauy Secretary . Chief Execriive Officer
Aelembership Mo.: A3 18%
Place: Garujgran Place; Gurugran
Drate: 17 Jume 2018 Dhate: 27 June 2008
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Mosey Financhal Serviess Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and Loss for the yesr ended 31 March 2008
(Al amaunts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, bnless otberwise stabed)

For tlve year ended For the year esled

iy Pakie 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Revenue from operatioas i 10498 4,165
Otther fneeme 1l 333 5,851
Total revinue 15,849 10.056
Expemies
Fingnes costs 21 4,035 204
Employss benefits expense 23 2850 a1
Orther prpensss L 4311 21431
Deprecintion and amariisathon sxpenss 12 1353 2]
Provislon madefreversed) for bad and doehfl debis 3 5,430 5 655
Tatal expenscs 17.584 8330
{Lexs) Profit befere mx {4,135) 128
Tax sxpenge;
= Current fax - 1853
= Curvei tax for carfier years {1809 4
= Defered tax 25 (2.410) (1,368)
- Deferred tax For eartier yeans - -

43007 360
{Loas)’ Profit For the year E‘ ﬂ
Earnings per equlty sharo [naminal vabae of Rs. 10 per shace] 31 Murch 2007: Rs. 0
m
Basic ) 0.1 0.03
Dilubed 0.0 0.03
Significant sccounting policies and nodes bo s financial satements 2
The secompanying nodes foem istegral part of these Enanclals starements
Ag peraur report of even date anached
For 8. R. Batllboi & Associntes LLP For and on behatf of ihe Board of Direetors of :
Chartered dccountants Clix Capital Services Private Limbted {F Iy known a5 GE Money Fisanekal Services Private

IC.

rm registration Me.: 101 D49WIEIN0004 Limited)

o e

At Anfl Chawla ¥

Partrer Dhiraetor Direciar

Muemnbership Mo.: 094533 DI C00165455 DM, 07635833

a4 /}

Somesh Komar Bhiavesh Gupta
Company Srereiary Chigf Execative Offfcer
Membership Mo.: A3 188

Hace: Gurugram Place: Gunagram

Jates 27 Fune 20 (8 Draes: 27 June 2018

100




Clix Capltal Services Privade Limited (Formerly knmwi a8 GE Money Financiol Services Private Limited)

Cusgh Mow statement for e year ended 31 March 2018

Cash Mows Trem operating activites
{Lossl Profit befone rax

Depreciation and amartismian expense
Unrepized {gnin) bass an Bareign exchange
Provision for bad and doubtild assets and finance receivables sold
Processing fees (amorised during the year)

Lagn apquisitien oot (amertised during the year)
Discount on commercial paper

Contingant provisions againet standard assed
Resoverahle whitten-off -

Liahililies' provisions ne lenger requdrsd wrilten back
Gain en sale of cumrent inveshnents (net)
Ucrrealised gain oa maulsl fsds

Interest on income-x refund

Aunartisation of préimium paid an deb
Operating profit before worklag capltal changes

{[mereass) in baem and sdvances and olher nsssts

Increase In liahilities and provisions
Direct taxes paid (nil of lax felund)

Met cash generntesd from{used in) operating activities - A

Cadlh fows from Investing aztivities

Fisamos brase oblipation taken

Fimamoe bease oblipstion repald

Proceeds fram tenn lozan

Repayment of tem loan

Frocopds fram commencial papers
Repayment of serrmancial pagers

Busback of Shanes

Diividend distribution tax on equily shares

Net cash g i fie Im} agtlvities - C

Met inercasefdecrease) in nu‘lﬂl ar cush equivalents (A¥B+C)
ol and squivalenis at the beginning of the year (refer to nate 1T

!Z'l-lsh and squivalents at the end of the year (Refer to noe 17)

Mode : W have not included fixed deposit balances in Cash flow since all the FI¥ are Lien Marked

A pes our repoit of even dite sminched

For 5. Bailibai & Associznes LLF

(Al amounts in [adian Rupees in Lakhs, unless olherwise siwizd)

Forthe year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 Muarch 2007
(4,135) 726
358 30
3 (6}
5146 5,663
(30 [{0]
LAIg 333
9ds
g8 7
384 &
(2,800} {14
{288} (3,256)
(5
{168} (432}
K
1434 3119
{140,949} {16.924)
0,288 [ Al
2,066 66
(128,160} (5,033}
118 &
(62) (1M
91,400 1 2,0H
{11,650y -
£8,510
{35,000 - .
e {15,088)
a (206}
1X3.316 3,437}
4008 (G8,621)
1,344 69,065
5352 1,344

For asd oa behall of the Board of Diredios of

[ Aecouatneg Clix Capitul Services Private L (Formerdy kmown 8s GE Moacy Financial
Firen segastraion New 10 L0STWEI00004 Services Private Limited)
Amit Kabra Anil Chawta Vikas Aggarwal
Parer Diractor Director \;
Membership No.: 004533 DN D001 8555 nm.—""'V
@ oA T“G_).L \\\ oh.
Ha Kumar Bhavesh Gupta Hardeep Singh
Compony Secraiary Chief Execurive Gifficer Chia Finarche! Offear

Membership No.: A3 135

Place: Gurugram : Placa: G
Dite: X7 June 2008 Diate: 37 Jume 2018

101




2018-2019 CONSOLIDATED

Clix Capital Services Private LimTred (Formerly knownas GE Maney Fng ncizl Services Privats Limited)

Consolidated Balance Sheetas at 3L March 2013

fAttamonnt i INR locs, except for shore date unless stated othenwiss]

Hiite Asal As at As at
3L hWarch 2013 31iiarch 2018 1 Aprll 2017
RGSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents [ 40,193 12,119 3,748
Bank batance other than above an EL A 433 137
Loans 7 Eiri 307,055 106,679
IFrstments & 336 7,886 12,284
Dther fnancial 2ssels L] 6,196 1,809 415
Mon- financal assets
Current taxassets (net] 15,285 17561 14,583
Dafartad tar ascots {net) 22 17022 8,487 6,610
Preperty, plant and equipmeant 104 25,087 266712 22,354
Goadwill 108 35,708 346,768 36,768
Intangible assets e 1,850 1,507 5
Capital work in-progress 114 200 73 357
Inkanzible assets under developmant 118 Lo 1051 118
Cther non- financial assels 12 4780 4,065 3,067
Assets held for sale 12 13 it
Total assars 622,292 425984 211,332
PRA DI ITES AR EATITY
LIABILITIES K0 EQUITY.
LIABILITIES
Finandal fabilities
Payables i3
1} Teade payables
a} Total o mtstanding dues of micin enterprises = =
B seeall nrerprises
b) Total autstanding dues of greditars other 10,835 440 22
taan mier 2mterprises £ small enterprises
11} Dther payales
a) Tatal ousstanding dues of micro arterpnses - - -
e amall enter i
b} Tozal aukstanding dises of creifitors othar 3,854 3,108 3.3
than micra eaterprises & small enternnses
(et seeurithes 14 101,548 gen72 )
Bomavings (other than dabt securitizs) 15 13T 172 7€1 36,811
Cither financial Babilities 1A 7437 4,164 bl
tlan fmanclzl Habilitics
Current ta babillties [net) - - 1
Prowvisuns 17 1,158 211 2058
Crher non-fimincizl liabitilies 1B 3,232 2533 563
Toialliakilities 488,742 257,208 45,700
Enuiry
Expaity share capits| 14 129,708 129,708 179,708
Otar aquity 20 49,842 30,068 35,538
Total equaity 179,550 168,776 165631
Trital Babilizies ard ety 621,292 475,584 211,332
SiEmificant acpounsing polickes 3

The aceompans g notes are an integral pact of the finandal stalsmenis.

Az per owr repart of ever date

For SR, Batlibol & Asscclates LLP
IC&] Fiem Reglsoration Mo, 101048 EI0OC0A
{.hqu'ed Aredufitans

For and on banatf of the Board of Directars

Clix Capital Services Private Limitad (formerly known a5 GE Moy
Financlal Servives Private Limitecd]

bt

V J{E?ff &451{{:4* {

/ Shekhar Daga Venhataraman Bharstwai
Partnes Director Dirertaor
sdembershin N, 094533 DFN: OT#T18T1 DA L965T9E
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Clix Capital Servicas Private Limited {Farmerly known as GE Maoney Finandal Services Privste Umiced)
Consolidated Statemant of Profit and loss for the year ending 31 March 2019

{1l amant fn IN® lacs, except for shore doto unigss stoted arhanuvize)

Rihds Year ended Year ondad
31 March 2019 31 March 2038
Revenue from operations
[nterest income n 51,757 18,706
Rental income 11400 pLINRE
Feds and commission income 1 1,608 369
Net gain on f2ir value changes i3 2,610 688
Total revenua from operations 67,376 29,881
Other income Fo] 2,603 4,393
Tatal learme 59,979 32273
Expenses
Finance costs 5 34,113 7,600
Fees and commission espense 73 105
Impeirment an financial instruments i6 2,830 G043
Emglover benefits axpanse 1T 11,386 7,544
Devracladon, amordzanen and impairment 10 9,166 1570
Gther expenses 8 7.502 5,358
Total expenses 65,246 35,2313
Profitf[loss) hefore tax 4,733 [558)
Tae eapense: bl
11} Current 1 X -] {1,833
1Ll Delatrnd b 541] {10
Frofieilies) for the year 10,75 3,830
Otior compreh i
& [pems that willl rat be reclassifled o peoflt or loss
[ al defined benefs Rabiliy 13 145
Inzasme taz effed =] 23
b themns thart will be reclossified o proft or lass - =
Gther camprehonsiua Tnesme | netaf ineome te E [F3
Tetel cormprahansive incom o for tho yesr 18,633 g_..!.!—ll_
Eannings pex equity skaes 33
Hamic (MR ) L5 k) 2
Billted {iMR) 031 niz
Mo velue per shacg | noo 1030

Signiticant sacoouniing podicies

The sccompanying riotes ar= an integra? pa of the francal scaements

A5 PR DT PEp T o sven dete

For S8, Batihe’ & Axsoclates LLP

BLA) Firr Bepistration Moo 109025900 500004

L.t i Aoeernitards
(U
per fenit Kahr

Partrae

Planbersdin Ho 533

Flase Girugram
DCrace= 33 Sepramber 2003

Forand onbahal? af the Baind af Directos
Clis Capital Sorvicas Private Limbted [formwsedy knows as GE Wz
Arancial Senviees Privata Emived]

WIT V mmmf -

Sheddhar Daga
Carectar
Tin: 0ra71ET

\:’/I\'

Dhwash Gupea
Chief Enecutdee OFlice:

e Gurugram
Date; 23 Septembes 3E0

Wenbataramon Rharotes
Direcior
Dol D39G5 708

LN
aghhith H PFaanday
fompany Sacnetany
Adgmbership Moe AT3156
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CFin Capital Services Privats Umibed [Farmeily know os G2 Meney Finsstal Sarvices Private Umited)
Cassslidaed Cash Flow 5% Fer shi e epded 31 March DIR8
FAN arrmaunit b WA dokis. BACEER O Share dma wniess stoved otferass)

Particulars Yeear grabedd ‘toar ended
1 March 2099 31 March 2018
Enmiby Borar Teaim ogaerating activities
Profit Bafarn g 473 {959
Aifjusted fon
Frowsinm Rabiie no longar requime witen bedk LTEl 13,005)
anagsment feg anorized 8 ey 1584)
Depredaticn and aseri B 1182 T.5%
Amortisatien of bafrgming s 1 135
Urraskrdling of decaurt om defarred haie sxponses 41 3]
Usradioling of premiim an deferrad m o ™ -
Pt pain on sale of nvestments (L1238 (3]
ECL o lopr @355 and loas commit it 2,184 #an
Prerripm a redemption of prefer erce shares 125) -
Intered e incomg i refund 156€] 1168}
Arnortiation of leen scquiition castanid mesagemunt faey
L] [#i)
it gain oo derecognibon of poperty, plast and equipmant: [1Bd) B3
bt bl L2kt I o
Jesets hald for @le L] 4
o atle wiltes-of Lo7a 3e2
Ext det wileien ot &l 1.EM1
e ealised |gain]) lous oo fereign anchange 1 Ly
lagirast incoeme on urweecing of SSLoUnT an ooy depocd (i) e
Hars jpairi 0ot Bar eztoes changes [5,531) LE6E)
Ehare bamed payméent a1 1492
Ro-measuramart of petusrin les 13 46
(Dizerating prafit before working capitsl changas 13,258 0,057
Adjested for met chan pes 47 warking opies
pryeade in Finarel waiels and sther dasecs 1ITLARE] [ESL D
rerwaai ta Financial lmhiiy aed oiber HakiSkas 10, 796 12,531
Teeisd {pmid|dnefund recenaed [net] [RIELTY 2.0
Mt Cach el innapernling nefmifes 1147320 jL=4,978]
‘Cas= flomy fram fpessaing artuities
Prerchise of InEsmenss {1.B50, 1404 [A0EHETY
iz af Imeesimenty 1LERD. 150 AILEIT
Purghase of properiy, plot aml arpegmant 12 555) 2730
Brocaeds from pregary, piont ond sgepment 45207 5355
n enuity Fhares o d %
Amortizatian of pre acpiition eeees o debentee - B
f§it Cogh genenmied from investing aciiviizs 1,451 3e7

Aracends Fanr ssuance of equity shore cap'tel .
Froceeds fram non-careeruble debssntures ITL530 -
Firanee kake apkgatantakan & .
Fizance leiue obBganion epaid - &

[Frnresc fam wnking copiinl demaad| san ko s ¢ b Lot 250 Latsaty
Eepapmentol working tip fal demand laanfreen Sanks o fesw Loan |¥3,50%] 17705
Procesds from bank gaii alt [k ang
Refrsent of bask ovendraft [ERE] -

Prucesds Miom leter Coiporate kaan 25 P +

Feoayment of Iner Congorate Loen it

Prace ety From cummirtial papers AT AT R0
Repayr=ent of commpndal papars = 1257 0004 (=)
gt Coh pen peo e fronr Qeoncing oo iies 74542 PG5
rist ircrease ks cash ana cash equbminngs 24T RETL
Cazh pnc] cagh sguiil ears ar the begineing of the ymar 12,115 i e
Cagh aned cash mouivalists a1 the el of the year 40,153 1R A%
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STANDALONE

Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019

(Al emount in INR locs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

As at As at As at
MR 31 March 2019 31 March 2018 1 April 2017
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents A 32,393 5,352 1,344
Bank halance other than above 6B 96 96 18
Loans 7 231,695 183,247 56,425
Investrmeants 8 104,725 107,904 110,220
Other financial assets -] 3,414 3,332 181
Non- financlal assets
Current tax assets (net) L] 10,344 10,165 5,886
Deferred tax assets [net) 9 8,602 8 487 619
Property, plant and equipment 104 1,054 1,044 96
Intangible assets 108 2,680 1,507 5
Capital work-in-prograss 11A 1A1 T3 357
Intangible assets under development 118 347 1,051 129
Other non- financial assets 12 2,249 1,032 887
15tal assets 445,360 323,200 182,167
e
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Payabies 3
I} Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises - i -
and small enterprises
b} total outstanding dues of craditors other than 6487 1,364 1,102
micro enterprises and small enterprises
11} Other payahles
a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprizes - - ¥
and small enterprises
b} total outstanding duss of craditors other than 2,708 1,573 1,078
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Dbt securities 14 133,353 54,453 .
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 15 125,743 93,849 12,088
Other financial llabikties 16 3,638 2,102 159
Mon financial labilities
Provisigns 17 B33 B89 B2z
Other non-financial habilities 13 1,455 843 B3
Total liabilities 280,237 156,073 16,342
Equity
Equity share capital 13 128,708 119,708 129,708
Other equity 20 38415 37,509 36,117
Total equity 168,123 167,217 165,825
Total liabilities and equity e 348360 273,740 192,167
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financal statements
As per our report of even date
For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and an behalf of the Beard of Directors
ICA| Firm Registration No. T01043W/E300004 Clix Capital Services Private Limited (farmerly known as GE
C Accountants Meney Financial Serviceg Private Limited)
'I.( A
oah 7. hekhar Daga A nggarwal
Partner Directar Director
Membarship No. 084533 DiN: 07471871 Dib: OFBESE33
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Clix Capital Serviees Private Limited (Farmerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Statement of Profit and loss for tha year anding 31 March 2019
(AN amount in (NR focs, except for share date unless stated otherwdse)

Niibas Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018
Revenue from oparations
Imterest income 21 31,542 8,980
Fees and commlssion Income 22 1,300 -
Met gain on fair value changes 23 1,474 288
Total revenue from operations 34,316 9,268
Other income 24 1,140 3,078
Taotal income 35,456 12,346
Expenscs
Finance costs 25 20,613 3,966
Fees and commission expensa 171 &9
Impairment on financial instruments 26 2,841 4703
Employee benefits expense 7 5,687 3,073
Depreciation and amortization 11 B51 358
Other expenses 28 4,233 2,809
Total expenses 34,406 14,978
Profit/{loss) before tax 1,050 (2,632)
Tay expense; i}
[1) Current Tax 437 (1,895}
{2) Deferrad Tax |128) {1,230}
Profit for the year 741 1,157
Other cornprehensive income
@, Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remezsuraments of defined benefit liability 36 66
Income tax effect 113} 123
b items that will be reciassified to profit or loss - -
Other Comprehansive Income , net of income tax 23 43
Total comprehensive income for the year 764 1,200
Earnings per equity share 30
Basic {INR) 0.06 0.0
Diluted {INR} 0.085 o.0e
HNominal Value per share {INR) 10.00 10,00
Significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
Az per gur report of even date
For 5.R. Batliboi & Asscciates LLP For and on behalf of the Baard of Directors
ICAI Firm Registration Mo, 101049W/E300004 Clix Capital Services Pri itad (formerly known as GE
terad Accountants Money Financlal Servicas e Limited )
bra khar Daga Wi rwal
Parftrner Directar D
Membership No. 094533 DM Q7471871 DN 07685833 d\f
Hace: Gurugram M \}‘
Jate: 28 June 2019 \J - C)\
Bhavesh Gupta Hardeep Singh Ashhish K Paanday
Chief Executive Officer  Chief Finandlal Officer Company Secretary
Membership Mo
A23155
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Farmerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2019
(AN amaount in iNR Jacs, except for share date unless stated otherwise]

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 1,050 (2,632}

Adjusted for: .
Provisions, llabilities na longer required written back {173) (2,850)
Depreciation and amartisation 861 358
Amortization of borrowing cost i 96 23
Urwinding of discount on deferred lease expenses 27 17
Met gain on fair value changes {1474} (288)
Impairment on financial instruments : 1,762 4,318
Amaortization of loan acquisition cost and management fees 340 1,17%
Interest on income-tax refund (455} (168)
het loss on derecognition of property, plant and equipment 7 -
Share based payments 122 157
Re-measurement of Actuarial loss 35 &6
Recoverable written-off 1,078 " 3B
Unrealised (gain)/ loss on foraign exchange 1 3
Interest income on unwinding of discount on security deposit {25) (16}

Operating profit before working capital changes 3,553 511

Adiusted for net charaes in workina canited

Adjusted for net changes in working copital

Increase in Financlal assets and other assets {103,706) [140,5348)
Dwecrease in Financial liabilkity and other abilities 7.524 9,265
Tanes [paid)frefund received {net| 1858) 2,066
Net Cash used in from operating activities (93,087) (129,106}
Cash flews fram investing activities

Amortisation of pre acquisition interest an debenturas . - B
Purchase of |mestments (9BE,650) {220,431}
Sala of Investrents 957,624 222,722
Investment in equity shares of subsidiaries |4, 300) -
Purchase of praparty, plant and equipment |Z,106} {3,485)
Proceeds from property, plant and aquipment 6% 35
Net Cash genercted from / {used in) investing activities 2,637 {1.147)
Finance lease aifigation taken a5 118
Finance lease obligation repaid |10:8) {a2)
Proceads fram term laan 49, (HHD 91,400
Repayment of t2rm loan (35,477) 110,705}
Proceeds from commercial papers 80,662 88,510
Repaymant of commerclal papers (124,500) 135,000}
Praceeds frorm Mon Convertible Debentures 120,000 -
Proceeds from inter corporate depaosit 31,500 -
Fepayment of inter corporate deposit &,500) -
Bank pvardraft (3,111} -
Net Cosh generated from financing octhitles 117,481 134,261
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2019- 2020 AUDITED FINANCIALS

Chix Capital Services Private Limitad
Stamdalone Balance Shaat as at 31 March 2020
(¥ o e 0T frcs, sl fin ohure ot siale s seie ol wif

B Bt A5 at
Pty 31 Marth 1020 H1 Wharch 2043
BESETS
Financial assets
Eazh arid cash eqoivalerts Bh 12,578 313493
Bank balaree other than abows EB o1 a6
Loard ? 05841 - 281,695
Investments k] 121,260 10a725
Other financial azsers b 1,586 3414
Mon- financial assets
Current bax assets [ret) 29 5,346 13,344
Dieferred tax asaeta [net) 28 4421 8,502
Property, plant and equiprment 104 851 1,054
InEng ke assets iog 1 E86 2,580
Capltal work:in-progress 114 . 181
intangible azsets under developrment 118 1,205 Q47
Heght-of-use amets BES -
Gther non- Aipancial assets 1 1E9% 1348
Assets hald fior sale B
Total assets 450,971 g
THES AND Iy
LIABILITIES
Financlal liabilithes
Prepabier 12
1} Trade payables
) Tetal cutstanding dues of micre enterprisas and small - -
entarprises
b 1aeal autstanding duss of creditors athes than micro 535 6,487
eriterprisas and smat apterprises
Il] Cther payables
aj Total outstardfing dues of miore enterprises and small .o -
antarprisas
b totad cutstanding duss of craditors other than micro 2,580 T L0
enterprises aned small enterprises
Dbt securities 4 129378 139,363
Boyrowrings (other than debt seciirities) 1% 123813 135,749
Leass |lablighes ba 1 -
Dtfer financlad Habilities 1a 2,351 3.638
Mo fimancial Eabilities
Frowisians 7 iz 833
Other non-financel liabiltes 18 /00 1455
Tatal Babilithes 261,197 260,237
Equity
Equity shars capital 13 180,758 139,708
Othear eguity it} 43016 3,415
Toral eguity 189,774 158,125
Total Rabilities snd eguity l&%‘.ﬂl 444, 260
Significant accounting pofices i

The sccompanying notes e an integral part of the financial staterraniz

M par our reporl of sven dake

For 5.F. Batlibod & Associates LLP For and on behaif of the Baard of Divectons
|CAI Firn Registration M. 101048W/E300004 Clix Capital Services. Limited
Dwt:ik:mmanu
- ) z \&
a
per Binill Chareta Ehavesh Gupta
Chrector Chief Executive Officer
Ml hig Mo, 115385 N: B0016555
>
mi Mohanty Ashhish K Fasnday
Director and Chisfl Financlal Offlcer Compary Secretary
QAN Qray2sal Memberthip No: A23155
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Statement of Standalone Profit and loss for the year ending 31 March 2020
(AN omaunt in INR leet, except for shore dota anless stoted otherwine)

Nokss Year anded Tear anded
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Revenue from operations
Intarest income 1 44677 51542
Fees and commission Income - 2 2,330 1300
Net gain on fair value changes 23 1.063 1.474
Total revenue from operations 48070 34,316
Other income 24 1,574 1,140
Total income 50,544 35,456
Expenses
Finance costs 5 17822 20,613
Feas and commission expense 361 17
Impairment on finandial instruments FL 3,018 ia4
Employee benafits expense 7 5,505 687
Depreciation and amortization 1 1,709 861
Other expenses 28 6,007 4,233
Taotal expenses 44,822 34,406
Profit/{ioss) before rax 5,822 1,050
Tax expense: 9
11} Current Tax {4185) air
(2} Deferred Tax 4,153 1128}
Profit for the year 2.075 Fal
Trther comprehensive incomae
m. s that will not be redassified to profit or hoss
Remessurermmnts of defined benefit lability ] 35
Incosme tax effect {18} 3]
b. Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - "
Dtiher Comprahansive inocome , net of Income tax 53 23
Total comprefhensive moome for the year ZAZ8 ?!_-_4_
Earnings per equity share 30
Basic [INA] @15 006
Difuted (IR} 0.15 0.06
MNarminal Vatue per share {INR) 10000 10,00
Significant acoounting policies 3
The accampanying notes are an integrst pact of the finencal ssatements
As per our report of even date
For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on bahall of the Board of Directors
AT Firm Registration No. T0L089% E 0008 Chix Capital Services Private Limsed
Chartersd Acoggantan =
. - *
M o
per Jain Anil Chanwla M Gupta
Pa Director Chief Executive Officer
Memb p Mo, 115385 DIN: BOG1E555

Place: Mumbai M_‘D\p—. - 1\{/
Date: 30 June 2020 w
Rashml Mohamty Ashhish K Pagfiday

Diractor and Chicf Financial Officer Company Secretary
DYH: DT T RS Memberhip Mo: AZ3155

Place: Gurugram
Dade: 30 hune F0Z0




+ Clin Capital Services Private Lirnited
Stancalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 Morch 2020
[Al amount i INR loes, except for shore dato unless stoted atherwise)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Cagh flow from aperating activities
Profit hefore 2x L 1,050
Adjusted for:
Provisions/ llabilities no longer required written back [z 7
Pravisian for empioyee benefits 75 B4
Giscount an commerdial paper 1,244 -
Deprecistion end amortisation 1,708 BE1
Unwinding of discount on deferred lease expenies " 4 7
Net gainon fair value changes (1063} {1,471
Raties and taxes {Provision for Indirect taxes) 336 =
Impairmant on financial instruments (7,361} 1,782
wnterest on Lease Liakility 98 7
Interest on income-tax refund {2,3mj) {455]
et logs on darecognition of property, plant and agquipment - 7
Share based payments 240 i
Recoverable written-off 10,379 1,078
Unrealised {gain)f lass on foreign exchange - 1
{nterest incoma on unwinding of discount on seeurity deposit 7] (254
Operating profit before working capital changes 4,078 2,845
Adjusted for net changes i wovking coplial
Increase in Financial assets and other assets (14,169} (103,365}
UaErmases (e ease) i Fuanial lability ond athar lakilities [7.945) T.E60
Taxes {paid]/refund received |net) 2,503 {858)
Mt Cash used in from operating @ctivities (8,534} {93,518)
rachk e from invectine activities
Purchase of investmants imutual funds) {692,687 {92H 550
FurLhmsse of inveatments [Bakl sesaritie) (15,500} e
sala of iInvestments 892,760 957,624
Investrnent in equity shares of subsidiaries - {4,300
Furchase of property, plant and agquipment {L.230) {2.108)
Proceeds from progerty, plant and equiptEit 1 RS
Net Carsh generated from / (used in) investing activities {16,655) 2,637
Finance lzase obligation 1aken FL] ]
Finance l=ase obilgation repaid [106) {108)
Proceeds from term loan 37,518 45,000
HiepiyMant 57 1arm [nan 132:2591 139.081)
Proceeds from Borowing against Securitisated Portfalio 12518 -
Repayment of Borrowing ageinst Sacuritisated Partfolo {2,313) -
Proceeds from commercial papers 19211 89,662
Repayment of commercial papers 140,071} {154, 500]
Proceets frem Non Convertible Debentures 29,800 120,000
Repayment of Non Canvertible Debentures {20,000) -
Froceedy fram inber corporate kxans 19,000 31,500
Repayment of intar corparate oans 137.500) 16,5000
Bank overdraft 806 {2.111)
Regayment of Laase liability [256] #
Proceeds from (stuance of share cupial 19,195
Net Cash generuted from financing activities 5,358 117 B&7
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Clix Capital Senvices Frivate Limived
« Standiabins Cazh Plow Statement for the year ended 51 March 2020 +
Tl omourt v INR focs, excent for shore dons uness srated ohirwisg)

Farticutars aar erwded YoaT aded
41 March 2020 31 March 2013

Mt increase i cask and cash eguivalests 129,820} 7005
Cash and cosh equivalents 3t the beginning of the wear 32,593 5. 563
Cash and cask eqiivelents ot the end of the yoar 13,572 32,357
Motes : N
Cash and cash equivalents balnnce nckide:
Datances wits banks:
~CUTT Botounds TG 32,993
- I deposis with aviginal Mabargy of less than thres mesihs 11807
Cazh and carkh sguivalents at the end of tha year [refer note 4] 12573 ’Ei;:

The sceompaewing motes ans an integral part of tha linancis! statasanli

Az pav pur report of aven dide
For 5.0, Baslibol R Axkotiates LLP Far arsd on beiul of the Board of Direcion
15 Pt Repgerorrtion Mo T010450M M 300004 T Capital Serddies Prhate Linded

rh?rnﬂ Arros INESE
-
-

-

: L

per in Azl Chwerla Bhesvesh Gupta
" Divector Chial Evecutive (¥icer
Ma hip b, L1G3RS NN: DDO1EE55
Fiace: Mismbal
Dare: 3 juns HE
Bashmi riohanty Aghihish K Paamday
Dhnencter mnd Chief Financial Officar Company Secretary
PN DAOTIS41 Ifermbership No; AJ3155
Mo Garagram

Caaner 30 M 3030
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ANNEXURE VIII: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2017-2018 CONSOLIDATED

Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
(Notes to the consohidated financial statements for the year ended 31March 2018)
(All samounts in Indian Rupees in Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

38, Un-hedged foreign currency exposure

o, 4

The Company's ged foreign Y exp on of foreign currency

hedged as on 31 March 2018 is USD 2.43 (Rs 158) and 31 March 2017 USD 3.55 (Rs.240)

d payables not

39. No frauds were reported on/ by the Group during the year 31 March 2017,

40, Related party disclosure

(n) Related Parties where control exists

Holding companies, including the ultimate holding company till 31 August 2016
General Electric Company, USA (Ul holding company)

Holding companies after 31 August 2016
Plutus Financials Pvt. Limited (Mauritius) (Holding company)

(b) Other parties (fellow subsidiaries) tll 31 August 2016 (with whom transactions have taken place during the
current vear and/or previous year) :

In India till 31 August 2016

GE Capital Business Process Management Services Private Limited
GE India Business Servioes Private Limited

GE India Exports Private Limited

GE India Industrial Private Limited

GE India Technology Centre Private Limited

Wipro GE Healthcare Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries after 31 August 2016 (with whom transactions have taken place during the current
year):

Clix Analytics Private Limited (Incorporated on 27 February 2017)
Clix Loans Private Limited (Incorporated on 29 May 2017)

¢) Key managerial Personnel

Whole-time Director - Satyanarayana Eluri (from December 2016 till May 2017)
Wheole-time Director - Vikas Aggarwal (from May 2017)
Whole-time Director- Anand Kumar Saluja
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Clis Cagital Serviees Private Limited
AFwrmerty known as GE Masey Finsocial Services Private Limited)
AN mmsmnts In bacSom Rupeos bn Lakiw, unbos oobervine stated )

A 3t 31 March 200K A at 30 March 2017

Fellaw g Fefarm
Subsidiscies | Campsaks | Sebubdiuries) KNP

e e

Partical Helag Subwntiaries
Compomin L]

Clia Fanesie leadin Uslisrited {Foosseely kiown o5 GE Cagisd Services Dndia) X . - 7
Safereas on inNrcorpoare desoniy

8 oo fodic M b b o (16 N [ovany X x 5 s [res
23 Vames i i b Eman = O =& = = = -

Pxpeme retmtrarsereaty
Alscxtiony resetved

Lantied
Clin Fasoos Indis Uslimited (Fosmerly koown as GE Cprinad Services india) - - - 2
GE findia Bndeswin] Peivmo Limed = ) . » "

Allvcasiams made
Clis Housigg Fimasce Pyt Lissined - - . Bl

Tterest o Saance lease chlieathon
Ol Pmce Indin Uslisted [Pormety kown s OF Coprsd Services inda) - - - . 3

Lows srigination came
Ol Pinssee Todha Usilsked (Fameely koown as GE Caplis! Services adla) . . . v o

Anmwrnes pedd on Sedall of e Company

Clis Flosoooe Indtie Usliediad (Fosmserly kiwmn as GE Copiol Services Indla)

Buyback of Stares
s Frvmcins Pyt Lad (Musrtias) - - - 15083 s

Boaes shures (ather than ls cabi)
Phutas Finesciuls Pyt Lad Mueritias) . . . LT -

Tnter conparaie Sepesh - regald
Clix Finasce hidia Unirsited (Formerly kaows ae GE Capelal Services ludi) - - B - 00

Amaunts pabé by the Coempany
Ganersl Plecirks Company, USA . . - e A

At taken Mnssce ke
Takew
Chx Froamee indls Unfindod (Formerty knowa a G Captial Sorvices India) . . - o

Revard
Clix Fusmece lads Unlanited (Fuotetly kaown as GE Caprinad Services lodia) - - - L]
Asacts gives as fssace kase

Gilven
Clix Famnce ledin Usnbimsted (Foezerly known ss GE Cugised Services badia) - s -

)

i
:
i
|
|
!
;
{
£

Arverd kavar Salujs - B o -
Viksa Aggurwal - B - &
. A ®

&

* Tha peesision Far grasity han Seea mado o1 the compety’s kvel s sopmm amoois appticahile 1 dividuals o not svadable
Therefoes, e stnottal provided foe graruiy Ras pot been tihen e a0ooene is e shove compumion.

y A at 31 Murch 01K As ot 31 March 2017

| Balace Ouistandisg os atvearomds

Partiesta Mhakdiag Suhudrtiarion Fellew Meldug Felhw
Companies KM < KM

Oxher axfrarces . 3 " . 9
Chx Loans Privato Uoited . n - =
Clix Asmdvtics Privaze Linked
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STANDALONE

Clix Capital Services Private Limited (Formerly known as GE Money Financial Services Private Limited)
Motes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018
(Al amounts in Indian Bupees In lakhe, unless otherwise stated)

17. Related party transactions

(a) Related Parties where conirol exists

Holding companies, including the nltimate holding company (il 31 August 20016 (refer note 1)
(Feneral Elzctric Company, USA (Uldmate holding company)

Haulding companies after 31 August 2016 (rafer note 1)
Plutus Finangials Pyvt. Limited (Mauritivs) (Holding company)

(Hber partics (fellow subsidiaries) Il 31 August 2018 (with whom transactions bave taken place during the carent
wear andior previous year) {refer note 1)

i

T Inclin 1381 31 August 2016

GE Capital Buss Process Management Services Private LimitedGE India Business Sarvices Private Limiled
GE India Exports Private Limitzd :

GE Indin Industrial Private Limited

GE Indin Techaology Centre Private Limited

‘Wipro GE Healtheare Private Limdued

Subsidiarles/fellow Subsidiaries after 31 August 2006 (with whom transactions have taken place during the
carrent year):

Clix Finance [ndia Private Limited (formerly known asg Clix Finance India Unlirnited)
Clix Housing Finance Private Limited (Incorporated on 2 December 2016}

Clix Analytics Private Limited (Incorparated on 37 February 2017

Clix Loans Private Lisslted (Incorporated on 29 May 2017)

[=H] Key managerial Personnel

Whole-time Director - Satyatarayana Elar {from December 2016 till May 2017)
Whels-time Director - Vikas Aggarwal (from May 2017)
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Clix Capltal Serviees Private lhlud[mmmb-knmncsamﬂnumSme
Frivate Limited
(Al amount gre In Indlan Rupees i Takhs, unbss othervise siated)

Belsted parrv irsnsctions for the vesr esdod 31 hlareh 2018

liclding Campanies® Felluir Subalilaries’ KMP Subaldiar|

riiesl
Haiatars FITERT] WIEIT TR 61T FTRAT] eI

Ircamc

et un fance Jaese recveies

Cll Fisanes Irdin Privees Limited (Faemerly knows 23 Chix Fizange bedla
Unlisish)

Wiprs GE Healthoses Peiviic Limiled - - 2 i . &
Tatal - - - i 1] 1

Uierst on infes-cormaraie deooiits
Cllx Fimanee Tndin Private Limited (Faneerly knows s ©3ix Fissnce Indin - 186
Uslirsitest) - °

Fapendirure

Detered om fivanee leese ohBemion

Clix Finnars india Friugie Limited {Fommesly knssen s Clix Finace lndiy
Ulirmsted)

Liws prigingdion cos

Clix Finance fudla Privit: Limited [Fommerly keoa as Clix Flune: ladis
UnSmitad)

- - - 113 1287 47

Eanense rebminarsem cats
aAlaearions reveiied

(Clix Fimance nedla Privers Limited { Pormerdy lens as Clix Fleanee Indin 1

Ulnlirited) ~ . -
4E Capital Business Process Masagemest Senvhoss Prive Limited - - . ] - -
Denezal Bleciric Compary, US4 - ] s - < Y
GE [adia Businms Services Private Limind - = . 5 a -
08 India [adastris Fravitc Limitad - - - 7 . -
Talal .o 1 s A - s

Aibscationy wodk
Coin Finasen badia Privaie Lisiied (Formery bnows s Clix Finance laifia ]
Unfimisad) . - 1 )
Clix Heusing Firmnce Pyt Limdisd B Ba
Total - - - T L8 -

Auaunls pald an hebalf af the Coppany
‘Clix Finares ladtin Privaos Limited (Feeserly Laowns a5 CTix Fissnes fedin

Unlimist)

Clia Aralptica Privass Linited = M - N
Clis Housing Fisesez P, Limined . 1]
Clis beans Privage Linited 1 -
Totd - - e 33 138 a2

Buybeck ef Sharn
Pl Fimarcials Pre Lol [Pdomaritig) . 154084

Benas sderes (ather than (s cash)
Plures Flrsacials Pt Laf (Maaritis) - LITEY

Leecilmienty mads by e Company
T Finarcs |ndia Frivere Limita! (Formesty knows 4 Clix Firmca Indiz _ B 5 = ¥, 170
Ualimie

in Hepniong Fissmes Priveie Linmial - “ - £ 0000

Amassis paid by 1he Company
Giereen | Eleerie Comprny, USA
= (-] - - - -

Tater-¢erporabe depasies
Lt

Clix Finance fadia Privae imitod (Formenty rarws m Clix Piance ndis E 2 i - . .
UndimissT)

Aepaki
Ol Finazes Indlin Privete Lisial (Formmty knsun as Clix Finmes bdis ) L ’ N — . 5
Unlimiledy

Asneir fakem Noance lease
Tiskem

Clix Firance [ndia Privass Lirmied [Focmerly kecwn ss €lin Flaasce Tndin . - . 30 g 46
Ul imited)

Repolt .
i Finimes bdin Privete Limibed (Farmerdy knows 23 Clx Finmcs India o “ E & ] -
b}

Adsdi shoes on Anance bease
Ghiex

Cx Fimance India Privace Litsited | Parmarly known & Clis Finaaoe lasia
Ulalimiedy

B
GE Inetin Bapocws Private Lisised - - - 1

GE: T Indumtrinl Privase Limitet - - &

GE India Technalagy Ceme Frivas Limiosd : - - - Bl =, -
Clkin Fimasce Tratia Private Limited {Eoemetty kasean as Clix Fiasses badin R - N ™

Unlizited)

Clven H

Toeal

Ky Managesis] Perioanel *
Wikas A ggameal
n

- 15 - 2

buri : - -
* The povizian for grandiy kes beee made ot (e Ceerpany lovel and sepanie smoumis sppiicable 1o individusl arw noc avafizhle. Therefoos, the smouns prosidal S gy
b ot 3een talen ino seceust i i shove .
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Clix Caplial Services Private Limited {Formerely known as GE Money Fieancia] Services
Private Limlted
AT amuunt are in Indizn Rupees In Lakhs, unless atherwlse stated)

| Batesnce Qutss:sofiost % 81 ear dnd ¢

Parileolars

Hoidi 3 Fellow Subsidizrics Sy 1]
101718 21617 01718 &7 e Ld-17

Ampsss reesyroable
Firitee fast receivable

(Tin Fimancs lndia Peivite Limited [Foemsery keown 0 Clia Finthos ladin
Unifaniad)

Total - - - - 2] B

Imrvestments beld by 1he Compary
Clix Flrsnee Indln Briveic Linsked {Fermerly keaws i Clis Flnasce lndia
Unlimiznsf) o - 5 - wIm ™

Clix Housieg Finance Privers Limited - . B - 1200 1
O pobamees

Cliz MHLIFH]‘M!.[QH‘FWM}'HMHC‘]I: Fitssaee Indin
Unlimted) .
ks Anshytics Private Liniiad H £ [] .
Cli Fiusing Finanes Friveie Limia) . " =
Clix Leons Privage limied . . 0 . : z
Tetal . . " H 3487 H

Amounts piyble
Trocke pagpeadies
iz Finarae India P i (Funmly n ivs Cli; Fi 3866
Uhlimited) d
Tuiad - : . - . - 2466

Flnsiece fetse oligasisan

Cliz; Finaser [ndia Poivate Limiled | ty kerazum s Clis, Fi
LnFabiad)

* includes fe uiimate bolding tompany
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2018-19 CONSOLIDATED

Cap o neny 1 GE Mony Priwane Liemand]
ntes Whn e andied 31 March 1049
AR et (0 IR LaNRS, ewpnt fie 3hare on0 yukess SISINT BOTevmmirel
Nate 55 Naleved party dod coeres
Asgering AS 34, the related L
a0 Lt of wmn 100 artes whee coetsol enit wrd feletod parties sTN whon Pt takas phace bl
Paticutan P atizrabiz
Fatin Froncils B Lmies (Vi Woldng Cormgary
Tl Arwhytics Privete Urvled |reorpossted on 2 Februery 2000) Felbow Suswdinrion tvef 42 Aagast 2008
The Lowrn Privete Uriied {ycorporsied on 29 My 2007 o Subsidinrier et 33 Aagest 2018)
Sry maragen s garsoonsl
Satywrarepans Do (from Decenbser 2016 08 May 2017) ¥ihzie-time Dywector
Whas Aggural [hse Mey 2017 Vimzie-time Dyector
Bhaemh Guats Whzie timas Dveciar
Sorrwssd Kumae [T Febinaary 2019 Compary Secrery
b K Fawnduy [Feam February 1019 Comgary Seceary

(s The ratre aed ol wrme of ITROSRCTIORS CRMed o1 WITY the Abewn relanad parties ia the ordeary cosrse 31 busnest are ¢ fodows
A Sermusnerstion b by mssagerist pecoecni®

Your erded Vaw erded
31 March 7049 11 Macth 2000

Wikies Aggarwl - Whoke thie shector (From May 0171

Ferareretion L "

Srarebared pryrrert. 5 4
— e 8

Samedh buma - Comgany Secwtary - (TH Fabrusy 2618}

Rensrenaas L o

Wi eased peT e - pe
—_—

* The reTearerIOen NN 10 by MGl BEnoneel Boes Ot A T rtons e S Eanaty aed eve Deefl, as they we

Setnrryined on sl besks for The Seous 6 @ whele

2. Dthr transacson

Il-odnwm Voar mided Foar mnded
A0 March 2343 |

Aerinasts pate 08 Dehal! of the Lomgary
Tl Arwbytics Prtvate Lissted 5 -
Ctx Lowrn Privete Listad . 0

3 Badance Sheet - Outstanding Baknies

!rli'&.m 31 Wharch 019 | 31 March J008] 1 Agrk L7
Dl ance Cusstanding e st yaar and ©
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STANDALONE

Mote 35: Related party disclosures

Aa per ind AS 24, the discloseres of transactions with the related parties are given below:

List of related parties where control exists and related parties with whom transactions have taken place and

relationships:

Particulars Ralationship
Plutus Financials Pvt. Limited {Mauritius) Holding Comgany
Clix Finance India Privete Limited (farmerly known as Clix Finance India Subsidiary
Undimited)

Clix Houslng Finance Private Limited (Incorporated on 2 Decamber 2016} Subsidiary

Clix Analytics Private Limited (Incorporated on 27 Fabruary 2017) Fallow Subsidiary
Clix Loans Private Limited {Incorporated on 29 May 2017) Fallow Subsidiary
Key managerial personnel

Satyanarayana Eluri (from Decernber 2016 vill May 2017) Whaole-tme Director
Vikas Aggarwal [from May 2017} Whale-time Director
Somesh Kumar (Till 24 Feb 2019} Cormpany Secretary

a3p The rature and waluma of transactions carvied out with the above related parties in the ordinary course of
Business are as follews -

1. Remuneration to key managerial personne*

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2019 31 March 2018

Vikas Aggarwal « Whaole time director [From May 2017}

Remuneration 78 a1
Share-based payment 5 4
B3 85

Somesh Kumar - Company Secretary - (T February 2019}

Remuneration 9 0
Share-based payment - -
El 10
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Ll Capital Serdces Private Limited (Farmerly known as GE Monay Financial Services Private Limited)
Motes to Standalone Financial Satements for the year ended 31 March 2019

(AT gmount in INR Locs, grcett for shave dota uniess stated othenuse)

2, Other transactions

Hame of related party

\Waar andad 11
| March 2019

‘oar ended 31
March I008

Iranzcticns

Incams

interest on finoece lease recebrmbler

Clia Financa India Private Limied [Farmary knewn as Cie Finance India
Unlimited]

Exdpenditura

Infevest oo finmnee inase ahilgation

x Finance India Prisate Limited {Fommerly known as Clis Finance India
Urdimited]

laterest o inder-corpornte deposits

Clin Frsance Inda Privata Limited (Formerty knaws as Clic Finance india
Unlimited)

Lo arigination et

Clix Finance India Private Limitadd [Fermerky bnown as O Finaree Indi
Unlinied)

Expanis reimbursemonts

ANocetions made

Clix Finance kndia Private Umited |Farmedy known 2s s Rirancs India
Undimibed|

Oilx Housing Financ= Pyt Limited

Allocothons reeshpd
Qi Finance India Prvate Limited (Formerky known as Clis Finance Indis
Unlimied)

Amounts paid on behelf of the Company

Chix Finance Indis Private Limitad [Formedy known as Clix Finases india
Unlimited)

i Homing Finance Private Limiged

Clx Analytics Private Limited

i Losans Private Limited

I madie by the Compry
Clbs Hausing Finange Private Limibed

i

343

2,675

183

i

1,267

2,504

148
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Clis Capital Sersices Private Limited [Formery known as GE Money Francial Sersices Private Lisitad)
Motes to i Financial Stak s Bor the pear encted 31 Marnch 2019
AN amount ke IR Locs, sxcepd For share dofo unkess stated antersise)

Mame of related party Woar gnded 31 |Yaar andad 31
Felarch 2015 Sdarch 2018

Inker-corporste deposity

Takew

Clis Finance India Private Limted 5,500 .
Clix Finance india Private Limited 5500

Assets taken finsnce lease
Tokem

Clts Finance India Private Limited L 113
Fepad
Clte Finance Indla Private Limited 106 13

Assets prven on finence lease
Given
Clta Finance Indla Private Limited a1 4T

Repaid
Cliw Finance India Frivate Limited El =

Balarce Sheet - Dutstanding Balances

31 March 2049 | 34 March 2018 | 1 Ageil 2047

Balarae Duistanding 2 at year ond @
Ammounts recoverabke
Firance lease recetvabli

Clix Finance ndia Privats Limitad A 2] an

Fwld by tha Company
Clin Financa India Privata Limited a0,370 317 909,170
Clix Howsing Finarce Privata Limited 5500 1,21 1000

Ditvir advances.
Intarecmpinty racsivable
Clin Finance Indka Brivates Limibed 2078 2507 3
Clin Howsrg Finsnce Private Limited 110 -
Clin Loans Private Umited
Inbercompany pagable
Clin Analytics Private Limited 1
Trade payable
Clti Finance Indla Private Limited - - 2.066

B

(Financa kasa obligations
Clin Financa kecka Private Lirmited T
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2019-2020 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Clix Capital Services Private Limited

Motes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All emount In INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

Note 35: Related party disclosuraes

As per ind AS 24, the disclosures of trangactions with the related partiasare given below:

(a} Listof related parties where control exists and related parties with whor transactions have taken place and relationships:

Particulars

Plutus Financials Pvt. Limited (Mauritius)
Clix Finance India Private Limited

Clix Housing Finance Private Limited

Clix Analytics Private Limitad

Clix Loans Private Limited

Key managerial personnel

Bhawvesh Gupta

Samesh Kumar [Till 24 February 2013)
Vikas Aggarwal (Till 23 Septzmber 2019)
Rashmi Mohanty (From 28 November 2019}

Venkataraman Bharatwaj {From 23 September 2019 to 28 November 20:9)

Relationship
Halding Company
Subsidiary
Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
Company Secretary
Whiole-time Director
Whole-time Director and Chief
Financial Officer (CFO)

Whole-time Director

{b} The nature and valume of transactions carried out with the above related parties in the ardinary course of business are as

follows

1. Remuneration to key managerial personnal®

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Bhavesh Gupta - Chief Executive Officer
Ramuneration
Share-based payment

Vikas Aggarwal - Whole time director [Till September 2019)
Remuneration
Share-based payment

Somesh Kumar - Company Secretary - [Till February 2019)
Remuneration
Share-based payment

303 263
125 B4
438 328
a4 78
- 5
44 83
9

k- 9

* The remuneration given to key managerial personng! does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave

benefit, as they are determined an actuanal basis for the Company as a whaole.
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited
Notas to Standalone Financial Statemants for the year ended 31 Marck 2020
(AN amount in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated otherwise)

2. Other transactions

Name of related party Year ended 31 Year ended 31
March 2020 March 2019

Transactions

Income
Interest on finance lease recefvables
Clix Finance India Private Limited 11 15

Expenditurs
Interest on finonce lease obligation
Clix Finance India Private Limited 13 1

Intevest on inter-corporate loans

Clix Finance India Private Limited 532 211
Loan origination cost

Clix Finance India Private Limited 91 349
Clix Housing Finance Pvt. Limited 12 -

Expense reimbursements
Allocations made

Clix Finance India Private Limited 1,887 2,675
Clix Housing Finance Put. Limited 253 242
Alfocations received
Clix Finance India Private Limited 9432 533
Clix Howsing Finance Pwt. Limited 142 =

Amounts paid for the Company
Clix Finance indla Private Limited 9% 183

Amount paid by the Company
Clix Housing Finance Private Limited 1 -
Clix Analytics Private Limited
Clix Loans Private Limibed

LA

Amount recevied for transfer of financial assets [assignment)
Clix Finance India Private Limited 9.029 -

Amount paid for transfer of financial assets (assignment)
Clix Howssing Finance Frivats Limited 2,502 -

Proceeds from lssue of Share Capital
Plutus Financials Pvt. Limitaed 19,393 =

Investments mada by the Company
Clix Housing Finance Private Limited = 4,300
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Clix Capital Services Private Limited

MNotes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
fAll amvaunt in INR Lacs, except for share data unless stated atherwise)

Mame of related party

Yearendad 31
March 2020

Year ended 31
March 2019

Inter-corporate loans

Token

Clix Finance India Private Limited
Repaid

Clix Finance India Private Limited

Assets taken finance lease
Taken

Clix Finance India Private Limited
Repaid

Clix Finance India Private Limited

Assets given on finance lease
Given
Clix Finance India Private Limited

Repaid
Clix Finance India Private Limited

2000

2500

126

41

45

51

5,500

6,500

25

106

21

b1
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Balance Sheet - Dutstanding Balances

| 31 march 2020 | 33 mMarch 2019
|Batance Cutstanding as at year end :

Amounts recoverable

Finance lease receivable

Chix Finznce India Private Limited L] a4
linvestrments hald by the Compamy

Clix Finance india Private Limited o500 99,170

Clix Housing Finance Private Limitad 5500 5,500
Other advances

Intercompany receivable

Clix Finance India Private Linited 1636 2,075

Clix Housing Finance Private Limited (1] 259

Clix Loans Private Limited 18 15
|Intercompany payable

Clix Analytics Private Limlted 17 1
Trade payable

Clix Finance India Private Limited .
Inter Corporate deposits

Clix Finance India Priveste Limited 15,5000 E
Finance lease obligations

Clix Finance India Private Limited e a7
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ANNEXURE IX: ILLUSTRATION OF DEBENTURE CASH FLOWS

Date Cash Inflow Cash Outflow
1-Sep-20 | 600,000,000

1-Dec-20 13,836,986
1-Mar-21 13,684,932
1-Jun-21 13,989,041
3-Jun-21 150,000,000
1-Sep-21 160,567,808
1-Dec-21 156,918,493
1-Mar-22 153,421,233
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ANNEXURE X: IN-PRINCIPAL APPROVAL

NSE 25

National Stock Exchange Of India Limited
Ref, No:NSELIST/2685 August 28, 2020

The Company Secretary

Clix Capital Services Private Limited

4th floor, Kailash Building,

Kasturba Gandhi Marg, Connaught Place,
New Delhi -110001.

Kind Atin.: Mr. Ashish Kumar
Dear Sir,

Sub.: In-principle approval for listing of Non-Convertible Debentures on private placement
hasis

This is with reference to vour application dated August 28, 2020 requesting for In-principle
approval for listing of Secured, Redeemable, Taxable, Non-convertible Debentures of face value
of Rs. 1000000 each, aggregating to Rs. 60 crore, to be issued by Clix Capital Services Private
Limited on private placement basis. In this regard, the Exchange is pleased to grant in-principle
approval for the said issue. subject to adequate disclosures to be made in the Offer Document in
terms of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 as amended from time to
time, applicable SEBI Circulars and other applicable laws in this regard and provided the
Company prints the Disclaimer Clause as given below in the Offer Document afier the SEBI
disclaimer clause:

“As required, a copy of this Offer Document has been submitted to National Stock
Exchange of India Limited (hereinafter referred to as NSE). It is to be distinctly
understood that the aforesaid submission or in-principle approval given by NSE vide its
letter Ref.: NSE/LIST/2685 dated August 28, 2020 or hosting the same on the website of
NSE in terms of SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 as amended
from time to time, should not in any way be deemed or construed that the offer document
has been cleared or approved by NSE: nor does it in any manner warrani, certify or
endorse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this offer document: nor
does it warrant that this Issuer’s securities will be listed or will continue to be listed on the
Exchange; nor does it take any responsibility for the financial or other soundness of this
Issuer, its promoters, its management or any scheme or project of this Issuer.

Every person who desires to apply for or otherwise acquire any securities of this Issuer
may do so pursuant to independent inquiry, investigation and analvsis and shall not have
any claim against the Exchange whatsoever by reason of any loss which may be suffered by
such person consequent to or in connection with such subscription /acquisition whether by
reason of anvthing stated or omitted to be stated herein or any other reason whatsoever™

This Docurient & Digitely Sigred

National Stock Exchan s of India Limited | Exchangs Plszs, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex; Bapdea.(ElMumbei m 400 D5,
Indlia +91 22 26599100 | www.nssindia.com | CIN UST120MH199 2PLCO50TA9 i

ale: Frl, Aug 2B, 2000 101013 18T
NEE
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o N SE Continceation Sheet

Please note that the approval grven by us should not - any way be deemed or constroed that the
deaft Offer Document has been cleared or approved by NSE; nor does it in any manner warrant,
cerily or endomse the correctness or completeness of any of the contents of this deaft offer
document; nor does it warrant that the securities will be listed or will continue o be listed on the
Exchange; nor does it take any responsibifity for the financial or other soundness of the
Compatty, its promoters, its managemenl or any scheme or project,

Kindly also note that these debt wstruments may be listed on the Exchange alter the atlotment
process has been completed, provided the securities of the issuer are eligible for listing on the
Exchange as per our hListing criteria and the issuer fulfills the hsting requirements ol the
Exchange. The ssuer is responsible 1o ensure compliance with all the applicable guidelines
1ssued by appropriate authonties from ume o ome incleding SEBI (1ssue and Listing of Debt
Secunties) Regulations, 2008 as amended {rom ome to time, applicable SEBL Circolars and other
applicable taws 1o this regard,

Yours faithiully,
For Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited

Priva lyer
Manager

Tevs. Dacimeeni is Digitdiy Signad

Sigrur Patya Fang o lpes
Dt Fi

INSE '

Fil fag 28, 220 iD.1 ARIET
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